Phil Norrey
Chief Executive

To:

County Hall
Topsham Road
Exeter
Devon
EX2 4QD

The Chairman and Members of
the Children's Scrutiny
Committee

(See below)
Your ref :
Our ref :

Date : 1 September 2017
Please ask for : Stephanie Lewis 01392 382486

Email: stephanie.lewis@devon.gov.uk

CHILDREN'S SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Monday, 11th September, 2017
A meeting of the Children's Scrutiny Committee is to be held on the above date at 2.15 pm at
Committee Suite - County Hall to consider the following matters.
P NORREY
Chief Executive

AGENDA

PART I - OPEN COMMITTEE
1

Apologies

2

Minutes
Minutes of the People’s Scrutiny Committee meeting held on 15 June 2017 (previously
circulated).

3

Items Requiring Urgent Attention
Items which in the opinion of the Chairman should be considered at the meeting as
matters of urgency.

4

Public Participation
Members of the public may make representations/presentations on any substantive
matter listed in the published agenda for this meeting, as set out hereunder, relating to a
specific matter or an examination of services or facilities provided or to be provided.

MATTERS FOR CONSIDERATION OR REVIEW
5

Special Educational Needs and Disability Update (Pages 1 - 6)
Report of the Head of Education and Learning (CS/17/30).

6

Children's Social Work Improvement Plan 2017/18 (Pages 7 - 30)
Report of the Head of Children’s Social Care (CS/17/27)

7

Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) Redesign (Pages 31 - 36)
Report of the Head of Children’s Social Care (CS/17/26).

8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report (Pages 37 - 108)
Report of the Head of Children’s Social Care (CS/17/28).

9

Performance - Education and Learning (Pages 109 - 118)
Report of the Head of Education and Learning (CS/17/29).

10

Performance - Children's Social Care (Pages 119 - 156)
Report of the Head of Children’s Social Care (CS/17/25).
MATTERS FOR INFORMATION

11

Children's Scrutiny Committee Work Programme
(a) In accordance with the previous practice, Scrutiny Committees are requested to
review the list of forthcoming business (previously circulated) and to determine which
items are to be included in the Work Programme. The Committee may also wish to
review the content of the Cabinet Forward Plan to see if there are any specific items
therein it might wish to explore further. The Work Programme and Forward Plan can be
found at:
https://new.devon.gov.uk/democracy/committee-meetings/scrutiny-committees/scrutinywork-programme/
(b) Commissioning Liaison Member update
PART II - ITEMS WHICH MAY BE TAKEN IN THE ABSENCE OF THE PUBLIC AND
PRESS

Members are reminded that Part II Reports contain confidential information and should therefore be
treated accordingly. They should not be disclosed or passed on to any other person(s).
Members are also reminded of the need to dispose of such reports carefully and are therefore invited to
return them to the Democratic Services Officer at the conclusion of the meeting for disposal.

Membership
Councillors R Hannaford (Chairman), D Sellis (Vice-Chair), S Aves, F Biederman, J Brazil, E Brennan, C Channon,
I Chubb, G Gribble, J Hawkins, L Hellyer, R Hosking, T Inch, J Mathews, A Saywell, M Squires, C Mabin and J Mannix
Declaration of Interests
Members are reminded that they must declare any interest they may have in any item to be considered at this meeting,
prior to any discussion taking place on that item.
Access to Information
Any person wishing to inspect any minutes, reports or lists of background papers relating to any item on this agenda
should contact Stephanie Lewis 01392 382486
Agenda and minutes of the Committee are published on the Council’s Website and can also be accessed via the
Modern.Gov app, available from the usual stores.
.
Webcasting, Recording or Reporting of Meetings and Proceedings
The proceedings of this meeting may be recorded for broadcasting live on the internet via the ‘Democracy Centre’ on the
County Council’s website. The whole of the meeting may be broadcast apart from any confidential items which may need
to be considered in the absence of the press and public. For more information go to: http://www.devoncc.public-i.tv/core/
In addition, anyone wishing to film part or all of the proceedings may do so unless the press and public are excluded for
that part of the meeting or there is good reason not to do so, as directed by the Chairman. Any filming must be done as
unobtrusively as possible from a single fixed position without the use of any additional lighting; focusing only on those
actively participating in the meeting and having regard also to the wishes of any member of the public present who may
not wish to be filmed. As a matter of courtesy, anyone wishing to film proceedings is asked to advise the Chairman or the
Democratic Services Officer in attendance so that all those present may be made aware that is happening.
Members of the public may also use Facebook and Twitter or other forms of social media to report on proceedings at this
meeting. An open, publicly available Wi-Fi network (i.e. DCC) is normally available for meetings held in the Committee
Suite at County Hall. For information on Wi-Fi availability at other locations, please contact the Officer identified above.
Public Participation
Devon’s residents may attend and speak at any meeting of a County Council Scrutiny Committee when it is reviewing any
specific matter or examining the provision of services or facilities as listed on the agenda for that meeting.
Scrutiny Committees set aside 15 minutes at the beginning of each meeting to allow anyone who has registered to speak
on any such item. Speakers are normally allowed 3 minutes each.
Anyone wishing to speak is requested to register in writing to the Clerk of the Committee (details above) by the deadline,
outlined in the Council’s Public Participation Scheme https://new.devon.gov.uk/democracy/committee-meetings/scrutinycommittees/, indicating which item they wish to speak on and giving a brief outline of the issues/ points they wish to make.
Alternatively, any Member of the public may at any time submit their views on any matter to be considered by a Scrutiny
Committee at a meeting or included in its work Programme direct to the Chairman or Members of that Committee or via
the Democratic Services & Scrutiny Secretariat (committee@devon.gov.uk). Members of the public may also suggest
topics (see: https://new.devon.gov.uk/democracy/committee-meetings/scrutiny-committees/scrutiny-work-programme/
All Scrutiny Committee agenda are published at least seven days before the meeting on the Council’s website.
Emergencies
In the event of the fire alarm sounding leave the building immediately by the nearest available exit, following the fire exit
signs. If doors fail to unlock press the Green break glass next to the door. Do not stop to collect personal belongings, do
not use the lifts, do not re-enter the building until told to do so.
Mobile Phones

Please switch off all mobile phones before entering the Committee Room or Council Chamber

If you need a copy of this Agenda and/or a Report in another format
(e.g. large print, audio tape, Braille or other languages), please
contact the Information Centre on 01392 380101 or email to:
centre@devon.gov.uk or write to the Democratic and Scrutiny
Secretariat at County Hall, Exeter, EX2 4QD.

Induction loop system available

NOTES FOR VISITORS
All visitors to County Hall, including visitors to the Committee Suite and the Coaver Club conference and meeting rooms
are requested to report to Main Reception on arrival. If visitors have any specific requirements or needs they should
contact County Hall reception on 01392 382504 beforehand. Further information about how to get here can be found at:
https://new.devon.gov.uk/help/visiting-county-hall/. Please note that visitor car parking on campus is limited and space
cannot be guaranteed. Where possible, we encourage visitors to travel to County Hall by other means.
SatNav – Postcode EX2 4QD
Walking and Cycling Facilities
County Hall is a pleasant twenty minute walk from Exeter City Centre. Exeter is also one of six National Cycle
demonstration towns and has an excellent network of dedicated cycle routes – a map can be found at:
https://new.devon.gov.uk/travel/cycle/. Cycle stands are outside County Hall Main Reception and Lucombe House
Access to County Hall and Public Transport Links
Bus Services K, J, T and S operate from the High Street to County Hall (Topsham Road). To return to the High Street
use Services K, J, T and R. Local Services to and from Dawlish, Teignmouth, Newton Abbot, Exmouth, Plymouth and
Torbay all stop in Barrack Road which is a 5 minute walk from County Hall. Park and Ride Services operate from Sowton,
Marsh Barton and Honiton Road with bus services direct to the High Street.
The nearest mainline railway stations are Exeter Central (5 minutes from the High Street) and St David’s and St Thomas’s
both of which have regular bus services to the High Street. Bus Service H (which runs from St David’s Station to the High
Street) continues and stops in Wonford Road (at the top of Matford Lane shown on the map) a 2/3 minute walk from
County Hall, en route to the RD&E Hospital (approximately a 10 minutes walk from County Hall, through Gras Lawn on
Barrack Road).
Car Sharing
Carsharing allows people to benefit from the convenience of the car, whilst alleviating the associated problems of
congestion and pollution. For more information see: https://liftshare.com/uk/community/devon.
Car Parking and Security
There is a pay and display car park, exclusively for the use of visitors, entered via Topsham Road. Current charges are:
Up to 30 minutes – free; 1 hour - £1.10; 2 hours - £2.20; 4 hours - £4.40; 8 hours - £7. Please note that County Hall
reception staff are not able to provide change for the parking meters.
As indicated above, parking cannot be guaranteed and visitors should allow themselves enough time to find alternative
parking if necessary. Public car parking can be found at the Cathedral Quay or Magdalen Road Car Parks (approx. 20
minutes walk). There are two disabled parking bays within the visitor car park. Additional disabled parking bays are
available in the staff car park. These can be accessed via the intercom at the entrance barrier to the staff car park.

NB

A

J

Denotes bus stops

Fire/Emergency Instructions
In the event of a fire or other emergency please note the following instructions. If you discover a fire, immediately inform
the nearest member of staff and/or operate the nearest fire alarm. On hearing a fire alarm leave the building by the
nearest available exit. The County Hall Stewardesses will help direct you. Do not stop to collect personal belongings and
do not use the lifts. Assemble either on the cobbled car parking area adjacent to the administrative buildings or in the car
park behind Bellair, as shown on the site map above. Please remain at the assembly point until you receive further
instructions. Do not re-enter the building without being told to do so.
First Aid
Contact Main Reception (extension 2504) for a trained first aider.

Agenda Item 5

CS1730
Childrens Scrutiny
11 September 2017

EDUCATION AND LEARNING
SEN UPDATE
Background and current position.
Over the last 12 months members have had briefings on many elements of school
funding as pressures have increased and difficult decisions have had to be made.
Overview and Scrutiny have asked for an update report focused on SEN funding
arrangements following the development of plans to make some changes to the funding
arrangements in future. Any plans to change school funding arrangements have to be
planned in full partnership with schools, take into account parental wishes and feelings,
ensure sufficient notice, avoid where possible school holiday communication gaps and
align fully with national funding arrangements. This makes for a complex set of
considerations, with compromises sometimes required.
Changes in demand
Over the past 8 months we have had a 99% increase in the number of statutory
assessments. The graph below shows the increase in statutory assessment based
on calendar years as reported to the DfE.
Statutory Assessments
478

500
400
300

255

228
168

200
100
0
2014

2015

2016

2017 (year
to date)

Factors affecting this increase are;
 statutory increase to include 0-25 age range
 inclusion of the Further Education (FE) sector – completely new to statutory
processes
 use of SEN assessments to attract further school funding
 primary focus of parental preference; increased parent expectations about
choice & control
 anyone (schools, parents, other professionals) being able to make a request
for statutory assessment
 demographic change
Changes in DfE requirements
There is now a statutory requirement to amend all plans for pupils in years 6 and 11 (this
was previously only year 6) and recommended good practice is to further amend years 2
and 9.
The expected increase in amendments from Sep 2017 is 310% [Table 3b]

Page 1

Agenda Item 5

CS1730
Childrens Scrutiny
11 September 2017

Table 3b: After 2017 – Amendments for learners with a Statutory Plan
(Four year group cohorts to be amended every year)
Year

No in Yr 2

2017/18 100
Increase

No in Yr 6
243

No in Yr 9

No in Yr 11 Total

309
393
(796 volume) 310% increase

1,045

Part of the statutory assessment process includes the legal requirement to provide a
visit and report from an Educational Psychologist.
Three key areas of Educational Psychology statutory work:
a) For new Education Health and Care Plans and re-assessments, advice and
information must be sought from an Educational Psychologist.
The
Educational Psychologist should consult any other psychologist known to be
involved with the child or young person.
b) Educational Psychologists are expected to contribute to Annual Reviews and
transfers between phases and into adulthood for CYP with an EHCP
c) Educational Psychologists provide support, advice and attend Tribunals for
Devon CC
We must also offer independent support from the Devon Information, Advice and
Support Service.
Both of these services are also under considerable strain to meet the demands of
increased assessment caseloads.

7,000

40

6,000

35

5,000

30
25

4,000

20

3,000

15

2,000

No. of Plans/Case Work
No. of Staff

Plans/Casework

The chart below reflects predicted growth based on the number of new requests in place
in 2017. We are currently reviewing staffing levels in light of these changes.

10

1,000

5

0

0

No. of new Assessments
No. of Amendments
FTE required
actual FTE

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Non Statutory Plans
Non statutory funding was introduced by the Local Authority in April 2014. The strategic
aim was to increase school funding and reduce the need for statutory assessment for
pupils with lower level or short term SEN need. The massive increase in statutory
assessments indicates that this strategy has not worked. Alongside the increase shown
above we have seen also seen a significant rise in requests for funding to support pupils
who do not have a plan.

Page 2

Agenda Item 5

CS1730
Childrens Scrutiny
11 September 2017

There are 800 children in Devon with non-statutory plans and the cost of this has risen
from £257k in the 2014/15 financial year to £3.2 million in the 16/17 financial year.
Whilst this exponential growth is concerning, our analysis also shows that the average
cost of a non-statutory plan in a mainstream school in 2016 was £4,785 compared to an
average cost for a statutory plan of £4,383. This goes against the strategic aim as the
plans were for children with lower need. If the level of needs requires this level of
funding, the children should have all the protection that a statutory plan offers and the
schools should have the consistency, openness and transparency that the statutory
process provides.
The above is intended to further clarify information already provided, not repeated here.
The link below is to the online open letter and the key facts document already provided
https://new.devon.gov.uk/educationandfamilies/archives/5963.
Members have submitted a wide variety of questions about the proposed changes.
These have been grouped together under broader headings. The information below
aims to answer the questions.
1) Increase in requests for EHCPs.
It is anticipated that we will see an increase in requests for EHCPs as a result of the
changes. However, as described above, at present we have around 800 pupils for
whom schools receive significant amounts of money to support their SEN provision
and in some cases schools are receiving more funding for pupils without an EHCP
than those with an ECHP. As an EHC plan is designed to support those children with
a higher level SEN needs, this is not an equitable system and additionally means
that some pupils may not be getting the support and protection that a statutory
EHCP plan provides.
2) Increased staffing pressure and staff turnover.
Staff are under significant pressure but this is due to the increase in requests, new
DfE requirements as explained above and the requirement to transfer all old style
statements to new EHC plans. The anticipated increase in requests for statutory
assessment will add to this but it is important that we have a system which is fair
and equitable and monitors that we are meeting children’s needs.
Staff turnover has been linked to the fact that using the DfE SEN transformation
grant (which is designed to support LAs to transfer all statements to EHCPs) we
have employed a team of staff on fixed-term contracts to undertake this work. As
the funding for these roles ceases in March 2018 there has been a constant
process of recruitment and induction due to the temporary nature of the post.
3) Young people losing funding if they do not meet EHCP thresholds.
Some young people may not meet the threshold for statutory funding but this is
highly unlikely to be pupils who now receive significant additional funding. If this
becomes evident it raises questions as to the appropriateness of the ongoing
funding and validates the change of process. The High Needs Block is designed to
support those who have more complex needs and as such they should have a
statutory plan. As the councillor briefing showed schools currently have £44 million in
their budget to support children with SEN, this funding is not changing. Higher
levels of funding are still available but will now be accessed through a transparent
and equitable process of assessment for a statutory plan.
4) Spending on Independent Schools including non-independent special schools
and the monitoring of it.

Page 3

Agenda Item 5

CS1730
Childrens Scrutiny
11 September 2017

This area of spend is rightly an area of interest, within the system, for example SEN
specialists in DCC and Devon Education Forum and without. Regulations place a
strong emphasis on parental preference saying ‘that children should be educated in
accordance to their parent’s wishes’ In two recent cases we have been ordered by
tribunal to place in Independent mainstream schools. This is not a decision that the
LA takes lightly. An audit (by the DCC audit team) of our placements at independent
schools has been arranged for the Autumn term
It should be noted however that independent provision is often the only provision that
has the type of specialism required to meet the child’s needs.
5) Home to School transport and independent travel.
The Local Authority has duty to provide home to school transport for any child under
16 who lives more than 2 miles (for primary aged children) or 3 miles (for secondary)
from home to their nearest school. For children with SEN, transport is provided to
their most appropriate nearest setting as deemed by their statement or EHC Plan.
Where possible, we provide our young people with independent travel training and
our Transport Coordination Service (TCS) manages the scheme. This was
expanded in 2016 and full details are available on our transport web pages.
(https://new.devon.gov.uk/educationandfamilies/school-information/school-andcollege-transport/independent-travel-training). In order to use public transport to
access school it has to be available at the appropriate times and in a rural county
that is often not the case. For example in some areas a child could not get to school
until 11am and would have to leave at 2pm as those are only buses running; in other
places the bus does not operate every day.
Our Education Transport Policy sets out public transport as the first option to
consider when TCS are allocating children to the most appropriate transport. Travel
Training supports this principle. This is followed by contracted transport (coaches
and minibuses), a petrol allowance for the parent, with taxis then being the last
resort. However taking into account the rural nature of the County, the distances
some children have to travel to get to their nearest school and the complex needs of
some individuals, taxis are often the only option. This may include specialist
vehicles to accommodate wheelchairs, specialist seats and equipment and
specifically trained crews to ensure the child is transported safely taking into account
their additional needs. Where possible TCS does feed some children into the
nearest appropriate main route but this again has to take into account needs of the
child and the travel times (45 minutes for primary and 1 hr 15 minutes for
secondary).
TCS regularly review transport in terms of the most appropriate transport provided
for an individual. It also has an ongoing regular route network review programme
which generated £430k in year savings in 2016/17. This was on top of savings
generated through travel training (170k). This work is ongoing but reviewing
transport for children with SEN takes time and needs proper consideration of the
impact of any change on the child, family and school. TCS manages Education
transport alongside other transport functions (Public Transport, Social Care and
more recently non-emergency patient transport for the NHS) and is constantly
looking for ways to share resource and provide a more effective network for all. In
terms of the location of school placements the council only provides transport to the
nearest appropriate school unless ordered otherwise by a judge or a parent wins at
independent appeal. Full details of the school transport policy can be found at:
https://new.devon.gov.uk/educationandfamilies/school-information/school-andcollege-transport

Page 4

Agenda Item 5

CS1730
Childrens Scrutiny
11 September 2017

6) Communication with schools and parents and timing.
School representatives were involved in conversations with the LA over the second
half of the summer term. A joint High Needs Task Group has been running to decide
the best way forward. The letter was to confirm the action decided to schools,
before the end of term so that staff did not waste time on paperwork for the wrong
type of funding. Schools will often use the long Summer break to complete this kind
of work.
The information was not aimed at parents and no child will lose their funding in
September. Contact details for our SEN team were provided for reassurance.
Anyone with concerns could contact them directly.
7) High Needs Budget allocation.
With all party support, we have been and still are campaigning for additional funding
for schools and for pupils with SEN. Under our current system the DfE could rightly
argue we are spending millions of pounds on non-statutory provision and therefore
have enough money. As we acknowledge above most of the pupils with nonstatutory funding are likely be eligible to transfer to an Education Health and Care
plan. This change of process therefore means that in addition to providing the young
person with all the protection that the plan brings, it also allows us to better evidence
the pressure, we and schools are under.

Electoral Divisions: All
Cabinet Member for Children Services and Schools: Councillor James McInnes
Chief Officer for Childrens Services: Jo Olsson
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972: LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS
Contact for Enquiries:
Dawn Stabb, Head of Education and Learning
Email: dawn.stabb@devon.gov.uk
Tel No: 01392 383212
Room: 136, County Hall

Page 5

Agenda Item 6
CS1727
Children’s Scrutiny Committee
Date 11 September 2017
2017/18 Children’s Social Care Improvement Plan
Report of the Head of Children’s Social Care
Recommendation:
That Children’s Scrutiny Committee (CSC)
• Receive the 2017/18 Childrens Social Care Improvement Plan
1. Introduction
The service review of May 2017 confirmed that Children Social Care are well placed
to get to good and gave a clear message that the service needs to focus on
consolidating improvements achieved since 2015 and on targeting improvement
action on the top ten areas for development. Within the top ten Children in Need,
Early Help and practice in North Devon were highlighted as key areas for
accelerated improvement, where failure to secure significant and sustained
improvement would undermine the potential to get to good.
Following the service review a high level improvement plan (appendix 1) has been
developed detailing how the service will ensure improvement action is targeted and
focused on those priority areas; consolidating previous successes while embedding
a sustainable approach to continuous improvement across the service.
2. Summary
Reflecting the messages of the service review, the plan has been developed to
support a clear focus on the priority areas for improvement. The plan details the
actions which cumulatively will ensure improved service delivery and where
disciplined attention can have greatest impact. The plan avoids detailing everything
that the service will do over the coming year and does not seek to capture core
operational business.
Delivering the improvements requires a service wide approach through which
change and improvement is embedded and owned at all levels. The plan will help
ensure that the service progresses improvement by putting in place the systems,
processes and frameworks through which the service can develop an approach to
robust self-assessment and continuous improvement which is at the heart of
sustainable improvement and a good service.
The plan maintains the same core structure as previous Childrens Social Care plans
to help ensure continuity.
•
•
•

leadership and management
right service right time
high quality statutory service

Page 7

Agenda Item 6
•

looked after children are properly looked after and care leavers are listened to
and supported to aspire and achieve

Key areas for action are being progressed through the development of a Child in
Need framework which will establish practice expectations for children and young
people assessed as eligible for service. An Improvement Board North has been
established under the independent chair of Mark Gurrey, Co-chair of the Devon
Children and Families Partnership. Improvements to Early Help are being
progressed through the multi-agency Early Help Improvement Board.
Key to getting to good is ensuring wide ownership of the improvement agenda and
improved consistency of social work practice, assessment and care planning. To
achieve this, priority is given to improving workforce stability, ensuring manageable
caseloads, providing high quality and impactful supervision and ensuring staff have
the right tools to do their job through the development of a Devon practice framework
based on a strengths based model.
Progress will be tracked by the Children’s Social Care senior management team
through routine reporting. Quarterly position statements, produced by managers, will
demonstrate progress against locality and service plans. The position statements
are a self-evaluation based on data from a range of sources (principally performance
data, the service’s systematic auditing and staff and service user feedback).
Moving into 2018 the implementation of Eclipse provides significant opportunity for
improvements as an operational tool for staff and managers and through the
potential to further develop the quality and focus of our performance data and the
development of a revised Children’s Social Care performance framework.
The service will review the overall impact of the improvement plan through a revised
self-assessment in April 2018 and an independent service review in May 2018, to
mirror that of May 2017.
Electoral Divisions: All
Cabinet Member for Childrens Services and Schools: Councillor James McInnes

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972: LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS
Contact for Enquiries:
Mark Lines, Head of Service, Childrens Social Care
E-mail mark.lines@devon.gov.uk
Tel No: 01392 381093
Room: 130

Page 8

CS1727 – Appendix 1

Devon Children’s Social Care Improvement Plan 2017/18

Introduction
We are committed to providing high quality services to help our children, young people, and families in Devon achieve the best possible outcomes. This
improvement plan outlines the strategic improvement priorities for Children’s Social Care and outlines how these will be delivered in the year ahead.
In developing this improvement plan we have undertaken a systematic self-assessment to ensure that we understand our services and our strengths, so we
can grow and build these. To ensure we understand where we need to improve and where we need to prioritise that improvement we completed a
detailed self-assessment using the Association of Directors of Children’s Services template. This was tested using an independent service review
commissioned in May 2017. The process has helped ensure we understand ourselves and involved the workforce to clearly identify our strategic
improvement priorities, our top 10 strengths and our top 10 priorities for improvement, for 2017/18. These priorities will form the focus of our
improvement actions throughout the service in the year ahead.

Page 9

This improvement plan will ensure that we create the right frameworks, structures and processes through continuous improvement can be taken forward
incrementally and systematically across the whole service. The themes and priorities will be embedded in all our improvement plans or actions, and all staff
and managers across the service will contribute to improving services to children, young people and their families.
This strategy is underpinned by four core messages that will help consolidate and embed the improvements achieved in 2016/17 and create a sustainable
culture of continual improvement across the workforce and in the services, they deliver:
focus on consistently high quality and performance;
create the environment in which social work practice can flourish;
develop our approaches to self- assessment, ensuring it drives continuous improvement at all levels; and
build on our strengths and focus improvement action on our priorities.

Agenda Item 6

•
•
•
•

Links to other plans and strategies
This improvement plan sets out the actions that will be taken in key areas of our service where we know we need to accelerate change so children and
families consistently get a good service. We know we cannot do this on our own and we are committed to collaborative work, both operationally and
strategically and to developing and delivering effective partnerships that support sustained improved outcomes for the children, young people and families
that need help and support. We will continue to work with partners in delivering these improvements and we will continue to contribute to the wider
strategic priorities of partners and partnerships in Devon.
The plan will contribute to achieving Devon Count Council’s strategic priorities and the objectives identified in Better Together 2014-2020, by ensuring the
provision of flexible and responsive services that support people and families in need, so that:

Page 10

•
•
•
•

vulnerable people will be better protected from abuse and harm;
children will have the best possible start in life and be ready for school;
children in care will have a secure and stable home and go on to lead happy lives; and
more young people will lead fulfilling and productive lives.

From 1 July 2017 the duties and responsibilities of the Devon Children’s Safeguarding Board and Devon Children, Young People and Families Alliance have
been realigned and will be taken forward by the Devon Children and Families Partnership (DCFP). The DCFP will:
•
•
•
•
•

oversee the partnership’s commitment to ‘good’ children’s services through the implementation of this improvement plan so children, young people
and families get the service they need to improve their life chances;
be a streamlined and effective partnership by ensuring that meetings are purposeful with the right people around the table;
build on the best of what we have done, to develop more mature relationships where creativity, challenge and innovation can flourish;
focus on quality assurance as we recognise that good and effective services require robust quality assurance work to ensure children are safeguarded
as well as they can be; and
adopt the recommendations of the Wood Report: reviewing the functions of local safeguarding children boards.

Agenda Item 6

CS1727 – Appendix 1

CS1727 – Appendix 1
Strategic context
This improvement plan will help ensure that Children’s Social Care can continue to play a key role in the delivery of the strategic vision set out in the
Devon Children and Young People’s Plan 2015-20 ‘My Life, My Journey’ and the children and young people’s priority in the Wider Devon Sustainability and
Transformation Plan. These are articulated in the five key shifts to:
•
•
•
•
•

strengthen our Early Help system;
locality based model with services rooted in our communities;
improve the integration of services- as a whole system as experienced by children, young people and families;
bespoke and personalised services that are responsive, flexible and agile; and
strengths and assets based approach to practice.

Milestones and Performance Indicators

Page 11

This improvement plan includes realistic milestones to ensure objectives are met. Progress is monitored by Children Social Care Senior Management Team
(SMT) and Childrens Services Management Team (CSLT). Progress against key priorities will continue to be tested and examined by the Children’s Scrutiny
Committee and subject to monitoring and evaluation by the DCFP so officers are held to account and arrangements and progress are transparent.

We will evaluate the overall impact of this improvement plan in the spring of 2018 through a self-assessment which we will again test through an
independent service review.

Agenda Item 6

This improvement plan will continue to be underpinned by a suite of currently reported performance measures established under the 2016/17 Children’s
Social Work and Child Protection Improvement Plan. The development of Eclipse integrated children’s system (ICS), to replace outdated CareFirst ICS
creates considerable opportunities to develop our management and performance information. This improvement plan includes the development of a
revised performance framework for Childrens Social Care that will further improve our ability to monitor and evaluate performance in key areas of the
business operation so managers have good grip on frontline practice and can take early actions on improving outcomes for our children, young people and
their families.

Top 10 strengths
1. Leadership: there is a strong support from the Lead Member and cross party Elected Members who are committed to high quality services that achieve
good outcomes for Devon’s children, young people and families. The senior management team is ambitious and committed to delivering real
improvement.
2. Corporate parenting: we have made a step change in the way the Devon Corporate Parenting Board works and in the involvement young people in
driving the work of the Board.
3. Engagement of staff: our staff are committed to getting to ‘good’, morale is good and social workers describe good management support.
4. Child centred practice: our workers know their children well, are committed to achieving the best and good child centred practice is being observed.

Page 12

5. Children in care: outcomes are improving for almost all our children and young people in care. We have some children and young people who have
experienced historically weaker practice and we are working hard to ensure we meet their needs. Recent practice is significantly better. We are
undertaking some good work to ensure the needs of Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children are met.
6. Private Fostering service: we have a strong and effective private fostering service.
7. Virtual School: managers have a good understanding and oversight of the educational attainment and needs of our children in care. We understand
performance and are focused on the areas that need to improve.
8. Step change improvement in audit: We have established a strong Quality Assurance Framework which is beginning to drive systematic improvement.
9. Significantly improved availability and use of performance data: the workbook is helping inform management decision making and focus performance
improvement.
10. The LSCB improvement agenda and pace of change has improved: under the skilled leadership of the Independent Chair.

Agenda Item 6

CS1727 – Appendix 1

CS1727 – Appendix 1

Top 10 areas for improvement
1. Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub: improve the quality of enquiries into MASH, reduce enquiries that do not lead to an assessments, improve quality and
performance management timescales, risk assessments and evidence the rationale for manager’s decisions on the ICS.
2. Children in Need: improve management information, audit and oversight to accelerate improvement in services for this vulnerable group of children.
3. Assessments and plans: embed our strengths based model, build our professional curiosity, improve the quality of our analysis of need and risk and
ensure children’s plans are more outcome focused, deliver purposeful interventions and improve outcomes for children young people and families.
4. Supervision/management oversight: ensure we provide consistently high quality, reflective, challenging professional supervision and effective
management oversight of our work, supporting workers to grow and develop professionally so that they consistently deliver good quality practice.

Page 13

5. Transitions to Adult Services: work with our partners at a strategic level and in our direct work with professionals from partners agencies so the needs
of children with disability are identified and planned early so children, young people and their families experience a seamless service.
6. Care Leavers: ensure we improve accommodation and employment/apprenticeships opportunities and sustain supportive relationships with care
leavers.
7. Performance management: continue to build the effectiveness of our performance and management oversight through rigorous supervision and case
management, robust use of data and audit, and effective scrutiny and challenged through the role of IROs – to demonstrate real and sustained impact.
8. Workforce capacity: ensure manageable caseloads, including for IROs, that enable workers to undertake high quality work, ensure appropriate staffing
for MASH and build greater resilience in the teams in the North.

10. Early Help: work within the wider Early Help system to ensure that practice is underpinned by good quality assessments, plans and reviews so children
and families get the services they need at the right time and to support the timely step down for children, young people and their families so they do
not enter or remain in receipt of statutory services unnecessarily.

Agenda Item 6

9. Eclipse implementation: ensure the successful implementation of Eclipse and ensure that we apply learning from other councils who have previously
implemented large ICT projects.

Leadership and Management
Outcome
We consistently provide Good
services across all areas of
Devon.

Action
All localities and services develop
and implement improvement plans
based on service improvement plan
and local improvement priorities.

Page 14

Improvement is accelerated in Establish
North
North Devon.
Improvement Board.

Milestones
Date
Locality and Service Improvement Plan July 17
templates and guidance approved by
SMT

Who
DT

Progress & RAG
Completed

Improvement plans approved by SMT

All SMT

Completed

All SMT

July completed

ML

Achieved

Improvement plan approved by Board July 17
and operational

ML

Achieved

Review of progress by Board

ML

Anticipate Board to
continue to Dec.
Temp leadership
arrangement secured
Recruitment of social
workers is the most
significant challenges

August 17

Quarterly locality position statements
including progress reporting and July/Oct/Ja
sharing of lessons learned to SMT
n/May
Devon Improvement Board established
June 17

September
17

We have a stable and resilient CSW workforce plan developed and CSW Workforce plan approved by SMT August 17
MM/SM
permanent workforce.
implemented.
Workforce plan progress reporting to Sept, Nov MM
SMT bi monthly
17,
Jan, March
18

Achieved
On track

Agenda Item 6

CS1727 – Appendix 1

CS1727 – Appendix 1
Workers have manageable Continue
action
to
ensure Caseload reports to SMT monthly
August 17
caseloads that enable them to caseloads consistently at the level
do good quality work.
of good authorities.
Recommendations for target caseloads August 17
approved by SMT
Identify staffing issues/demand Management action initiated as As required
pressures at the earliest point to required to maintain target caseloads
enable strategies to be put in place.

Page 15

Workforce has the skills to Social Work Academy provides
confidently
deliver
Good training and development that
services.
supports consistently improved
assessment and care planning,
supervision and performance and
quality management.

MM
AMs

Achieved
Caseloads
were
holding in Exeter and
Mid & East but have
been moving upwards
in other localities and
in P&T

VC

On Track

Workforce has the skills to Develop and implement an CSW practice model developed and Oct 17
confidently
deliver
Good integrated strengths based practice approved by SMT
services.
model for DCC CSW.
Launch of framework with staff and Nov 17
partners

VC/JK

On Track

Evaluation of impact of practice April 18
framework
Project Board oversees detailed Liaison with Lancashire CSW to identify June 17
implementation plan to ensure risks and vulnerabilities
replacement of Care First with
Eclipse.
Revised risk mitigation plan approved July 17
by Board

VC/JK

Quarterly Academy training report to Dec/March
SMT
/ June

VC/JK

NS/KC

Completed

NS/KC

Completed
On Track

Eclipse go live

Jan 18

NS/KC

Eclipse full implementation

1st April 18

NS/KC

Agenda Item 6

Our ICT systems and processes
support
efficient
service
delivery and provide high
quality
management
information.

2017/18 CSC Workforce training and Sept 17
development plan approved by SMT

JM

We effectively manage and Establish
Children’s
services
improve performance.
performance
framework
incorporate recommendations of
the service review.

Review management information/ July 17
performance data recommendations
from service review against Care First
capability.
Updated management
available to SMT
Children’s
services
framework developed

workbook August 17
performance October 17

JM

Completed

JM

Completed

JM/NS

On Track

Page 16

Quality and performance framework Jan 18 ( JM/NS
implemented
Eclipse go
live)
We embed a culture of audit, We embed the Quality Assurance Quarterly QAF reports to SMT
From
JK
robust self-assessment and Framework (QAF) and undertake
August 18
continuous improvement.
an annual self-assessment to
identify our strengths and areas for Annual Children’s Services
self- April 18
ML
improvement and test this through assessment completed
independent scrutiny
Service review conducted and reports May 18
to CSLT

On Track

Agenda Item 6

CS1727 – Appendix 1

CS1727 – Appendix 1

Right service right time and High Quality Statutory Services
Outcome
Consistently high quality and
timely response to children and
young people referred to MASH.

Action
Review of MASH concluded and
MASH/IRT
improvement
Plan
developed
and
implemented
supported by auditing and improved
quality assurance.

Page 17

Children in need receive a good CiN framework
service that improves outcomes.
implemented.

developed

milestones
Review of MASH staffing to SMT

Dates
July 17

Who
AA/RG

RAG
Completed

MASH/Initial
Response August 17
improvement plan approved by
SMT

RG

Completed

MASH Improvement plan sign off Sept 17
by partnership

RG

Impact evaluation report to SMT Feb 18
and the partnership
and CSC CiN framework presented to Sept 17
SMT
Oct 17
CiN framework sign off by
Feb 18
Partnership

RG
On Track

VC
VC

AMs

Completed

LDs

Completed

Agenda Item 6

Quality and impact review of CiN
framework presented to SMT and
partnership
Children in need receive a good Localities ensure all CiN have up to Locality desktop review of all CiN
June 17
service that improves outcomes.
date assessments and Plans and
minimum practice standards are CiN action plan included in locality July 17
implemented for all CiN.
improvement plans

VC

CiN Performance data reported August 17
monthly to SMT
Clear and effective stepdown Establishment of an Early Help step CSC Early Help practice framework Sept 17
pathway to early help for children up/down practice framework will be developed
young people and families.
progressed through the Early Help
Improvement
Board
and Framework
presented
to Oct 17
improvement plan.
partnership for sign off

Page 18

Disabled young people receiving
CSC service have a clear transition
plan with early engagement of
Adult Services.

CSC will continue to work with the
SEND improvement board and
purposeful systems work stream to
secure improved transitions for
young people.

JM

Completed

RG

On Track

RG

Initial month
impact review Jan 18
completed and presented to
SMT/CSLT and Partnership

RG

Transitions practice audit

AM

Aug 17

Improvement plan Actions will be
progressed as identified in the
SEND improvement plan
Review practice audit

AM
Dec 17
April 18

, AM

Audit rescheduled to
September due to
staff availability

Agenda Item 6

CS1727 – Appendix 1

CS1727 – Appendix 1

Looked after Children Properly Looked After and Care Leavers are Listened to and Supported to Aspire and Achieve
Outcome
Action
Our young people in care and care Children in care and care leavers
leavers receive a good service.
strategy reviewed to incorporate
recommendations of service review

Page 19

Regional
adoption
established.

Who
KM

Children in care and care leavers Nov 17
strategy approved by Corporate
Parenting Board

KM

Strategic arrangements presented Sept 17
to Corporate Parenting Board and
Partnership

ML

Oct 17

ML

Integrated improvement delivery Jan 18
framework implemented and
reporting to
Corporate Parenting Board and
DCFP

ML

Structure implemented

agency DCC hosts Adoption South West Business case presented to DCC Nov 2017
(RAA) prior to transfer to final form cabinet

KD

RAG
On track with revised
timeline to ensure
communication and
engagement
with
stakeholders

Work
progressing
timescale may require
adjustment to reflect
above

Work progressing but
high risk of delay due

Agenda Item 6

We effectively deliver all aspects Establish a strategic oversight
of the children in care and care framework to co-ordinate and drive
leaver’s strategy.
improving outcomes for CiC and
integrate work streams to improve
placement
sufficiency,
EET
opportunities and accommodation
destinations for care leavers.

Milestones
Dates
Children in care and care leavers Oct 17
strategy approved by SMT and
CSLT

in 2020

Relevant functions of partner Local April 2018
Authorities transferred to DCC

KD

finance
and
risk
modelling
and
timetabling of partner
approval processes

Agenda Item 6

CS1727 – Appendix 1

Page 20

Children’s Social Care: North Locality Improvement Plan

2017/18

Locality and service improvement plans 17/18: Template for Managers
Devon County Council (DCC) is delivering an ambitious programme to improve its Children’s Social Care service and aims to improve its
standards to the equivalent of a ‘Good’ Ofsted rating. The improvement plan pulls together the various objectives to be achieved under the
following work strands:
- Leadership and Management
- Right Service, Right Time
- High Quality Statutory Service
- Looked After Children are properly looked after
- Care Leavers are listened to and supported to aspire and achieve

Page 21

Developing on our approach to self-assessment and continuous improvement each locality, or service, will develop its own improvement plan.
They will take forward the priorities of the service plan, and build on and consolidate strengths as well as areas for improvement. Each of the
locality or service improvement priorities must reflect the 2017 service review and improvement actions which were identified through selfassessment, performance reporting and auditing activity.

Agenda Item 6

Page 1

2017/18

Top 10 strengths ‘A service that knows itself well and has created the conditions to enable good social work practice to flourish’
1. Leadership: priority, ambition and commitment of Senior Management Team, Lead Member and cross party elected members.
(Leadership and Management)
2. Corporate Parenting: step change leading to improvement in both the way the Board works and in the involvement YP. (Leadership
and Management)
3. Engagement of staff: positive morale and commitment to getting to good. SWs described good management support. (Leadership and
Management)
4. Child centred practice: workers know their children well, good child centred practice seen.(Right Service, Right Time)

Page 22

5. Children in Care: outcomes improving for almost all, notwithstanding the legacy of historically weaker practice; in every case recent
practice better and some good work with Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children. (Looked After Children are properly looked after)
6. Private Fostering Service: best the reviewer had ever seen and the case tracked was outstanding! (Looked After Children are properly
looked after)
7. Virtual School: managers have good oversight and understanding of performance and the areas that need to improve. (Looked After
Children are properly looked after)
8. Step change improvement in audit which is beginning to make a difference , (Leadership and Management)
9. Significant improvements in the availability and use of performance data; the workbook is helping managers to make decisions.
(Leadership and Management)
10. The LSCB improvement agenda and pace of change has improved; under the skilled leadership of the independent chair
(Leadership and Management)

Page 2

Agenda Item 6

Children’s Social Care: North Locality Improvement Plan

Children’s Social Care: North Locality Improvement Plan

2017/18

Top 10 priority improvements
‘Tackling inconsistencies; consolidate, consolidate, consolidate!’
1. MASH volumes/timeliness/IRT interface; too many contacts that don’t lead to a social care intervention; timeliness of MASH response and
quality of multi-agency analysis and decision making. (Right Service, Right Time)
2. CiN practice; management information, supervision, management and audit to accelerate improvement (High Quality Statutory Service)
3. Assessments and Plans; analysis and embedding of strengths based model including good risk assessments and risk mitigation plans,
depth of professional curiosity. Outcome focused (SMART) plans that drive purposeful interventions and outcomes/change. (High Quality
Statutory Service)
4. Supervision/Management oversight; more consistently challenging/reflective and recorded to support best practice. (Leadership and
Management)

Page 23

5. Transitions to Adult Services; for disabled children. (Right Service, Right Time)
6. Care Leavers; more to do on accommodation and employment/apprenticeships. (Care Leavers are listened to and supported to aspire and
achieve)
7. Performance management: supervision and case management, use of data and audit, role of IROs demonstrating real and sustained
impact. (Leadership and Management)

9. Eclipse implementation: avoid the Lancashire experience! (Leadership and Management)
10. Early help: performance framework for practice, step down needs to be secured (Right Service Right Time)

Page 3

Agenda Item 6

8. Workforce capacity: some caseloads drifting upwards, minimum staffing for MASH, IRO caseloads do not permit full discharge of their
responsibilities, teams in the north less resilient (Leadership and Management)

2017/18

Governance
Implementation of the plan will be monitored through the Children’s Social Care Senior Management Team and the Improvement Board North,
which meets monthly. The usual reporting arrangement through quarterly position statements is temporarily suspended.
The Detailed Improvement Plan North, which is the working tool for the area manager, team managers, and frontline staff is attached below.
This is an operational tool and not necessarily appropriate to the Improvement Board North.
In order to meet the improvement challenge in the North, the top 10 improvement priorities for Children’s social care have been re-focused.
There are four critical priorities

Page 24

Leadership and management
Priority: Workforce
• Secure high quality interim senior management arrangements
• Resolve the uncertainty about long term arrangements
• Recruit locum capacity to cover all vacancies, including maternity and long term sickness absence
• Recruit over establishment as necessary to bring caseloads below 20
• Develop and implement a recruitment and retention strategy north (taking into account wider cross county implications)
Right Service Right Time
Priority: Thresholds and workflow
• IRU to review MASH/IRT interface and practice to reduce failure demand
• Review all thresholds
High Quality Statutory Service
Priority: Embed practice standards
Looked after children are properly looked after
Priority: Embed practice standards
Care Leavers are supported to aspire and achieve

Page 4

Agenda Item 6

Children’s Social Care: North Locality Improvement Plan

Children’s Social Care: North Locality Improvement Plan

2017/18

Priority: Embed practice standards

Locality/Service Area:
Leadership & Management

Ref

Lead

Resilient high
performing workforce

Secure high quality interim senior
management arrangements

N1

ML

Resolve the uncertainty about long term
arrangements

N2

JO

Recruit locum capacity to cover all
vacancies, including maternity and long
term sickness absence

N3

CH

Inductions for permanent recruits

N4

CH

Recruit over establishment as necessary
to bring caseloads below 20

N5

CH

Develop and implement a recruitment
and retention strategy north (taking into
account wider cross county implications)

N6

KM

August 2017
Arrangements
confirmed and
operational

Targets/Milestones
September 2017
Future arrangements
clarified
Future arrangements
clarified

CVs References
interviews

Locum capacity partly
in place

Action to secure
permanent
arrangement
underway
Locum capacity
fully in place

CVs References
interviews

6 new starters
inducted
Locum capacity partly
in place

Locum capacity
fully in place

R&R strategy draft one
out for consultation

Page 5

October 2018

Update/RAG
green

green

green

Agenda Item 6

Action

Page 25

Objective

Right service, right time

2017/18

Action

Ref

Lead

Teams are holding
and working with the
right children and
families at the right
time

IRU to review MASH/IRT interface and
practice to reduce failure demand

N7

JK/KM

All CIN cases reviewed and action plans
and/or closure plans agreed

N8

CH

Cases identified

Cases closed

Additional resources in place to clear
backlogs/blockages
Thresholds for CIN reviewed (CIN, CP,
proceedings, CiC)

N9

CH

CVs References
interviews

Locum capacity partly
in place

N10

CH

Page 26

Objective

Page 6

August 2017
Terms of reference
for review drafted
and agreed

Targets/Milestones
September 2017
Review undertaken

October 2018
Review concluded
and
recommendation
considered
Ongoing
monitoring of
cases
Locum capacity
fully in place

Update/RAG

green

Agenda Item 6

Children’s Social Care: North Locality Improvement Plan

Children’s Social Care: North Locality Improvement Plan
High Quality Statutory Social Work
Action

Ref

Lead

Embed practice
standards

Managers and social workers review practice
standards and Tri X processes and comply
with these

N11

CH

All open cases have a comprehensive assessment
and care plan completed within the last 12
months and an up to date chronology/genogram.

N12

CH

N13

CH

All social workers receive a minimum of monthly
supervisions providing clearly recorded
management direction
Step down process is understood and used
in a timely way for appropriate cases

N14

CH

N15

CH

Monthly audits completed by TM’s/AM in
accordance with QAF

N16

CH/KM

Page 27

Objective

Plans clearly identify outcomes to be
achieved with timescales written in a format
which is easily understood by the children
and their family/carers.

Sept 2017
PS document
reviewed and links to
Tri X on every
desktop

2017/18
Targets/Milestones
December 2017

March 2018

Update/RAG

Data evidences
compliance

Data of supervision
evidences compliance
Process agreed at
SMT and cascaded to
teams
Data evidences
compliance

Process embedded in
practice

Process part of
inductions

Agenda Item 6

Page 7

Looked After Children are properly looked after
Action

Ref

Lead

The needs of
children and young
people are met by
carers who
safeguard and
support them.

Children and young people are visited within
statutory timescales by staff who know them
well. Their views are recorded and acted
upon.

N17

CH

Placements are well supported to minimise
the risk of breakdown.

N18

CH

Statutory duties are completed with the
children and young people to ensure they are
supported to achieve their full potential

N19

CH

Achievements of children/yp are highlighted
and celebrated with them.

N20

CH?

Comprehensive pathway plans are
th
completed with yp before their 16 birthday
to identify support needed to make a
transition to independence at the appropriate
time.

N21

CH

Page 28

Objective

Sept 2017
CIC PI evidences
compliance of stat
visits

No more than 4.2%
of children have
3+moves.
PI of PEPs/HA’s
evidence compliance

PI highlights gaps

Page 8

2017/18
Targets/Milestones
December 2017
CIC PI evidences
compliance and CLA
reviews evidence
child’s voice in plans

March 2018

Placements remain
stable evidenced by PI
Targets set for
achievement at
GCSE’s/A levels for
2018. Attendance
improved and a
Nominations to virtual
school for March
celebration event.
PI indicates gaps have
been addressed

Performance
tracked with
virtual school
head
Celebration event
rd
attendance 23
March 2018

Update/RAG

Agenda Item 6

Children’s Social Care: North Locality Improvement Plan

Children’s Social Care: North Locality Improvement Plan

Care Leavers are supported to aspire and achieve
Action

Ref

Lead

Care leavers have
appropriate support in
place prior to leaving
care which is continued
once they have left care

All care leavers are housed in suitable
accommodation in line with their assessed needs
as identified in the pathway plan

N22

CH

Care leavers are supported and encouraged to
continue their education or access employment .
Staff are clear of the guidance in this respect and
the actions needs to achieve this.

N24

CH

EET is currently
25.9%

All efforts are made to continue contact with
young people who have left the care of DCC to
determine their level of support needs

N25

CH

Review of the Ofsted
list against yp
contacted

Page 29

Objective

Sept 2017
Review of all
placements against
need

2017/18

Targets/Milestones
December 2017
No care leavers in
unsuitable
accommodation
Pathway plans
evidence actions to
progress care leaver’s
education and
employment.
All care leavers
recorded as having
been contacted

March 2018

Update/RAG

Improved
performance
evidenced by PI

Agenda Item 6

Page 9

Agenda Item 7

CS1726
Children’s Scrutiny Committee
11 September 2017
Report of the Head of Children’s Social Care
DEVELOPMENT OF AN EFFECTIVE ‘FRONT DOOR’ TO CHILDREN’S SERVICES

The purpose of this paper is to;
 Brief members early on proposals to develop a more effective ‘front door’ to
Children’s Social care.
Members are asked to consider the report and identify any additional issues that should be
considered prior to developing these options further for full consultation.
1.

Introduction

1.1

The service review of Devon County Council’s Children’s Social Care, undertaken in
May 2017, tested progress on the improvement journey since the most recent
Ofsted inspection in 2015.

1.2

The review identified the Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) as one of the top
ten areas for improvement highlighting: staff capacity and resilience within the
MASH, volume and quality of referrals and contacts and the impact this has on how
initial contacts are dealt with in the MASH, Initial Response Teams and Early Help.
Reducing contacts that do not lead to a social care intervention would help improve
consistency, timeliness and quality of decision making at this early point in the
child/families journey while better integration with early help offers would improve
access to support at the most appropriate time and improve outcomes for children
and families.

1.3

Analysis of all contacts into MASH and their outcomes, for the period April 2016 to
March 2017, confirms that just over a third (35%) meet the threshold of statutory
safeguarding services and result in a social care assessment. Many of these contacts
involved concerns about a child where additional support may be beneficial or where
effective signposting to appropriate services was appropriate.

1.4

Improving access to Early Help and reducing contacts with the MASH, that do not
need a safeguarding or statutory service, would provide a more effective and less
costly service, improve outcomes for children, young people and their families and
help improve efficiency and effectiveness of the MASH in responding to those most
in need of statutory services.

1.5

Early Help is not a stand-alone service. Early Help means taking action to support a
child, young person or their family early in the life of a problem, as soon as it
emerges. It can be required at any stage in a child’s life from pre-birth to adulthood,
and applies to a problem or need that the family cannot deal with on their own. It
applies to all children and young people and any kind of need.

Page 31

Agenda Item 7
1.6

This proposal sets out options to redesign some of the structure, procedures and
practice across Children’s Social Care Services, in partnership with our health, police,
education and voluntary partners, with an emphasis on further improving early
interventions for children and young people to alleviate their difficulties, to prevent
escalation to child protection and prevent children and young people on the edge of
care escalating to statutory services.

1.7

Developing Early Help creates an opportunity for innovative thinking and helps
strengthen multi-agency working and co-production at the earliest opportunity in a
child’s journey, specifically improving joint working and decision-making to bring
about the best possible outcomes for them before situations escalate.

1.8

The proposal is an opportunity to improve communication across partners and for
services to identify families at an earlier point and to better target support. This
includes recommendations for the structural changes required to implement a new
model which creates an effective “front door” to services for children, young people
and their families that is embedded in localities.
2.

2.1

Objectives
The overall aim of this programme is to develop a robust and consistent approach to
integrated Early Help and assessment at “the front door” with a clearly defined
purpose and well understood thresholds for accessing these services across all
partner agencies. The key objectives are to;
 establish a single access route to children’s services to improve and simplify the
experience for families and professionals, avoiding duplication and a
“piecemeal” approach to referral;
 develop an integrated, locality based model to improve joint planning and
decision making and to strengthen service coordination;
 establish clear pathways with shared definitions and understanding of roles and
eligibility criteria for accessing services;
 reduce the volume of contacts referred for a social care assessment that result in
a step down to early help or no further action;
 improve the timeliness and effectiveness of responses when processing
information through co-location and integration of multi-agency services;
 provide consistent advice and support to practitioners to improve understanding
of and access to the available or appropriate local services;
 develop systems and processes for the recording and sharing of multi-agency
information at the point of initial assessment that allows for clear identification
and analysis of key issues and risks;
 re-configure the workforce where necessary to ensure that the right skill mix is
available at the most appropriate point of the child’s journey, improve team
integration, co-production and achieve a sustainable and balanced workload.

2.2

The benefits for families and professionals contacting the service would be to:
 enable a timely response at the first point of contact;

Page 32

Agenda Item 7

 ensure callers only have to tell their story only once, improving efficiency and
the customer experience.
 enable more effective signposting to preventative / Early Help services;
 streamline processes and reduce hand offs between initial contact and outcome;
3.
3.1

Proposal
The proposed model is to develop four “Integrated Children & Families Hubs” – one
in each of the four locality areas: North, Mid and East; Exeter and South. Each ‘Hub’
would have a number of partners co-located or virtually co-located and covering the
following service areas;







Children and Families Locality Advice and Support Service
Children’s Social Care Services
Early Help
Health (Public Health Nursing)
Education (SEND 0-25 and EET)
Business Support Functions

3.3

Most of these services already exist within a locality model; this proposal brings
them together into locality teams as a single point of access to children’s social
care. Options will be explored for physical co location supported by virtual options
where this is not practicable.

3.4

The only new team under this proposal would be the Children and Families Locality
Advice and Support Service. The service will be developed with existing resources
from Childrens Social Care and Early Help. This service would:










3.5

be the first point of contact for members of the public; professionals and
universal services who have concerns about a child and are considering
making a referral to targeted/statutory services;
provide advice and guidance to professionals and universal services;
including schools, health services and voluntary and community groups to
enable them to support vulnerable children, young people and families
within their community;
share with and request information from the MASH who will gather multiagency information to identify risk of harm;
co-ordinate strategy discussions and make a decision about the outcome of
the referral in consultation with the worker who referred the case;
develop a good working knowledge of support services in the area and
identification of appropriate resources;
enable closer links between locality Early Help and Childrens Social Care
services;
be able to identify emerging needs and safeguarding concerns within the
locality to inform locality planning.

A central MASH would continue with a clear focus on undertaking multi-agency
information gathering and sharing where a referral to Children’s Social Care or Early
Help needs to be determined and would continue to be the first point of contact
where there is an immediate risk of harm to a child.

Page 33

Agenda Item 7
3.6

The proposal will also include the implementation of ‘intelligent’ call handling to
filter initial telephony contact to the right service.

3.7

A proposed model for the Locality Integrated Children & Families Hubs is included at
Appendix 2.
4.

Next steps

4.1

The work has been initiated in DCC to develop proposals to take to partners in the
autumn. Clearly this kind of initiative has to be co-produced with partners and with
service user. This will commence in October.

4.2

The work is being carried out alongside, and with reference to other existing work
including a remodelling of the Children’s Social Care service, a modernisation
programme for DCC’s Disabled Children’s Service, the recommissioning of children’s
Centres and the SEND Improvement programme.

4 Conclusion
5.1

Scrutiny Members are asked to consider the proposals and provide feedback to be
considered as part of the development of the model to take to partners in the
autumn.

Electoral Divisions: All
Cabinet Member for Children Services and Schools: Councillor James McInnes
Chief Officer for Childrens Services: Jo Olsson
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972: LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS
Contact for Enquiries:
Mark Lines, Head of Service for Childrens Social Care
Email: mark.lines@devon.gov.uk
Tel No: 01392 383212
Room: 130, County Hall

Page 34

Appendix 1: MASH – Average Weekly contacts and
outcomes
April 16 – March 17
Child & Siblings

MASH OUTCOME

Inbox

Calls

Enquiry Submission

Enquiry Accepted

Not Accepted

Initial Assessment

Direct to Referral

Other CSW

Early Help

NFA / Info Only

None / Rejected

Page 35

Monday

109

54

55

49

5

10

8

1

12

11

8

103

51

53

49

3

10

8

1

12

11

8

103

51

51

43

8

8

7

1

11

9

7

Thursday

106

53

57

46

11

9

8

1

12

10

7

Friday

102

51

50

41

9

8

7

1

10

9

7

Weekly Average

523

261

266

229

37

45

37

3

57

50

37

Monthly Average

2266

1131

1151

991

161

194

162

13

248

215

159

20%

16%

1%

25% 22% 16%

5

Agenda Item 7

Tuesday
Wednesday

Specialist Support
Children &
Families
Permanency &
Transition
Disabled Children
Services
Youth Offending
Team

MASH
Option 1 –
Immediate
Risk of Harm

Social care
Assessment

Information sharing

Page 36

HEALTH (Public Health Nursing)
• Children’s Health Visitors
• School Nurses
(co-ordinating Functions)

Children & Families Advice &
Support Service
(IRT Duty rota/Ref-Co/
DCS Advice & Support/
DIAS/Business support

Option 2 –
Safeguarding/
Early Help advice
and support
•
•
•
•
•

SOCIAL CARE
Family Intervention Team
Family Solutions Service
Youth Intervention Team
Y-SMART
REACH

•
•
•

EDUCATION/EMPLOYMENT
SEND 0-25 Team
Troubled Families Employment
Advisor (sit in Job Centre +)
Preparing for Adulthood
workers

Locality Integrated Children
& Families
6
Hub

Universal Services
Schools
GP’s & Health Care
Children’s Centre’s
Community &
Voluntary Services
Citizens Advice

Agenda Item 7

Appendix 2: Proposed Locality model

Agenda Item 8
CS1728
Childrens Scrutiny Committee
11th September 2017
THE ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17 OF THE INDEPENDENT REVIEWING UNIT:
CHILDREN’S SOCIAL CARE
Report of the Head of Children’s Social Care.
The annual report of the independent reviewing unit (IRU) is a statutory requirement
on local government. It is also a core document for Ofsted when they are
considering their judgement of the statutory social work functions of the Local
Authority.
The IRU is the internal quality assurance function for social work in Children’s
Services. It is part of the system of checks and balances, built over the last sixty
years, to make the UK’s system, the pre-eminent child protection system in the
world.
The report, attached here as an appendix, details the work and performance of the
IRU and opens a window onto the Devon-wide system for child protection and
children in care.
The picture painted is one of improvement which is of course very welcome and very
important, but more importantly in the Stronger Families: Safer Children section, the
picture is one of transformational cultural change. The developments described in
this report are the first steps in a radical transformation of social work in Devon.
All Children’s Services judged good by Ofsted have a flourishing IRU. There are
slightly different models nationally but the defining characteristic of success is high
support/high challenge. An overly supportive IRU quickly becomes collusive and has
no grip or penetration and little impact on practice quality. An overly challenging IRU
will be locked out and blocked from having any meaningful impact on maturing high
quality social work practice.
It will be helpful for scrutiny colleagues to assess the report through the lens of high
support/high challenge and explore this with the service leaders.
Electoral Divisions: All
Cabinet Member for Children Services and Schools: Councillor James McInnes
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972: LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS
Contact for Enquiries:
Mark Lines, Head of Service, Childrens Social Care
E-mail mark.lines@devon.gov.uk
Tel No: 01392 381093
Room: 130

Page 37

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

Devon County Council
INDEPENDENT
REVIEWING UNIT

ANNUAL REPORT
2016-17
Reports from the Independent Reviewing
Officers, Independent Safeguarding Reviewing
Officers and Local Authority Designated
Officers

Page 38

Page 1

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

Contents

Part 1: The Independent Reviewing Unit (IRU)
Service
1.1 Introduction and purpose of the report
1.2 Overview and summary of the IRU Service in
Devon
1.3 Service Context
1.4 The Team
Part 2:

The Independent Reviewing Officer Report –
Looked After Children

Part 3:

The Independent Safeguarding Reviewing
Officer Report - Child Protection Planning

Part 4:

The Local Authority Designated Officer
Report – Organisational Safeguarding
Service

Part 5:

Summary

Part 6:

Development /Action Plan for 2017-2018

Page 39

Page 2

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

Part 1: The IRU Service
Introduction and purpose of the report
This report details the work of the Independent Reviewing Unit for 2016/ 2017.
The report is separated into key sections to highlight 3 key areas of work
undertaken in the IRU in respect of children subject to child protection plans,
children who are looked after and organisational safeguarding investigations.
The report will;
•
•
•
•
•

Provide a context to the role and work of the IRU.
Highlight the performance and activities of the IRU.
Provide a picture of the profiles of the children we serve.
Highlight how the IRU has contributed to the development of good
practice and improving services and outcomes for Children in Care and
at Risk of Significant Harm.
Identify areas of development to be progressed in 2017/2018

Overview and summary of the IRU Service in Devon
The IRU in Devon is a unified team including Independent Reviewing Officers
(IRO), Independent Safeguarding Reviewing Officers (ISRO) with primary
responsibility for reviewing and quality assuring the service to children who
are the subject of child protection plans and the Local Authority Designated
Officers (LADO), responsible for managing allegations against people who
work with children. The IRU also holds responsibility for complex and
organised abuse strategy meetings and whole service investigations via the
LADO.
As one of the largest Local Authorities in England, Devon has developed a
locality based model of working in order to allow the establishment and
development of consistent working relationship. IROs and ISROs therefore
work as far as possible within the same geographical areas as front-line teambased areas, whilst maintaining an overarching supervisory and management
structure.
The implementation of a strengths-based approach in Child Protection
Conferencing during 2015/2016 has been a key change milestone for the IRU
and has seeded a number of additional changes.

Page 40

Page 3

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

Service Context
Children in Care:

The Independent Review Officers’ (IRO) service is set within the framework of
the updated IRO Handbook which is linked to the revised Care Planning
Regulations and Guidance, introduced in April 2011. The responsibility of the
IRO has changed from the management of the Review process to a wider
overview of the case including regular monitoring and follow-up between
Reviews. The IRO has a key role in relation to the improvement of Care
Planning for Children looked after (CLA) and for challenging drift and delay.
The primary task of the IRO is to ensure that the care plan for the child fully
reflects the child’s current needs and that the actions set out in the plan are
consistent with the local authority’s legal responsibilities towards the child. In
discharging these duties, the IRO has a number of specific responsibilities
which include:
•
•
•
•
•

promoting the voice of the child;
ensuring that plans for looked after children are based on a detailed
and informed assessment, are up to date, effective and provide a real
and genuine response to each child’s needs;
making sure that the child understands how an advocate could help
and his/her entitlement to one;
offering a safeguard to prevent any ‘drift’ in care planning for looked
after children and the delivery of services to them
monitoring the activity of the local authority as a corporate parent in
ensuring that care plans have given proper consideration and weight to
the child’s wishes and feelings and that, where appropriate, the child
fully understands the implications of any changes made to his/her care
plan.

The Statutory Guidance states that the IRO manager should be responsible
for the production of an annual report for the scrutiny of the members of the
corporate parenting board. This report should identify good practice but
should also highlight issues for further development, including where urgent
action is needed.
The IRO Guidelines further outlines six areas that the IRO Annual Report
should address:
•
•
•

Procedures for resolving concerns, including the local dispute
resolution process and it should include an analysis of the issues
raised in dispute and the outcomes;
The development of the IRO service including information on
caseloads, continuity of employment and the makeup of the team and
how it reflects the identity of the children it is serving;
Extent of participation of children and their parents;

Page 41

Page 4

Agenda Item 8
•
•
•

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

The number of reviews that are held on time, the number that are
held out of time and the reasons for the ones that are out of time;
Outcomes of quality assurance audits in relation to the organisation,
conduct and recording of reviews; and
Whether any resource issues are putting at risk the delivery of a
quality service to all looked after children.

The National Children’s Bureau research entitled ‘The Role of the
Independent Reviewing Officers (IROs) in England’ (March 2014) provides
information and findings in regards to the efficacy of IRO services and outlines
a number of important conclusions regarding what makes an effective IRO
service. In his forward and in relation to our service to Looked after Children,
Mr Justice Peter Jackson, makes the following comment;
‘The health and effectiveness of the IRO service is a direct reflection of
whether we are meeting that commitment [our legal obligations], or whether
we are failing.’
In an address to the National Association of IROs (NAIRO) the previous year
he said;
‘IROs should not wait for others to solve the problems in the system. They can
achieve valuable change by insisting on doing what they are there to do,
which is to hold the local authority fearlessly to account’.
Devon’s looked after Children and Leaving Care Strategy 2014-2017 sets out
the strategic intentions of Devon County Council in relation to improving
outcomes for children who are looked after by the Local Authority. These
priorities inform the work and scrutiny of the IRU. This strategy is in the
process of being updated to integrate key priorities to ensure help is offered to
families at the earliest opportunity through the early help system and at the
edge of care to reduce the likelihood that a child or young person requires
safeguarding through a child protection plan or via local authority care. Key
developments in our response to children in need will also support this
preventative work. When children do require local authority care, we are all
charged with the responsibility of ensuring children are supported to achieve
positive outcomes via well matched, local placements that are stable so that
all key developmental needs are met over time towards adulthood.
Child Protection:
Working Together (2015) sets out the legislative requirements and
expectations on individual services to safeguard and promote the welfare of
children, including the arrangements for Child Protection Conferences.
Research and evidence in best practice in working with families has informed
the review and implementation of a new model and approach to Child
Protection Conferencing in Devon, ‘Stronger Families; Safer Children’, an
initiative that has resulted in widespread and whole system changes to the
way in which we work alongside families to achieve change. Most recently,
some of the values and intentions at the heart of this model have been

Page 42

Page 5

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

endorsed further by research, including the findings set out in the work of
Smithson and Gibson ‘Less than human: a qualitative study into the
experience of parents involved in the child protection system’. (Wiley, 2016)
Whilst the role of the ISRO (Child Protection Chair) embraces the principles
and responsibilities of the IRO as set out above, therefore, it also has a
number of specific responsibilities to discharge;
•

•

•
•
•
•

•

•
•

•

•
•

To quality assure the appropriateness of decision-making to proceed
to Initial Conference and planning for the family in being able to get
the best possible experience and outcome from the meeting.
To speak to and/or meet with the family prior to the conference, to
ensure that they are clear about the purpose and process of the
conference and their role in it;
To agree issues of attendance and participation of the conference,
including exclusions where necessary;
To ensure that the child’s voice was heard and that direct
participation takes place;
To ensure consideration is given to any cultural, communication,
support needs or learning disability;
To chair the conference, setting out its purpose for all participants
and to ensure that participants are given adequate opportunity to
express their views;
To ensure that the conference adheres to the Stronger Families:
Safer Children strengths based, collaborative model and focuses on
both immediate safeguarding, and medium to long term resilience.
To respond to issues of dissent and to make the final decision about
child protection plans;
Where it is decided that the child should be subject to a child
protection plan, the chair coordinates the development of an
outcome focused, smart and resilience focused plan that draws on
and develops the assets around the child.
To ensure that expectations of parents and the outcomes required to
achieve the ending of the child protection plan are clear to all
parties;
To identify core group members, including timescales for meetings,
and with whom case responsibility lies
To quality assure the practice of the social work and multi-agency
partners and the progress of the plan.

Safer Organisations (LADO):
The Local Authority Designated Officer (LADO) service in Devon has
developed significantly in Devon during 2015/2016. The establishment of a
third LADO has enabled the service to broaden its consultancy, training and
awareness work within children’s social work and with external partners.
Further plans for the development of the service are set out further below.
Every local authority has a statutory responsibility to have a Local Authority
Designated Officer (LADO) who is responsible for co-ordinating the response
to concerns that an adult who works with children may have caused them or

Page 43

Page 6

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

could cause them harm. The Local Authority Designated Officer (LADO) in
Devon works within IRU and gives advice and guidance to employers,
organisations and other individuals who have concerns about the behaviour of
an adult who works with children and young people.
The LADO should be alerted to all cases in which it is alleged that a person
who works with children has:
•
•
•

behaved in a way that has harmed, or may have harmed, a child
possibly committed a criminal offence against children, or related to a child
behaved towards a child or children in a way that indicates s/he is unsuitable
to work with children.
Allegations of historical abuse should be responded in the same way as
contemporary concerns. In such cases, it is important to find out whether the
person against whom the allegation is made is still working with children and if
so, to inform the person’s current employer or voluntary organisation or refer
their family for assessment.
Working Together (2015) prescribes key aspects of the LADO role and
includes;

•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•

To coordinate the safeguarding and investigative process in response to
allegations made against people working with children.
To provide advice/guidance to employers or voluntary organisations.
To liaise with police and other agencies including Ofsted and professional
bodies such as the General Medical Council and the General Teaching
Council.
To monitor the progress of referrals to ensure they are dealt with as quickly as
possible, consistent with a thorough and fair process.
To resolve any inter-agency issues.
To collect strategic data and maintain a confidential database in relation to
allegations.
To disseminate learning from LADO enquiries throughout the children’s
workforce.
To ensure that measures are in place to prevent further harm or abuse and
that where required, referrals are made to the appropriate social care team.
The Team:
The Children’s Commissioner for England’s report for the Family Justice
Review in 2010 highlighted the significance of consistency of the IRO for
children.
In 2016/17, the IRO teams have remained largely stable. From April to August
2016, the service included two locum IROs however, since August 2016, the
team has comprised only permanent members of staff, creating the
opportunity for improved consistency for children. This allows IROs to know

Page 44

Page 7

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

their children well, and to monitor cases from a position of experience and
knowledge of the child, as envisaged in the Handbook.
NS, GS and BS became subject of child protection plans whilst living at
home. IRO raised escalation about unmanaged risks in home. NS and his
siblings were accommodated. IRO continued in her role and escalated
concerns about drift in planning and ensured a child-focused approach to
contact arrangements. IRO remained throughout care proceedings and has
been instrumental in supporting children into permanent placements.

Structure:

Senior Manager
Safeguarding
Operations
Managers
IROs and ISROs

Jean Kelly
(interim)

Jane Anstis
(interim)

6.6 ISROs

2.6 LADOs

Ian
Davidson

9.8 IROs

The current staffing structure includes;
• 2 full time equivalent Operations Managers, each with key areas of
responsibility; Children In Care and Safeguarding (Child Protection,
Local Authority Designated Officer (LADO), Complex and Organised
Abuse)
• 19 Independent Reviewing Officers (IROs) of which 2.6fte specialise in
the LADO role and 6.6fte in the Child Protection Role (Independent
Safeguarding Reviewing Officers, ISROs)
The IROs and ISROs are appointed at a level equivalent to Children’s Social
Work Team Managers in Devon.
Profile and expertise:
In terms of diversity and our ability to reflect the population of the children with
whom we work, we currently have a mix of 4 male and 15 female of which one
is from a black and mixed ethnicity (BME) background.
In order to ensure the whole team knowledge base remains current and that
we have an internal scrutiny and challenge mechanism, each IRO/ISRO holds
responsibility for a discrete area of practice, including;

Page 45

Page 8

Agenda Item 8
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17
Adolescents and risk
Disability
Mental health
Adoption and Foster to Adopt
Education and inclusion
Child Sexual Exploitation / sexual abuse
Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children
Social media and on-line safety
Equality and Diversity; Faith / BME / culture
Equality and Diversity: LGBTQ
Domestic Abuse
Substance Abuse
Transition to Adulthood and Care Leavers
Contact / Family Group Conferences / Kinship Care
Trafficking and Gangs
Edge of Care
Participation
Neglect

In these champion roles, IROs and ISROs provide a point of support and
advice for colleagues and provide concurrent and annual research
dissemination.
In response to positive challenge from the Champion for
Disability, a short workshop was provided by a Disability
Advocacy Service to inform good practice in working with
families where disability is a signficiant issue.

Locality based working:
Reflecting the geographical organisation of front-line services in Devon, the
IRO and ISRO’s are based in the four quarters of the county; North, South,
Exeter and Mid and East Devon.
This has created the conditions for enhanced and productive working
relationships between practitioners and IRO/ISRO’s, opportunities for closer
working and more timely resolutions at an earlier stage. It has improved
understanding of the IRO/ISRO role, including its position outside the practice
accountability framework and its need to remain robustly independent, able to
challenge and escalate concerns where necessary.
At times, the locality model has created challenges in timely allocation and the
team has had to work cooperatively and flexibly across areas at times in order
support compliance with statutory timescales.

Page 46

Page 9

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

IRU Caseloads:

Maintaining IRO caseloads within those recommended in the IRO Handbook
regulations has continued to be a primary aim of the service and for the most
part has been achieved.
Caseloads for ISRO’s have averaged at 75-80 pro rata.
Effective quality assurance demands a reduction in caseloads to the region of
60 and this will be the target average for 2017/2018.

Part 2: Looked After Children
The role of the Independent Reviewing Officer for looked after children:
The primary functions of the role of IRO are to quality assure the care
planning and reviewing process for each looked after child and to ensure that
their wishes and feelings are given full consideration. They are also charged
with ensuring that whilst in the care of and upon leaving the care of the local
authority, the best outcomes are achieved for and on behalf of these children
and that their life chances maximised
Every looked after child in Devon will have an IRO appointed who will monitor
their case and, where necessary, challenge decisions and practice to ensure
best outcomes. This should include identifying patterns of concern around
individual children as well as looking at the overall experience of looked after
children in Devon.
This part of the report begins with a summary of progress regarding the
actions agreed in last year’s annual report and goes on to consider
performance in this reporting year.

Page 47

Page 10

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17
Actions from Previous Annual Report (2015-2016)
Priority Action
All IROs to have contact
cards

Children and young people
chair/co-chair their child in
care reviews
(where appropriate)

Outcome Sought
Children and young people
know there IRO, know how to
contact them and understand
their rights and entitlements
An increase in children and
young people chair/co-chair
their reviews

Outcome
All IROs now have contact cards, these include advice
on advocacy and the Children in Care Council Website

The (I9) CHIC monitoring form demonstrates an
increasing number of young people engaged in chairing
their reviews.
84% of children and young people are participating in
their reviews

Page 48

Children and young people
receive a pre-review visit/
consultation

All children and young people
are visited/consulted prior to
their reviews to ensure their
views are head and responded
to.

15% increase in pre-review visits/consultation.

Children and young people’s
participation recorded in line
with Government criteria
Parents to be consulted prior
to reviews (where
appropriate)

To ensure all children are
actively involved in decisions
that affect their lives.
Parents are consulted or
provide feedback for reviews

Looked After Children (I9) monitoring form incorporates
Government requirements

All children and young
people have a mid-point
review completed

To ensure that all plans are on
track in a timely way
evidencing best outcomes are
on track to being achieved.

51% of mid-point checks completed

Children and Young People

To ensure every child has

Leaflet produced and provided to IROs, given out at

RAG Rating
GREEN

AMBER
Further action:
Data needs to effectively
distinguish between chairing and
participation
AMBER
Further action: Reduce IRO
caseload, monitor through
supervision

Significant increase in parental participation (feedback
and attendance) to 67%

GREEN

AMBER
Further action required:
feedback to be analysed for
future reporting.
AMBER
Further action required: All IROs
now required to complete this
process.
GREEN

Page 11

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17
are aware of their rights

To establish better links
between the IRU and IROs
and the Children in Care
Council

IROs to practice in
accordance with agreed
practice standards

access to and understands
their rights as looked after
children.
An IRO to link directly with the
children in care council

initial reviews
Further action required: Evaluate
impact with Participation Team
IRO identified as champion
GREEN

IRO manager to attend CICC
meetings as and when
requested
To ensure all IROs are working
to agreed minimum standards
as set out in the care planning
regulations.

IRO manager now attending
Practice standards produced and agreed and provided
to all IROs

Further action required:
evaluation of impact.
GREEN
Further action required: monitor
through supervision, practice
observation, appraisal

Page 49

IROs to receive feedback on
their practice from young
people
IROs to consult with young
people in respect of this and
record wishes on IRU
monitoring form

This took place in 2016 and is due to be repeated in the
next reporting year

To promote greater stability
of placement for children in
care

Permanency planning
meetings and plans produced
in line with requirements,
support more effective
planning

Increase in escalation activity around planning issues –
evidenced in escalation report (i3)
77% of permanence plans in place by the second child
in care review
75% of reviews, IROs have no concerns about
placement stability
84% of cases care plans fully implemented
10% of children are expressing concerns about their
care or placement

73% of children and young people are consulted and
have a say in where and when and who attends their
review meetings

GREEN

AMBER
Further action required: Improve
this to as close to 100% as
possible with reported
exceptions.
AMBER
Further action required:
All permanence plans in place
before second review
IROs have less concern about
placement stability

Page 12

Agenda Item 8

Once yearly direct
observations of IROs by care
experienced young people
Children and young people
have greater control over
their review process and
consulted on where, when
and who attends their
reviews

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

The data used as a comparator to Devon’s is based on the national Local
Authority figures for CHIC, year ending March 31st 2016 (national data for the
reporting year is not available at the time of writing this report). This data
includes, national and statistical neighbour comparisons and highlights the
performance of local authorities that who been rated ‘good’.
Profile of Children in Care

800
700

Devon

600
500

Average - Devon's
Statistical Neighbours

400
300

Local Authorities with
Children's Services rated
as 'Good'

200
100
0

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

(Fig 1. ChiC Rate per 10,000 of Children aged under 18 years - Local/National/Stat
Neighbours and ‘Good’ Authorities)

2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

2012

720
710
700
690
680
670
660

(Fig. 2 Numbers of LAC – Devon – 5 year trend)

The above tables show the figures for looked after children over a five-year
period. Fig. 1 represents a comparison with “good authorities, and statistical
neighbours. Fig 2 represents Devon’s 5-year trend for ChiC.

Nationally (England), the numbers of children looked after has risen steadily
from 67,070 (31st March 2012) to 70,440 (March 31st 2016), a 5% increase
over the period. In comparison Devon’s CHIC numbers have remained
relatively stable over the same period 710 (31st March 2012) with small

Page 50

Page 13

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

decreases in the next few years to 710 (31st March 2016), as of 31st March
2017 this figure reached 682, a 4% decrease.
In comparison over the period 2012-2016, our statistical neighbours have
demonstrated a 7% increase in the number of looked after children, however,
when we compare our figures to ‘Good’ authorities they have seen an overall
reduction of 12% in their CHIC numbers over the same period.
If we consider this in relation to numbers of CHIC per 10,000 children aged 18
population in each authority Devon has matched the national trend (2016) but
has seen the beginning of a reduction in this figure this year (48 per 10,000).
The national trend has been relatively stable (59-60 per 10,000), Statistical
Neighbours have shown an increase (56 per 10,000) whilst ‘Good’ authorities
have demonstrated a downward trend of 12% (38 per 10,000).
The last year has shown a rise nationally in the number of unaccompanied
asylum seeking children being looked after with 3,440 entering care and 1,980
leaving care. This has influenced the characteristics of children in care with a
rise in the number of children 16 and over and a rise in the number of children
with BME backgrounds. If we were to remove UASC from the count of looked
after children we would see that there has been a 1% decrease in the
numbers of looked after children since 2015. Devon welcomed 20
unaccompanied asylum seeking children as at 31st March 2017, an increase
of two from the same period last year. The numbers are too low and the
USAC situation too dynamic to make useful comparisons.
Whilst this year has seen a small reduction in the numbers of children looked
after within Devon we anticipate this to continue. The improvements in the
early help system, our developing edge of care work, and a focus on our
approach to children in need, we expect a continued steady number of
children in care, with a continued focus on the children who need this level of
support receiving it.

Page 51

Page 14

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

Legal Status of Looked After children
60
50

Devon 2016

40
Devon 2017

30
20

Average - Devon's Statistical
Neighbours

10
0

Local Authorities with
Children's Services rated as
'Good'
South West

(Fig 3. Percentage of LAC Children Local/National/Stat Neighbours by legal status)

Nationally the numbers and proportion of children looked after on a care
orders have continued to increase. 65% (45,440) of children looked after at 31
March 2016 were looked after under a care order, up from 61% (31st March
2015) and 59% (31st March 2012).
Voluntary agreements under Section 20 of the Children Act 1989, which have
fluctuated over recent years, have in parallel reduced this year from 28% (31st
March 2015) to 27% (March 2016).
Devon has seen an increase in the use of care orders up from 59% (31st
March 2016) to 67% (31st March 2017). The use of placement orders has
remained stable at 9% (31st March 2016) and 10% (31st March 2017), in line
with comparable figures nationally, statistical neighbours and ‘Good’ local
authorities.
Devon’s use of Section 20 agreements, 30% (31st March 2016) was slightly
higher than the national average 27% (31st March 2016), our statistical
neighbours 28% (31st March 2016) and ‘Good’ local authorities 27% (31st
March 2016). However, this year has shown a significant decrease in the use
of Section 20 agreements to 24% (31st March 2017).
The increase in the use of care orders and the comparative reduction in the
use of section 20 agreements are linked to the judgement made by the

Page 52

Page 15

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

President of the Family Division, Sir James Munby. He drew attention to the
misuse by a local authority of section 20 of the Children Act 1989, N
(Children) (Adoption: Jurisdiction) [2015] EWCA Civ 1112 , and
said 'steps must be taken as a matter of urgency to ensure that there is
no repetition ever again'.
As a result of this judgement Devon undertook a county-wide review of all
children looked after under section 20 agreements. The review concluded the
following;
•
•
•
•
•
•

Children and young people were spending too long looked after under
a Sec 20 voluntary agreement without this being reviewed
Permanency Planning work needed development to support a more
robust approach
Where thresholds for proceedings were met there was a delay in
issuing these proceedings
There was a lack of tracking to minimise delay and ensure best
practice
Improvements were needed to consider family/network options for
permanence.
IROs not having clear oversight of issues, challenging drift and delay in
planning, permanence achieving and issuing proceedings

Devon’s IROs were challenged to consider these findings and their role in
achieving permanence for children and young people. They were asked to
ensure more robust approach to permanency and planning, the latest data
shows that in 77% of cases permanence plan is in place at the second child in
care review, in line with statutory requirements, and that in 76% of cases a
child’s care plan is informed by a current and updated assessment with 80%
incorporating the views of the child or young person. IROs are also
consulted/informed in 82% of cases of important changes between reviews
demonstrating a much better working relationship between IROs and social
workers.
Placement orders have shown some growth over the same time period with a
decline more recently, from 12 % (31st March 2012) increasing to 14% in 2013
and 2014 before falling to 8% (31st March 2016).

Page 53

Page 16

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

Gender and Age of looked after children
50
45
40
35
30

Devon - 2016

25

Devon - 2017

20

South West

15
10
5
0

1 to 4

5 to 9

10 to 15

16 and over

(Fig 4. Age of looked after children)

Nationally, 56% (31st March 2016) of children looked after were male and 44%
female. These figures have varied little over recent years. Devon was in line
with these figures (57% male, 43% female – 31st March 2016). This year has
seen a change to this with 60% of CHIC being male and 40% female (31st
March 2017)
The age profile of looked after children has continued to change over the last
four years, with a steady increase in the number and proportion of older
children becoming looked after. 62% of children looked after were aged 10
years and over in 2016 compared with 56% in 2012. Devon has 67% of
children looked after within this age bracket. Devon follows the national trend
in the reduction in the number and proportion of children aged 1-4 years, from
18% of the looked after population in 2012 to 13% in 2016, and a small
decrease in the number and proportion of children aged under-1 years (from
6% in 2012 to 5% in 2016).
40
30

Blue = 2016

20

Orange = 2017

10
16 and over

10 to 15

5 to 9

1 to 4

Under 1

0

(Fig 5 – Children who started to be Looked After in Devon by age, by percentage)

Page 54

Page 17

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

Comparing 2016 to 2017; Devon had a percentage decrease in 0 to 9 year old
and an increase in 10 to 17 year olds starting to be looked after.
Devon tends to reflect the national trend for children and young people
coming into our care at a later age. The figure has remained relatively stable
over the past five years. The number of children under the age of ten coming
into our care has decreased, whilst we have seen an increase of 3% in young
people between 11-15 years of age and a 2% increase in young people over
the age of 16. Devon, demonstrates a higher percentage of 10 to 15 year old
becoming looked after (37%, up 5% on 2016) to its statistical neighbours and
‘Good’ authorities (approx. 30%). The development of Early Help, Child in
Need services and the current pilot programme ‘Edge of Care’ should see an
impact on the number of older children becoming looked after.
Importantly, in the coming year, we will need to develop a better
understanding of our looked after child population in respect of gender
identity, it is no longer satisfactory to define population simply by male and
female and we need to develop a system of recording which allows for all
aspects of gender to be defined.
Ethnicity of looked after children

Devon - 2016
Other ethnic
groups
0%

Black or Black
British
1%
Asian or Asian
British
0%

Other
0%

Mixed
3%

White
96%
(Fig 6. Ethnicity of looked after children 2016)

Page 55

Page 18

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

Devon - 2017

Black or Black
British
1%

Other ethnic
groups
2%

Asian or Asian
British
2%

Other
0%

Mixed
3%

White
92%
(Fig. 7 Ethnicity of looked after children 2017)

The ethnicity of Devon’s looked after child population is in line with their
statistical neighbours, as of 31st March 2016, White 92%, Mixed Ethnicity 3%,
Black/Black British 2%, other ethnic groups 2%. This year has seen a
decrease in the White population by 4% (31st March 2017) and a
corresponding increase for other ethnic groups.
The figures detailing the ethnicity of the population of Devon, taken from the
2017 Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA), highlights a white population
of 95%. Whilst caution has to be taken to extrapolate meaning from these
figures, as they represent the entire child and adult population, and are based
on the census of 2011, we can see that children in care in 2016 roughly
mirrors that of the overall population reported within the JSNA. However, this
year we have seen a change to this with a reduction in the percentage of
white children looked after to 92%, lower than the defined white population of
Devon and a corresponding increasing in children looked after from a different
ethnic background. This increase is most likely explained by the increase in
unaccompanied asylum seeking young people who are looked after in Devon
following the agreement to support a group of young people from the Calais
camp during August 2016.

Nationally the biggest representation within the looked after child population
was 75% White (31st March in 2016.) Children of Mixed Ethnicity were the
next largest group 9% followed by Black/Black British 7 %, Asian/Asian British
4%, and other ethnic groups 3%.

Page 56

Page 19

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

Children who ceased to be looked after

365 children and young people ceased to be looked after during the course of
the reporting year to 31st March 2017. The table below shows where these
young people ‘left care’ to and compares both statistical neighbours and
‘Good’ local authorities.

Percentage number of children

Reasons why children ceased to be looked
after in Devon 2016 / 2017
35%
30%
25%
20%
15%
10%
5%
0%

Devon 2016
Devon 2017

Reason

(Fig. 8 Children ceased to be looked after –Devon)

Page 57

Page 20

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

Percentage of children

Reasons why children ceased to be looked after in
Devon compared to our statistical neighbours and
'good' local authorities 2016

35%
30%
25%
20%
15%
10%
5%

Devon 2016

0%

Statistical Neighbours 2016
Good' Local Authorities 2016

Reasons

(Fig.9 Children ceased to be looked after Devon and comparators - 2016)

The data provided evidences that the number of children adopted from Devon
to year ending 31st March 2017 has increased from the previous year as the
proportion of children adopted from ‘care’ to match the average figure for a
‘Good’ authority. Nationally there were 4,690 (31st March 2016) looked after
children adopted; 7% of the looked after population.
Devon appears to out-perform both its statistical neighbours and ‘Good’
authorities in the percentage of children and young people returning home to
live with their parents in a planned exit. We can see from the figure 9, that
Devon has helped over 30% of looked after children return home to their
families, compared to 20% for our statistical neighbours and ‘Good’ local
authorities. This could however indicate that Devon is taking children into care
that in other Local Authorities would be managed in the community. Further
analysis to explore this will be undertaken.
There has seen an increase in the number of young people moving to
supported/independent living from 3% to 16% in 2017. This figure includes
‘staying put’ arrangements, where young people remain living with their foster
carers for periods of up to three years.

Page 58

Page 21

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

Health of Looked After Children

This section considers a range of health issues, including both physical and
emotional health indicators.
Devon
2016

2017

South West
Average
2016

Statistical
Neighbours
2016

Immunisations
49% 90%
83%
Dental Checks
75%
83%
81%
Developmental
67%
86%
62%
Assessments
Figure 10 Health of looked after children

87%
83%
69%

‘Good’ Local
Authorities
2016
96%
91%
79%

The above table demonstrates a significant improvement during the course of
the reporting year across all three areas of health data.
There has been a 41% increase in looked after children receiving the
appropriate immunisations and positive increases in dental checks and
development al assessments.
A social work and health forum has been established to support improvement
in this area of practice and this has supported this incremental improvement;
we expect to see this continue to improve with continued focus.
IROs have played a role in ensuring looked after children receive
immunisations and dental checks and regularly report on this through the
review process. We have focussed on these aspects of care this year and
contributed to these improving figures.
Substance misuse in children who have been looked after continuously
for at least 12 months
80

40

2017

2016

0

(Fig. 11 Substance misuse in looked after children population – Devon)

The number of children with a recorded substance misuse problem has
increased from 3.5% of the CHIC population to 10% in 2017-08-07; this is in
part due to better recording and reporting, but also reflects the age profile of
the care population. The trend will need to be analysed over the coming year
with health partners to review this further.

Page 59

Page 22

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

Devon has worked hard to ensure these children are offered a service to
address their substance misuse. In 2016 (see below) 40% received an
intervention, 20% were offered but refused and 30% received no offer.

2017 saw (see below) 98% of children offered a service with 64% receiving an
intervention, 34% refusing and only 2% not being offered a service.
40%

2016
40%
Green = % offered and
received intervention
Amber = % offered but
refused intervention
Red = % not offered
intervention

20%

2%

2017

34%
64%
(Figs. 13 Substance misuse intervention)

This is an encouraging picture with more children being offered and engaging
in intervention to address their substance misuse, and in the context of a 7%
increase in children looked after being recorded as having a substance
misuse problem. Collectively all services are working together to address this
significant issue.
Emotional Health of 5 to 16 year old who have been looked after for
more than 12 months

2017

34%

Green = normal score
Yellow = borderline score

52%

Orange = concerning score
14%

(Fig 12. Strengths and Difficulties Questionnaire data)

The completed Strengths and Difficulties Questionnaires (SDQs) for 2017
evidence that 52% of looked after children who have had an SDQ completed
receive a ‘concerning’ score. This replicated the same figures for Devon in
2016. In comparison our statistical neighbours and ‘Good’ authorities average
between 40-43% of scores that are concerning. This would suggest that

Page 60

Page 23

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

children looked after in Devon have a higher level of need in respect of their
emotional and mental wellbeing than comparators. This is not surprising as
many children’s needs would have been less well addressed during the period
of inadequate Children’s Services in Devon.
The new CAMH’s pathway developed during the course of the reporting year
is designed to redress this elevated need.
Care Leavers

16

2016

15

45

2017

41

44

39
Green = in Higher
Education/Education/
Training or Employment
Red = Not in any of the above
Grey = no data

(Fig 13. Outcomes for Care Leavers aged 19 -21

The data shows an increased number of young people (5%) not in education,
training or employment. There are a number of reasons such as illness,
pregnancy, disability, young parents and one also has to consider the
economic climate within which this data is collected.
Based on 2016 data, of the 26,340 former care leavers aged 19, 20 and 21
years old, 10,460 (40%) were not in employment, education or training
(NEET), compared with 14% of all 19 to 21 year olds.
This is an area for continued improvement.
The data also demonstrate an increase in the numbers of young people we
are remaining in contact with. This performance in comparison to our
statistical neighbours, ‘Good’ authorities and the South West shows we are
under-performing in relation to them, with our comparators in touch with all but
8% of their care leavers. The keeping in touch data is subject to further
analysis, this report will be refreshed once the analysis is completed.
The IROs are keeping in touch with more care leavers over time. While their
statutory responsibility to chair reviews and monitor their case ends at 18,
they are increasingly identifying young people they monitor and keep in touch
with for a period of time to ensure transition plans are in place. This is a
practice we will continue to support as part of ongoing practice improvement.

Page 61

Page 24

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

Children’s participation, feedback and promoting the voice of the child
Devon IROs are committed to ensuring that children and young people have
their voice heard and are as fully engaged in their care as possible. Children’s
participation can take many forms e.g. through personal attendance at
reviews, through the completion of the consultation documents, through
meetings and conversation with IROs, and the use of advocacy services etc.

Percentage of children participating in their Child in Care
Review Meeting
November 2016 - March 2017
Child under 4 (PNO)

9%

14%

Child attends and speaks for themselves (PN1)

14%

Child attends and an advocate speaks on their behalf
(PN2)
Child attends and conveys views symbolically (PN3)

12%
1%
1%

Child attends but does not share views (PN4)

43%
6%

Child does not attend, advocate attends (PN5)
Child does not attend, uses facilitative medium (sends
views / MOMO) (PN6)
Child did not attend, nor are their views coveyed
(PN7)

(Fig.15 Children participating in reviews)

Did the IRO meet / consult with the child / young person prior to
their review (aged 4 and over)
60%
50%
40%

Did the IRO meet / consult
with the child / young person
prior to their review (aged 4
and over)

30%
20%
10%
0%

Percentage 31.03.2016

Percentage 31.03.2017

(Fig.17 Pre-review visits/consultation)

Page 62

Page 25

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

Devon IROs seek to ensure that all young people are visited/consulted as part
of their review process. Improving on our pre-review visits/consultations has
been a key target for IROs this year. There has been a 19% increase in prereview visits from 31st March 2016; continued improvement has been a
requirement. Whilst higher caseloads have had an impact on IRO capacity, an
increase in IRO staffing has been agreed and there is an expectation that all
children will be consulted and their views will be evidenced in all but
exceptional cases and these will be reported upon.
IROs have also worked hard this year to ensure that more children and young
people are consulted about when and where their reviews take place and who
attends their reviews. IROs aim to meet with children and young people
before their reviews, ideally not on the day of the review. This is difficult for
those placed at a distance and is not always possible. The data above shows
that in excess of 70% of children and young people are being consulted about
their reviews, this is the first time we have collected this data and whilst
encouraging we need to improve on this figure.
The way in which information is made available to young people and how they
can better contribute to key planning or decision making meetings was a focus
for IROs following work we completed with the Children’s Participation Team.
We now have a higher level of participation by young people in their reviews,
this was the culture and expectation set as part of the development for the
past year, we have worked with the Children’s Participation Team to produce
a ‘know your rights’ leaflet which is now distributed at initial reviews, more
children and young people are participating and chairing/co/chairing their
reviews and being consulted on their reviews.
Review of the IRO role undertaken by Devon’s children in care council:
In October 2016, the IRU agreed a piece of work be undertaken to review
their approach. This review involved the IROs having their practice observed
and reviewed by care experienced young people. Young people offered direct
feedback to the IRO and provided a report to the unit. We were pleased to
note that the young people evidenced some good quality practice from IROs
but they presented us with some significant challenges to the way we
conducted reviews and kept children and young people at the centre of their
reviews.
The major findings were as follows:
1. Children and Young People should know who their IRO is. The review
found that not all children were aware of who their IRO was or knew
why their IRO was working with them
2. Not all children received a pre-review visit
3. Children and Young people should have the opportunity to chair or cochair their reviews,
4. Children and Young People should be enabled to know their rights as
looked after children

Page 63

Page 26

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

5. All IROs should practice in accordance with their professional
standards and responsibilities

As a result the IROs drew up an action plan to address these issues. These
were incorporated into our improvement plan and are outlined earlier in this
document.
We still have some things to complete and they are in on-going development.
a) We have asked the Children’s Participation Team to develop a programme
of observations of IROs, to support an IRO in their practice development and
to feed this into their annual appraisal. We will work jointly to define the
parameters of this, but we believe it important that, if we are true to our aim in
achieving the best possible outcomes for looked after children, we are open to
challenge by care experienced young people
b) The Children’s Participation Team have suggested that they present “In
your Shoes’ training to IROs and develop guidance on how to promote real
choice. We have accepted this offer and will work closely with them over the
next year to put this in place.
Our work with the team continues to develop and we see this relationship as
crucial to ensuring that children remain at the centre of our practice. We
believe the challenge and support they can provide will serve to enhance the
direct work of IRO’s and ensure we remain focussed on ensuring that the child
remains at the centre of our practice. The aim is that we learn from our young
people and provide a real opportunity for them to support and influence how
services and the work of the IRO develop. They have already provided
support and challenge to us in developing IRO business cards, we have an
IRO linked directly with the Children in Care Council and as part of the work
by the Authority on placement stability we are looking at the possibility of
young care experienced people becoming part of an annual check of foster
care placements, which includes them training as ‘young inspectors’
Feedback from young people
IROs encourage direct feedback from children and young people and below
are extracts from feedback received by IROs.

“instead of everyone
making them
(decisions)for
me you give me the
chance to say what I
wanted”

“I just want to say thank you for everything
you have done for me, I wouldn’t have been
able to get through most of things without you”

“even if I asked for something that you
thought was impossible to get you would
still try”

Page 64

Page 27

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

Advocacy

Access to advocacy is a statutory right looked after children under the
Children Act 1989 but only when making or planning to make a complaint.
Statutory guidance recognises that children may need advocacy without the
need to first make a complaint and when they wish to make representations
about their care or the services they receive.
Statutory guidance on care planning and reviews states:
‘Where a child has difficulty in expressing his/her wishes and feelings about
any decisions being made about him/her, consideration must be given to
securing the support of an advocate.’
Similarly The IRO Handbook 2010 states:
‘When meeting with the child before every review, the IRO is responsible for
making sure that the child understands how an advocate could help and
his/her entitlement to one. Advocacy is an option available to children
whenever they want such support and not just when they want to make a
formal complaint.’
The advocacy service for young people in Devon is provided by the National
Youth Advisory Service (NYAS) and has been in place since 01/04/2014, a
one year extension to the contract is in place for this year.
NYAS has significantly overachieved against the targets specified within the
contract. This was agreed between NYAS and the Children’s Commissioning
service. Commissioners are currently considering a business case for
sustaining the funding for this service for the next contract period.
60% of the advocacy service was used for children attending child protection
conferences, 31% of advocacy used was for supporting children in their
looked after reviews. The remaining 8% was spilt across transition, support,
care leavers, complaints and secure reviews.
It will be important that any newly commissioned service addresses the issue
of capacity for looked after children. It is positive that significant numbers of
children attending child protection conferences access an advocate, twice that
of looked after children.
Promoting inclusion and collaboration with families

Were parents consulted and where
appropriate supported to
attend/contribute

67% (31st March 2017)

IROs are committed to ensuring that parents are consulted about the care
provided for their children during the review process (unless this would raise a
serious safeguarding concern). The data does not detail how many young
people declined their parent’s inclusion, this would likely relate to older (16+)

Page 65

Page 28

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

young people or where we are caring for children where there is no on going
contact with parents. This would likely increase this figure a little. We will need
to develop this data collection to provide a more accurate reflection of parental
engagement and inclusion.
This year (2016-2017) we introduced a parental consultation form, designed
and developed by the IROs. With the direction of the IROs, these forms are
sent to all parents prior to reviews. We are not currently able to collate the
return figures. However, below are extracts from returned consultation forms
received during the year:
Question: What do you think about where your child lives?

“ as far as I can see …..is being
cared for, however, I don’t know
much about her placement, her
foster carer, or her routines, so I
find it difficult to comment”
“ She is in
a safe
place”
“I think it is a very homely and suitable
place…the carers and their family are very
kind and welcoming and has been a nice
safe place for …….to be in”

Question: What are your views on the plan for your child?

“at present the plan already has my agreement, but the
future plan for my child would obviously mean for me to
have her back with me”
“Carry
on as
they
are”
“I hope that …will come home with us …with
the right exit plan”

Page 66

Page 29

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17
Question: How are contact arrangements working for you and your child?
“OK”

“the contact visits are
going well”

Question: What do you think is important to discuss at the review meeting?

“how ….is getting on at school, how she is coping with the way
things are at the moment, what ……….wishes are, what the
future plans may be?”

“I would like to spend more time with
…….. once every six months for an hour
is not enough”

Problem Solving /Dispute Resolution Process for Looked after Children
The local authority must have in place a formal process for the IRO to raise
concerns in respect of the care planning process and ensure that this process
is respected and prioritised by managers (Children Act 1989). The process
involves escalating the matter in dispute through a number of levels of
seniority within the service with identified timescales at each stage. Guidelines
state escalations should be completed within 20 days of one being raised.
Any escalation of concern is reported on monthly and usually fall into specific
areas of concern 1) Planning, 2) Participation, 3) Assessment, 4) Delay in
achieving agreed outcomes and 5) Delay in achieving permanence.
We are only able to report on escalations raised until October 2016 due to
reporting issues in our management information service. The following
escalations have been made

Page 67

Page 30

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

Number of escalations

Reasons for Escalations as at 31.10.16
180
160
140
120
100
80
60
40
20
0

Planning

Participation Assessment

Delay in
achieving
agreed
outcomes

Delay in
achieving
permanence

Left blank

Reasons

(Fig.18 Escalations)

Number of escalations

Total Number of Escalations as at 31.10.16
400
350
300
250
200
150
100
50
0

Total Numbers

Total Escalations

LAC

CP

Category of Escalation

(Fig. 19 – total escalations)

From these figures we can see that over 58% of escalations related to
assessment and planning.
The current average timescale for a resolution of an escalation is 42 days.
This has been reduced significantly through a process of cleansing the data
and resolving/closing down escalations that were open for significant periods
of time, a few remain and this is being addressed. IROs are aware that all
escalations must be resolved within 20 working days, unless for exceptional
and agreed circumstances. This has resulted in the escalation process
becoming more robust and we are now seeing a greater number of
escalations being raised at stages 4 and 5, none were recorded before
December 2016, rather than remaining unresolved and left to drift.

Page 68

Page 31

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

Examples of effective escalations on behalf of children;
A)

IRO formally requested a child remain in placement, rather than being
moved as they believed it was not considered to be in their best
interests. The IRO asked the LA to ensure required changes identified
for the placement were undertaken within an agreed timescale before a
placement move was further considered. The child remained in
placement and the concerns were addressed to the satisfaction of all
parties. This was a stage 4 escalation

B)

An IRO challenged on behalf of young person the implementation of
changes to the birthday allowances for CHIC. These changes were
rescinded until further consultation had taken place.

Page 69

Page 32

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

Part 3: Child Protection Planning

Developments during 2016-2017 – Stronger Families: Safer Children
In February 2017, Devon launched its new strengths-based conferencing
model, Stronger Families; Safer children. This followed a six month period of
planning and preparation across the multi-agency partnership.
The aim is to improve the effectiveness of child protection planning so that the
involvement of professionals is reduced and planning delivers improved safety
and wellbeing both in the short term and over the child’s lifetime. To do so in
a way that acknowledges and harnesses the contributions that families can
make to shape their own destinies. Too often social work has over-focused
on deficits and minimised the family’s inherent capacity, privileging the
professional voice and eroding families’ own capabilities.
Lord Justice Munby 2016 publicly criticised the deficit models that often
pervade practice and Child Protection Conferencing, leading to a
‘blame/shame’ investigative culture, which does little to deliver positive
outcomes in the long term and may in fact do further harm.
In Devon, child protection numbers have fluctuated with some sharp rises and
falls suggestive of an inconsistency in decision-making thresholds. Findings
from audits and data indicated increasing numbers of re-registrations, high
numbers of short registrations (less than three months) and high numbers of
extended registrations – indicators of a below optimal child protection planning
service.
In terms of its methodology Stronger Families: Safer Children draws upon
strengths-based, relationship-based, restorative practice models and in
addition, draws on current evidence and research regarding good practice in
child protection planning and social work practice.
Devon’s model balances a rigorous exploration of danger/harm alongside
indicators of strengths and safety but is strongly focused on harnessing,
developing and targeting those positive areas far more intensively and
deliberately.
The model depends upon a collaborative approach in which families receive a
strong and explicit message that we will try to develop a trusting and positive
working relationship with them. We will help them identify their own strengths
and resources and be crystal clear about what we are worried about and what
we need to do together to bring about positive change. Parents, families and
children must be central to and not a passive recipient of each stage of
assessment and planning.
The intended outcomes of Devon’s new conferencing model include;
improved partnership, family communication and participation, improved
quality of information sharing, improved risk analysis and planning; improved
focus on realistic short and long-term outcomes.

Page 70

Page 33

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

We would therefore expect to see the following evidence of success in the
short term; feedback, observations, data, audits and other quality assurance
mechanisms that evidence; improved engagement and participation of
families and clearer understanding of plans and intended outcomes; clear,
realistic and safe plans; robust and consistent thresholds for step-in and
step-down; fewer children on short plans; fewer children on plans for longer
than 18 months; fewer repeat plans.
A multi-agency deep dive audit as part of Devon’s Quality Assurance
Framework and plan will take place in October 2017 and evaluate the early
indicators of the success of the model in achieving its aims.
In practice, transformative changes have been made to all aspects of the
conferencing process including;
1. Preparing and involving families – using a film developed by the IRU
for practitioners to use with families.
2. Quality Assurance Pre-meeting Screening – undertaken by the
conference chairs prior to conference being convened.
3. Formal reports are now required from all agencies before
conference.
4. The Meeting and Family Plan follows strengths and solution based
approach and key information is written up on boards during the
meeting to support transparency and partnership with families.
The model was introduced towards the end of this reporting year and
therefore positive outcomes will not be reportable in this report. This
will be a focus in next year’s annual report and quarterly reporting to
the partnership executive (DCFP)

Page 71

Page 34

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

Child Protection Service Performance

This section summarises key areas of performance during the course of the
reporting year. The first three figures consider the number of children subject
to child protection plans in Devon.
Overall number of children subject of CP planning April 2016 - April 2017

800
700
600
500
400
300
200
100
0
Mar-2017

Feb-2017

Jan-2017

Dec-2016

Nov-2016

Oct-2016

Sep-2016

Aug-2016

Jul-2016

Jun-2016

May-2016

Number of children

Apr-2016

Number of children

Number of children with a Child Protection Plan
April 2016 - March 2017 (N=442)

Months

On 31st March 2017, 442 were subject to child protection plans in Devon. This
had reduced over all from the steadily increasing number over the past 5
years.

Overall number of children subject of CP planning – 5 year comparison
Overall CP numbers
31st March 2011- 31st March 2017

800

Number of children

700
600
500
400
300
200
100
0

2011-12

2012-13

2013-14
2014-15
2015-16
Year
Number of Children with Current CP Plan at 31st March

Page 72

2016-17

Page 35

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

Overall number of children subject of CP planning – 5 year comparison
(rate per 10,000) compared to our statistical neighbours and South West
average

Number of children (rates per 10,000)

Overall CP numbers (rates per 10,000)
31st March 2012 - 31st March 2017
60
50
40
30

Devon

20
10

Statistical Neighbours
Average

0

South West Average

Year

As the three tables above demonstrate, child protection numbers have
fluctuated over the past five years and against our statistical neighbours.
Historical peaks are correlated with activity in light of Ofsted inspections and
the necessary internal review of the application of thresholds for child
protection planning.
Child protection plan numbers result from a complex interplay of factors,
including effectiveness of pre-conference statutory processes and legal
proceedings, the referring team practices, wider agency culture and practice,
step-down practices, effectiveness of planning and management and ISRO
oversight to make good decisions and to prevent drift. The analysis of the
causation of CPP numbers is therefore necessarily complex.
In 2015/2016: for Statistical Neighbours the rate was 52.3 per 10,000, for
South West, 57.4 and for England, 54.2 Overall, numbers of children subject
of a plan have declined significantly over the period of 2016/2017.
The current number falls below the average statistical neighbour figures and
showed signs of stabilising during the third quarter, however since that time,
numbers have risen again.
In January 2017, the IRU started to screen all new requests in order to ensure
threshold stability at point of conference. The IRU also holds regular monthly
performance meetings to ensure increased consistency across the county in
respect of child protection conference thresholds/decision making.

Page 73

Page 36

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

A continual review of this practice and the application of thresholds is a priority
for the unit. This will help us support best practice as well as continue to
identify issues of concern for practice improvement in this area.
Percentage of children being made subject to a Child Protection Plan at
ICPC
Percentage of children being made subject to a CP plan at ICPC
April 2016 - March 2017

Percentage of children

120
100
80
60
40
20
0

Month

The new strengths based conference model was predicted to see an initial
rise in the number of CP plans if Devon’s experience mirrors other authorities
following implementation. However, it is hoped that this will stabilise as all
partners work to embed the new model with a consistent approach to
threshold.
The authorities developing approach to embedding an early help system and
improving our response to children in need will also serve to stabilise the
number of children requiring protection via a child protection plan.
Distribution of new CP plans across localities
The table below evidences the spread of child protection plans across the
county and helps each locality to understand the way in which decisions are
made. Of note is the number of children subject to a child protection plan in
the north locality. This is an area with a relatively high number of children in
need and in court proceedings. As a result of this, work is being undertaken
with the social work teams in this locality to seek to improve its approach to
ensuring children are responded to in a timely way at the earliest opportunity.
This will also support a developed understanding as to whether this number of
children (87) is an accurate reflection of risk in the locality.

Page 74

Page 37

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

The South locality has a fairly consistently higher rate of referral resulting in
an overall higher number of ICPC’s. Assumptions that this locality are
referring an inappropriately high number of cases is not supported by quality
assurance screening data however, which shows that the conversion to ICPC
rate is consistent at around 95% across the county, indicating South
thresholds for step-up on a par with others.

Distribution of new CP plans across
localities by numbers 2016 - 2017

Exeter, 112

South, 168

Mid & East,
120
North, 87

Distribution of new CP plans by number and month across localities.
In order to understand the data provided above, we have considered the
month levels of new child protection plans across the county and this
demonstrates a fluctuating position for all localities at various points
throughout the year.
These fluctuations relate to the end of school terms, when demand is always
increased (December, March and June/July). However, there are some
increases at different points of the year that will continue to be monitored. This
can be linked to large sibling groups coming to attention. In February 2017,
this links with the introduction of the new conference approach.

35
30
25
20

Exeter Number of children

15

Mid / East Number of children

10

North Number of children

5

South Number of children
Mar-2017

Feb-2017

Jan-2017

Dec-2016

Nov-2016

Oct-2016

Sep-2016

Aug-2016

Jul-2016

Jun-2016

May-2016

Apr-2016

0

Page 75

Page 38

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

Profile of Children

Age ranges and gender 2016 – 2017
This age profile of children subject to plans has fluctuated in line with an
ongoing pattern over the past 3 years. However, the number of young people
between 10-15 becoming and remaining subject to child protection plans has
slightly increased.
Age Ranges of children on a CP plan
01/04/16 - 31/03/17
Percentage of children

35
30
25
20
15
10
5
0

Unborn

Under 1
year

1-4 years

5-9 years 10-15 years 16+ years

Age range of children

Age ranges – 3 year comparison.

Percentage of children on a CP plan
within age range

The table below evidences the reasonable stable trend outlined above with a
slight increase in two groups of children aged between 1-4 years and 10-15
years. Child protection planning is most effective at the earliest opportunity.
Our work to support children in need and the early help system that is in
progress aims to impact positively on this profile in the coming year.
Percentage age ranges of children on a CP plan
01/04/13 - 31/03/17
35
30
25
20
15
10
5
0

Unborn
Under 1 year
1-4 years
5-9 years
10-15 years
16+ years

Year of age comparison

Page 76

Page 39

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

With regard to age, the date shows an increase in numbers across all ages in
2015/2016 and a fall back to just below previous levels on 2016-2017 in all
age groups, but a more marked reduction in child protection planning for 1015 year old and 16 + young people.
If this trend continues into 2017-2018, further evaluation of the potential
causes for this would be warranted.
Age comparison rate per 10,000 children for Devon and
England as at
31/03/2014 - 31/03/2017
18.0
16.0
14.0
12.0
10.0
8.0
6.0
4.0
2.0
0.0

Unborn
Under 1
1-4
5-9
10 - 15
England Devon England Devon England Devon England Devon
31/03/2014

31/03/2015

31/03/2016

16 and over

31/03/2017

Gender of children subject to child protection Plans
The data related to the gender of children subject to plans remains fairly
stable and is broadly in line with national comparators; with slightly more boys
than girls being made the subject of a plan.
The three year data regarding gender shows a predictable rise and fall of in
line with overall numbers and there does not appear to be any significant
anomaly or trend.

30.0
25.0
20.0
15.0
10.0
5.0
0.0
Devon

England

Devon

England

Devon

England

Devon

Male
England

Children: rate
per 10,000

Gender comparison rate per 10,000 children for Devon and
England as at
31/03/2014 - 31/03/2017

31/03/2014 31/03/2015 31/03/2016 31/03/2017
Year of comparison

Page 77

Female
Missing/Indeterminate
(includes Unborn)

Page 40

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

Ethnicity

The IRU considers reporting of ethnicity to be critical. Data is not currently
available in this area from the child’s electronic system; however, the addition
of this question to the screening tool will enable this to be extracted for
2017/2018. In addition, the change from Care First to Eclipse will support this
reporting going forward.
Categories of harm
Children are made subject to child protection plans under four main categories
(neglect, sexual abuse, physical abuse and emotional abuse). In Devon subcategories to these categories identifies where domestic abuse is also a
cause for significant concern. The table below shows the year’s trend in
respect of all four categories and their sub-category.
Number of children on a CP plan under each category of harm
April 2016 - March 2017

Number of children

600
500

Emotional

400

Emotional / Domestic Abuse

300

Neglect

200

Neglect / Domestic Abuse
Sexual

100

Sexual / Domestic Abuse

0

Physical
Physical / Domestic Abuse
Month

Neglect continues to dominate as the most frequently used category of harm
for children subject to child protection plans in Devon; this reflects the trend
over the past 5 years as the table below demonstrates. Emotional, physical
and sexual abuse all follow behind neglect respectively. This trend reflects
both statistical neighbour and national data. However, Devon’s rate of children
subject to a plan for neglect sits above our statistical neighbours (75% of all
children subject to a plan). Sexual abuse represents just less than 1.5% of all
children subject to a child protection plan at the end of the reporting year.

Page 78

Page 41

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

Numbers of children by category of abuse (2012-2017).

800
Number of children

700

Sexual - Domestic Abuse

600
500

Sexual

400

Physical - Domestic Abuse

300

Physical

200

Neglect - Domestic Abuse

100

Neglect

0

Years

Rate per 10,000 Children broken down per category (2012-2017)

Number of Children

60.0
50.0

Sexual - Domestic Abuse

40.0

Sexual

30.0

Physical - Domestic Abuse

20.0

Physical

10.0

Neglect - Domestic Abuse

0.0

Neglect
Emotional - Domestic Abuse
Emotional
Years

Page 79

Page 42

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

Periods of child protection planning

Child protection plans should only last as long as it takes to work with families
to reduce the level of risk identified or to plan for the removal of children
where the risk of harm is not resolvable for them despite all best efforts. It is
important to review our capacity to identify and intervene with families in a
timely way that supports the reduction of risk in most situations. As a result
any plan that lasts more than 2 years is a focus for particular review.
Length of time on plan 2016 - 2017

0-2 months inclusive
3-5 months inclusive
6-11 months inclusive
12-23 months inclusive
2-3 years
3+ years

Length of time on plan over five years (2012-2017)
800

Number of children

700
600
500

2+ years

400

12-23 months inclusive

300

6-11 months inclusive
3-5 months inclusive

200

0-2 months inclusive

100
0

2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17
Years

2016/2017 shows a decrease in the number child protection plans ending in
fewer than 3 months, as a result of focused management action in this area.
The number of plans lasting less than 3 months has reduced in December

Page 80

Page 43

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

and has been the subject of audit in the IRU with no single issue arising. All
child protection conference chairs are now required to inform the Operational
Manager for the IRU when a request is made to end plans within 3 months so
that the case is audited/quality assured prior to the first review conference.
This is already having an impact with cases being discussed prior to the
conference taking place to support evidenced based decision making. This
issue continues to be reviewed as part of the IRU monthly performance
meetings.
There has been a reduction in the numbers of medium term plans (3 -11
months) and a slight increase in the plans lasting longer than 12 months.
2017/2017 shows a slight increase in the number of CPP plans lasting longer
than 2 years. This was identified in a group of siblings who continued to live at
home during the course of protracted care proceedings. The decision to end
the plan awaited the outcome to ensure a clear protective plan was in place.

Repeat plans by percentage of child protection plans
Children can become the subject of child protection plans on more than one
occasion during their lives. It is important to monitor this practice in order to
ensure that the child protection planning process is as effective in reducing
harm or further protecting children if the risk is unlikely to reduce effectively
over time.
Repeat plans at any time in a child’s life
Child Protect Plan: CP Re-Registration
Percentage of children

30.00%
25.00%
20.00%
15.00%
10.00%
5.00%
0.00%

Devon

Good Local
Authority

Statistical
Neighbour

SW
Neighbour

2015-16

England

Devon
2016-17

Area

The percentage of children subject to a child protection plan more than once
in their childhood has risen during 2016-2017 and sits at the upper end of

Page 81

Page 44

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

statistical neighbour comparison. This was one of the catalysts for the
development of the new conferencing model.

Children subject to a repeat child protection plan within the past 2 years is
14% and this sits within the statistical neighbour and national average figures.
Repeat planning is the subject of monthly evaluation by the IRU, in order to
ensure that child protection plans are not being ended before the risks are
fully addressed and that families are supported effectively to sustain changes
when plans are ended.
When a second or subsequent CP conference process is requested, the IRU
review requests using the quality assurance screening tool and the social
work team is asked to consider this carefully.
Participation in Child Protection Conference decision making Promoting the voice of the child
The demand, from the independent provider (NYAS), for advocacy to young
people increased dramatically in 2016-2017 This impacted adversely the
number of children able to access independent advocacy. Management action
during April 2017 has gone some way to creating more capacity in the service
but more is needed and this is the subject of current commissioning/contract
review.
The IRU is committed to the principle of advocacy for all young people who
are the subject of or likely to become subject of child protection planning and
for their voice to be central to our planning. Children are supported by
advocates in a number of ways, through attending meetings with them,
sharing their views in their absence or helping them to convey their views in
writing.
The table below represents the increase in requests during the early part of
2016 when child protection plans had reached 764 children; the highest level
for the previous 5 years. The contract for commissioned advocacy was
challenged as a result of this. This issue has been eased by the reducing
number of plans.

Page 82

Page 45

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17
Advocacy Referrals made to NYAS by the IRU
Arpil 2016 - April 2017

Number of referrals made

140
120
100
80
Secure

60

Child in Care Review

40

Child in Care Initial

20

Child Protection Review
Child Protection Initial

0

Month

Promoting inclusion and collaboration with families
The IRU has developed a new model and approach that shifts the role of the
family significantly from passive recipient to active and expert participant.
A parents’ panel was initiated prior to the launch of the model to scrutinise and
support the family-focus of the new model. Feedback from the group was
constructive and positive. The work of this group continues and it is hoped will
support further development of the model and a peer to peer advocacy
service in 2017/2018.
Parents are contacted prior to a conference by the conference chair, receive
information about the conference in writing and have access to on-line guides
and films about conferencing.
Consideration is given, by the conference chair and social worker, to how
young people and their families will be supported to attend and engage
meaningfully with the work of the conference. Young people and their families
are invited to bring a report of their own to the meeting and to spend time
preparing their views.
The two tables below evidence parental participation in conferences by
number and percentage to indicate the variety of success in ensuring all
significant adults are supported to participate.

Page 83

Page 46

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17
Number of parents attending conferences (2016-2017)

Number of parents / significant others attendance at CP
meetings 01/04/2016 - 31/03/2017
Number who attended

200
150
100
50
0

Mother with PR

Father with PR Significant Other
with PR

Father - No PR

Parent's attendance

Percentage of parents attending

Percentage of parents attending conferences (2016-2017)
Percentage of Parents / Significant Ohers attending CP
Meetings
01/04/16 - 31/03/17
100
80
60
40
20
0

Mother with PR

Father with PR Significant Other
with PR

Father - No PR

*PR: Parental Responsibility

Timeliness of child protection conferences
Working Together to Safeguard Children (2015) sets out clear timescales
within which key child protection conferences should take place to support
timely planning, review and decision making.

Page 84

Page 47

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

ICPC’s held within statutory timescales 2016-2017 (2012-2017)

Percentage meeting timescales

100%
80%
60%
40%
20%
0%

2011-12
2012-13
2013-14Years 2014-15
2015-16
2016-17
Held more than 15 working days after S47 Held within 15 working days of S47
Timeliness of ICPC’s relies on the pre-conference statutory processes
(strategy meetings and s47 investigations) being completed in a timely way;
the IRU receiving notification from locality teams in a timely way and the
allocation of ISROs and quality assurance screening being completed in line
with IRU standards (within two working days). In most cases, this is achieved
but timescales are vulnerable to multiple potential delays, many of which sit
outside the governance of the IRU.
When requests for meetings are received late and timescales are impacted
the IRU operations managers seeks evaluation from the locality team
manager and any learning or changes to process are agreed.
RCPC’s held within statutory timescales – 5 year comparison

Percentage meeting timescale

100%
80%
60%
40%
20%
0%

2011-12

2012-13
2013-14Years 2014-15
2015-16
Reviewed outside the required timescales

2016-17

The timeliness of RCPC’s during 2016-2017 is of the highest standards.
Where decisions have been made to allow reviews outside timescales this is

Page 85

Page 48

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

almost always linked to the family’s needs or circumstances (births,
bereavements).

Part 4: The Local Authority Designated Officer (LADO)
Service
This section of the report provides an overview of the work of the LADO,
including updates and developments since the last report, the nature of
allegations received, the timeliness of the LADO response, multi-agency
participation and outcomes. The report will also highlight any trends or gaps in
current provision, set out the measures intended to address these and outline
the future aspirations and plans of the service.

Who is the LADO?
Every Local Authority has a statutory responsibility to have a Local Authority
Designated Officer (LADO) who is responsible for co-ordinating the response
to concerns that an adult who works with children may have caused them or
could cause them harm
The Local Authority Designated Officer (LADO) works within Children’s
Services and gives advice and guidance to employers, organisations and
other individuals who have concerns about the behaviour of an adult who
works with children and young people. Included in this group are volunteers,
agency staff and foster carers as well as people who are in a position of
authority and have regular contact with children, such as religious leaders,
political figures or school governors.
What is the LADO’s role?
The Role of the LADO is set out in Working Together 2015 and includes a
range of duties. In most Local Authorities, including Devon, the LADO also
fulfils additional roles, set out in ‘The Work of the Devon LADO’, below. The
statutory functions are:
•

•

•

To coordinate the safeguarding and investigative process in
response to allegations made against people working with
children.
To provide advice/guidance to employers or voluntary
organisations, including when and how to share information and
take action;
To liaise with police and other agencies including Ofsted and
professional bodies.

Page 86

Page 49

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17
•

•
•
•
•

To monitor the progress of referrals to ensure they are dealt with
as quickly as possible, consistent with a thorough and fair
process;
To resolve any inter-agency issues;
To collect strategic data and maintain a confidential database in
relation to allegations;
To disseminate learning from LADO enquiries throughout the
children’s workforce;
To ensure that measures are in place to prevent further harm or
abuse and that where required, referrals are made to the
appropriate social care team.

Work undertaken by LADO
Knowledge and understanding about the role of the LADO –
professionals and subjects, children and families.
Comprehensive information and guidance is now on the DSCB website for
anyone wishing to have an understanding of the LADO role. It includes advice
for organisations; attending a LADO managing allegations strategy meeting;
what happens when an allegation is made against you; and when there are
concerns about your personal life. There is also a link to an online referral
form.
Workshops have been developed and promoted through the DSCB. To date,
three sessions have been held across the county. Attendance in South Devon
and Exeter has been good; North Devon was not so well attended. Feedback
has generally been positive, though the LADO team have planned a review of
the content of the workshop in order to capture any improvements required. It
is clear that staff in primary partner agency roles are attending, whilst those in
voluntary roles are not currently represented and there is work to be done by
the service in ensuring that information reaches as wide a range of
organisations as possible (see action plan). It is envisaged that workshops will
continue on a regular basis to ensure the LADO role continues to be promoted
and information disseminated.
Information sharing practices
A standardised letter has been created and is sent to the subject at the
conclusion of the LADO enquiry. Participants are informed of the final
outcome by email, and generally the referrer is one of these. It is not always
appropriate for the referrer to be informed of an outcome – for example if this
is a member of the public – however, they are made aware that the
information they have provided has been dealt with appropriately.
A standardised agenda has been created to ensure consistency in meetings
and by LADO chairs. This includes recording details of how the subject,
children and families will be informed and supported during the process.

Page 87

Page 50

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

The LADOs continue to deal with sensitive information and seek guidance on
the sharing of this as appropriate through the Information Governance team,
HR colleagues and LADOs in other areas if appropriate.
Timeliness of conclusion of LADO enquiries.
The LADO team are pro-actively following up with the police where there are
delays in charging decisions or in investigations. Reviews are booked in to
ensure that the progress of cases is monitored and that timescales are
created.
Service response to complex cases involving safeguarding concerns in
whole organisations – including those requiring whole-service
investigation, and where there are identified gaps in safeguarding
practice.
A protocol for whole service investigations has been developed to ensure a
clearer understanding of lines of responsibility and reporting.
Collaboration with colleagues in Adult Services to identify common themes
and differences where whole service investigations involve adults and children
is currently under way and co-production of working protocols will result.
Planning is underway for a re-structure of the LADO service in order to ensure
effective gatekeeping of referrals is in place, and to free up LADOs to
undertake other tasks such as dissemination of practice and learning.
Monthly meetings have been established with the Police Public Protection
Units to facilitate a better understanding of roles and responsibilities.
Agreement has been reached with MASH Team Managers around attendance
at meetings where individuals (both adults and children) involved in
allegations are not known to CYPS, or have been closed for more than 6
months.
Team attendance at the South West LADO meetings continues to contribute
to the sharing of skills and knowledge across the region.
The team have developed the use of Words of Advice meetings to address
gaps in criteria where, for example, someone is self-employed and not in a
regulated activity, but there are concerns about practice which do not meet
criminal threshold.

Page 88

Page 51

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17
LADO performance data
1. Referrals

1.1. In this reporting period, the LADO team has received 596 referrals for
the year April 2016 to March 2017. The same period for 2015/2016
saw a total of 470 - an increase of 126.
Total No. Referrals by month
Total No. Referrals by month
80
70
60
50
40
30
20
10
0

Apr

May

Jun

Jul

Aug

Sep

Oct

15/16 for comparison

Nov

Dec

Jan

Feb

Mar

16/17

9.2 .This increase in referral rates over time is reflective of regional and
national trends.
9.3 .When referrals are received; guidance or advice only is often required as
concerns do not fit the criteria to convene a Managing Allegations
Strategy Meeting. However the advice may be that the organisation
needs to conduct an internal investigation or other action, and they are
requested to inform the LADO of the outcome of their actions. Outcomes
at guidance and advice stage therefore vary widely.
9.4 .As can be seen in the graph above, the busiest month for referrals in
reporting period 15/16 and 16/17 was March, with 73 being made both
years. The reasons for this are not clear at present and a review of the
referrals received for this month may identify some themes.

Page 89

Page 52

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

(NFA = no further action; MAS = managing allegations strategy meeting; WIP= work in
progress; WAM= words of advice meeting)

9.5 .The trends shown above suggest that the increase in referrals may be
reflective of increasing numbers of inappropriate referrals, or referrals
which have required advice only.
9.6 .The number of referrals resulting in Managing Allegations Strategy
(MAS) meetings for the last 6 months has decreased, whereas there has
been a steady increase in the number of referrals resulting in No Further
Action (NFA). There may be a number of reasons for this, including
greater awareness of the LADO service through the workshops which
isn’t yet converting to more appropriate referrals being made, and
reporting expectations from Ofsted.
9.7 .The aim of the workshops and the guidance on the DSCB website is to
empower organisations and agencies to make clearer and more accurate
decisions about what constitutes a referral. It is hoped that as agency
confidence increases, more appropriate referrals will be made, resulting
in fewer NFA’s and possibly more MAS meetings.
9.8 .The planned restructure of the LADO service has included consideration
of a referral coordinator role, which, if implemented, would enable a
strong front-line advice service to meet the broader aims of the service in
terms of awareness-raising and identification of themes and trends for
service improvement.

Page 90

Page 53

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

2. Nature of Allegations
2.1.

If, following liaison and initial investigation, a MAS Meeting is
warranted, the LADO coordinates the meeting, multi-agency
responses and actions.

2.2.

The nature or type of concerns considered by the LADO continues to
vary widely. The trend over the last two reporting periods has seen a
continuation in reporting concerns of a physical nature and practice
issues. It is hoped that continued multi-agency training and awareness
may result in a clearer understanding of what constitutes an allegation,
and therefore greater consistency in referral type.

% Allegation by Type
100%
Pending/not shown

90%

Mental Health Issues

80%

Inappropriate Behaviours

70%

Use of Alcohol/Drugs

60%

Neglect

50%

Physical
Safeguarding Issues

40%

Practice Issues

30%

Grooming

20%

Sexual Touching

10%
0%

Sexual indecent images
Sexual
(15/16 Q1 Q2) (15/16 Q3 Q4) (16/17 Q1 Q2) (16/17 Q3 Q4)

3. Referral Source and Subject
11.1. The source and subject of referrals is heavily weighted towards
education, foster care and the police. Given the proximity and
frequency of contact between education professionals and children,
the strong representation of education in referral sources and subjects
is not unexpected. Increasing trends in concerns relating to education
professionals however, is an area that requires more consideration
with our education partners and will be raised through the dedicated
Safeguarding in Education monthly meetings.

Page 91

Page 54

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

Number of allegations by referral source

Allegation by subject (percentage)

Page 92

Page 55

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

Outcomes

MAS meetings are sometimes able to conclude the outcome of a concern at
an initial meeting. Sometimes however, additional information is needed
through the completion of actions agreed at the initial meeting and attendees
need to re-convene once, or more often in complex cases.
At the final meeting, members of the strategy meeting will decide whether the
allegation is:
1. Substantiated: where there is sufficient identifiable evidence to
prove the allegation;
2. False: where there is sufficient evidence to disprove the allegation;
3. Malicious: where there is clear evidence to prove there has been a
deliberate act to deceive and the allegation is entirely false;
4. Unfounded: where there is no evidence or proper basis which
supports the allegation being made. It might also indicate that the
person making the allegation misinterpreted the incident or was
mistaken about what they saw. Alternatively they may not have been
aware of all the circumstances;
5. Unsubstantiated: this is not the same as a false allegation. It
means that there is insufficient evidence to prove or disprove the
allegation; the term therefore does not imply guilt or innocence.
Where concerns are unfounded or unsubstantiated, it may still require further
internal investigation by the employer or other action to be taken and does not
necessarily mean there are no concerns at all.
Outcomes of referrals

Page 93

Page 56

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

Timeliness of LADO response

The performance of the LADO service in ensuring meetings take place in a
timely way has seen a slight decrease in the last 6 months. Only 5 meetings
have not been held within five days of receipt of referral, the same as the
previous reporting period. However, as there has been a decrease in the
number of MAS meetings being held, this is proportional. Where meetings are
delayed this is often as a result of other agencies not providing information in
a timely manner, or requests for delay due to staff leave (for example during
school holidays where staff are not available and there is no immediate risk to
a child).
Meetings held in timescale (percentage)

Participation and Partnership
The LADO continues to work in close partnership across a variety of
agencies. Overall, partner agency attendance at Managing Allegation Strategy
meetings remains good. There are some agencies where attendance could be
improved and we welcome the support of the partnership in continuing to
deliver this message and expectation. The LADO will also be highlighting this
area in its multi-agency training and awareness-raising workshops.

Page 94

Page 57

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

Page 95

Page 58

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

Complex Cases

The LADO routinely deals with allegations that stray into the procedures set
out for Complex and Organised Abuse, the MACSE and whole service
concerns.
At times, it responds to concerns of a sensitive nature that may attract public
interest either by virtue of the media profile of an individual or as a result of
information being shared that raises concerns about the wider safeguarding
practices of an organisation. In these cases, the LADO provides alerts and
updating information to Senior Managers who take responsibility for
information management with the media and/or strategic responses.
In this reporting period, no cases have escalated to require a whole service
investigation or review, although one is currently under consideration.
Training and Service-Awareness
During this period, the LADO team continues to provide a responsive service
to requests for awareness and training and has worked with a range of
organisations including faith groups and core agencies to this end.
There is now on-line guidance available to support a better understanding of
the role and service for organisations, referrers and subjects.
From January 2017 3 workshops have been held in order to raise the profile
and awareness of the LADO service. These sessions will be reviewed in June
2017 with the aim of responding to feedback and planning to make the
sessions accessible for all agencies. At present it is clear that voluntary
sectors are not attending and thought needs to be given to how we can
ensure they have opportunities to attend the workshops.
Sharing Learning from Cases
Key areas of learning that have informed the future service development plan
for the LADO have included; how we share information, when and how; how
we ensure subjects, child and families are properly supported through the
LADO process; how we respond to whole-service safeguarding concerns and
how we respond to identified potential gaps in national regulation relating to
safeguarding including for supported accommodation for vulnerable young
people, language schools etc.
As a result of the above, the LADO service has implemented the use of Words
of Advice meetings in an attempt to fill some of the gaps where, for example;
the subject of an allegation may not be an employee of an organisation;
where they are not operating within a regulated activity; where there is no
requirement for them to hold a current DBS check

Page 96

Page 59

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17
Part 5: Summary of IRU activity.

This has been a busy year and challenging year for IROs. There is good
evidence of strong progress in some of our core tasks and targets.
Relationships with our social work colleagues have improved and are moving
towards a more collaborative and problem solving approach, evidence of a
more mature understanding of respective roles and responsibilities. The
introduction of the new quality assurance framework will enable us to clearly
reflect and evidence our own practice and that of colleagues, so that we can
together move forward in our journey towards ‘Good”. The evaluation groups
and bi-monthly meetings with team managers to share learning and promote
effective practice have proven to be a positive development. We see evidence
of this in the development of relationships between SWs and IROs, where
IROs are being kept updated and informed of relevant information in respect
of children.
IROs have made significant strides in helping colleagues understand the
statutory role they have in respect of looked after children, including the duty
to challenge and escalate concerns. We are seeing a more responsive
approach from colleagues to escalations and the promotion of a problem
solving approach within the context of a relationship based on ‘High Challenge
High Support’.
The Service has worked hard at ensuring the child is at the centre of the
review process and our work with the Children’s Participation team has been
crucial in this progress. Fundamental to the work of the IRO is their
relationship with the child or young person. We are fortunate to have a
positive working relationship with the Children’s Participation Team. They
provide us with challenges about our approach to working and are actively
engaged in working with us to ensure we can be the best we can. This
ongoing relationship is hugely important to the further development of the
practice of the IRO and IRU. It is clear that some of the challenges they
presented us with this year have proven difficult to meet, we need to improve
our pre-review meetings, ensure all mid-point reviews are completed and work
towards more children chairing or co-chairing their own reviews. This is
recognised and the contextual reasons, for example high caseloads, have
been acknowledged and plans have been put in place to address this so that
we can reduce caseloads to a figure where IROs are able to meet their core
responsibilities and undertake their enhanced role.
Whilst we can look back and reflect on much positive work throughout the
year, we remain ambitious for further improvement and we will be taking
action to ensure this improvement. The service will strive to keep children at
the centre of what we do and ensure they have a voice, we are committed to
working with our colleagues to improve service for children and ensure all
children looked after by Devon or subject of a protection plan receive the best
possible service and are supported to achieve the best possible outcomes.

Page 97

Page 60

Part 6: Development /Action Plan for 2017-2017.
Leadership & Management

Action

The IRU to provide the
right balance of support
and challenge to the
service in respect of our
work in respect of CIN,
CP and CHIC.

Appointment of 4 IROs (1 in each locality) on a 2
fixed term contract to support CIN framework.

Jane Anstis

Sept 2017
4 IROs to be in post

Appointment of 3 additional, permanent IROs to
support work with looked after children and
children subject to CP plans across the county.

Jane Anstis

3 IROs will be in post

Consider alternative delivery models to ensure
best management and delivery approach to
support quality assurance, reviewing and
safeguarding practice for the county.

Jean Kelly

Any change to
structure of unit to
be agreed via senior
leadership team

IROs must have capacity to undertake timely
meetings, see children, follow up on plans and
ensure that their footprint is evident in a child’s
case file. This is essential if they are to offer high
support and constructive challenge on behalf of

Jane
Anstis/Ian
Davidson

All IROs will each
hold a maximum of
60 cases (FTE).

Page 98

Objective

(*term IRO is used to
refer to all IROs/ISROs in
the unit)

Review structure and
management
arrangements of the IRU
(including LADO) to
ensure manageable
workloads and effective
oversight.
Each IRO to have a
caseload of 60
children/young people
plus quality assurance
activity

Ref

Lead

Targets/Milestones
December 2017
Children in Child in
Need plans will have
smart outcome
focussed plans in
place.

March 2018

Update/RAG

All children will have
SMART outcome
focussed plans and will
be supported closely to
achieve required
outcomes.

Evidence of increased
activity will be
evidenced via monthly
case audit and IRU
reporting.

All children will
be seen by their
IRO.
SMART Outcome

Page 61

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

children.
They must also contribute to wider practice
improvement quality assurance activity to
support the service.

Monthly performance/evaluation meetings will
continue to take place in the IRU to monitor
performance and impact on positive outcomes
for children.

Page 99

IRU managers to offer
regular supervision for
IROs/ISROs and LADO to
ensure best quality
service in line with the
units high expectations
for children

All IROs will experience supervision that has high
expectations of them in their role and offers high
support and high challenge in a constructive way
to ensure the best support for children.
This supervision will set out minimum standards
of expected practice to ensure best outcomes for
children

Evidence of impact will
be reported in the
quarterly report.

All IROs will have
regular individual
and group
supervision every
month to ensure a
consistent practice
approach across the
county.

Evidence of IRO on
every child’s file
including any need to
resolve child centred
problems in order to
progress plans.

Every child’s file will
include the IRO
footprint via
recording of key
discussions/consulta
tion.
Visits to children by
IRU will be recorded

Page 62

Agenda Item 8

It is expected that this approach is replicated in
the IROs own practice.

Jane
Anstis/Ian
Davidson

Regular meetings
will review quality of
activity via dip
sampling/themed
audit activity and
review of all
performance data

focussed plans
will be in place for
all children
subject to CIN CP
and CHIC

on the child’s file

Right service, right time
Objective

Action

Ref

Lead

All children in need (CIN)
will be reviewed by the
social work teams to
ensure that all children
requiring a service
receive one and those
who do not are
supported to step down
or out of the statutory
system.

CIN Framework to be agreed across the localities.

Children must receive
the statutory service
that they are entitled to
having met threshold for
children’s social work
intervention.
Children utilising services
from unregistered
provisions will have their
safeguarding needs met
and those children who
need to be planned for
within statutory
processes are identified

All reviews, core groups, visits and conferences
must happen in timescale. IROs will offer support

Jane
Anstis/Ian
Davidson

Development of a Safer Organisation Service
three tier service (to include the LADO), with
buy-in from other agencies and parts of DCC
service, including commissioning. This will
encompass; standard setting and good practice
tools and signposting for organisations; action
planning for organisations of concern; whole
service processes where abuse or neglect have

Jane Anstis

Jean Kelly

CIN IROs (referred to above) will support
systematic review of each child and chair
meetings, offer coaching/training as required.

Sept 2017
CIN framework will
be agreed and
implemented.

Page 100

All CIN cases will
have been reviewed
across the county so
that all children who
require this service
will continue to
receive it. Cases for
step down to EH or
out will be in place.
All meetings will be
held in timescale.

Scoping of Safer
Organisations
Service viability with
partners.

Targets/Milestones
December 2017
SMART Outcome
focussed plans will be
in place for all children
on CIN plans

Completion of
proposals around the
scope and reach of the
service to senior
managers in all service

March 2018
Deep Dive/Audit
of all CIN case
activity will
evidence that all
CIN case have
plans, children
are seen and
when due for step
down this is
managed in a
timely way
(within 1 week of
decision made)

Update/RAG

Establishment of
the SOS and
evidence that it is
impacting on
improving
safeguarding
standards in
previously

Page 63

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

and kept safe.

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

been clearly identified.

Objective

Action

Regular QA activity
leading to improvement
in practice and the
identification of good
practice

QA Framework to become embedded via regular
audit and reporting followed by learning and
improvement activity in each locality/service.

Jean Kelly

Page 101

High Quality Statutory Social Work

IRU to provide regular feedback to the service
regarding SW practice and IRU performance. The
unit will identify issues requiring improvement

Jane
Anstis/Ian
Davidson

Regular QA activity by
IRU re CIN, CP and CHIC.

Deep dive of Stronger Families: Safer Children
conference model in Devon via multi agency QA

Lead

Jane
Anstis/

Sept 2017
First round of
monthly case,
themed and deep
dive audits
completed and
reported on
Regular bulletin and
quarterly report to
service to be
provided to the
whole service

Plan the Deep Dive
for October with

Targets/Milestones
December 2017
New approach is
embedded in practice
and evidences good
practice, improving
practice and issues for
continued
development
New approach is
embedded in practice
and evidences progress
in practice as this
improves in each
quarter.
Development of new
QA mechanisms at key
points for CHIC and
CIN.
Establishment of
revised and effective
system for recording
early resolution and
escalations
Evidence improved
practice re timeliness

March 2018
Evidence of
improved social
work practice and
audit practice

Update/RAG

Evidence of
improved social
work practice and
IRU performance.

Evidence that the
model is fully

Page 64

Agenda Item 8

Review the quality of
child protection

Ref

isolated /
unmonitored
organisations.

Ensure venues offer the
facilities and
environment necessary
to promote family
participation.

Page 102

Regular and required
participation of IROs and
ISROs in performance
management and
practice development
within the Unit.

Delivery Group. Request that this is undertaken
by representative of the multi-agency
partnership (October 2017)

Jean Kelly

IRU to conclude its county wide review of the
suitability of venues and plan to compensate for
any identified gaps or needs.

Jane Anstis

Establishment of a framework and calendar of
internal QA events

Jane Anstis

clear terms of
reference and
outcomes required
agreed.

Changes to be
implemented as
required.
Conclude the venue
review

Monthly and
quarterly
performance
evaluation meetings
to be redeveloped to
ensure consistency
across the whole IRU
Quarterly day
workshops to be
scheduled to enable
development of
good practice and
embedding and
consolidation across

of plans, effectiveness
of planning, family
engagement and multiagency partnership
working.

embedded across
the partnership
and effective for
all children.

Progress plans to
address identified gaps
and needs

All children and
families have
access to high
quality settings
and venues in
which to hold and
review CP plans
and CHIC reviews,
where
appropriate.
Programme of
events is well
established and
quarterly
workshop
priorities are
established.

Monthly evaluation
meetings are in place
and have a reporting
and action planning
mechanism.
First workshop to focus
on improving and
broadening confidence
in strengths based
approaches across the
IRU

Agenda Item 8

conferences following
the change in approach

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

Page 65

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17
Support the
strengthening of
confidence and
development of a
strengths based
approach across the
service including for
CHIC and CIN.
IRU must ensure the
participation of
children/young people in
CP and CHIC reviews.

Additional training and workshops to be
coordinated by the IRU in partnership with
locality teams.

Jane Anstis

To progress the children in care council action
plan agreed in December 2016

Ian
Davidson

All actions are not listed here – see separate plan
already in place.

the whole unit
Workshops and
training
opportunities
identified within
localities to promote
confidence in use of
model for CIN.
All actions will be
met and signed off
with the children in
care council.

Workshops undertaken
New model of
reviewing developed
for application for CHIC
in line with strengths
based approached
Review activity by the
Children in Care
council to ensure all
actions and positive
change is embedded.

Page 103

Monthly evaluation
and action planning I
respect of IRU
performance in
ensuring participation

IROs, SWs and
TMs are confident
in chairing and
reviewing all
statutory
meetings within a
strengths based
framework.
All IROs ensure
active
participation of
young people in
their CP or CHIC
review process
and decision
making about
their care/future
plans.

Looked After Children are properly looked after
Objective

Action

All children/young

IROs must ensure that self-care skills and

Ref

Lead
Ian

Sept 2017
Every review will

Targets/Milestones
December 2017
All 14+ children will

March 2018

Update/RAG

Page 66

Agenda Item 8

Conclusion of venue
review and funding bid
for young person
friendly co-designed
review hub facilities

independence skills are reviewed as part of the
regular review of their care

Every child/young
person must have a
permanence plan

IROs will quality assure that all children have a
permanence plan in place and that they have
followed a permanency process with the
fostering, adoption, SGO teams as required.

Page 104

people in care must be
supported to develop
self-care and
independence skills at
the outset of their
journey through care.
This must be supported
developmentally as a
child would expect in
any family.

Davidson

Ian
Davidson

IROs will record what the permanence plan is and
will ensure that a formal permanence planning
process is followed.

IROs must review the appropriateness of
placements proposed for children. They must
ensure that these are appropriately regulated in
line with the child/young person’s needs.

IROs will review this
at all statutory
reviews
Every new looked
after child will have
permanence
highlighted in every
review from the first.
Any delays will be
escalated for
problem solving by
the IRO.

Timeliness of permanence planning must be
tracked at each review and at the mid-point
check to prevent any unnecessary delay or drift.

Placement matching
must be carefully
considered

consider selfcare/independence
skills progress (this
will vary depending
on developmental
stage of child/young
person)

Ian
Davidson

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

have an independence
checklist they and their
carers/social workers
actively use and
review.

All looked after
children will have a
clearly recorded
permanence plan.

Timeliness in
respect of
progression
towards
permanence will
improve for all
children.

All children’s cases
will be reviewed by
the IROs in respect
of permanence
planning.
Social workers to
consult with IROs re
planned or
unplanned changes
to seek their view.

Page 67

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

IROs will review the quality of placements from
the point of allocation. They will proactively
support placements via key actions at each
review to support carers and children to sustain
placements.

Ian
Davidson

Moving on to semiindependent
accommodation

Only young people who have been assessed as
ready for semi-independence as part of their
gradual transition to leaving care should be
placed in a semi-independent placement.

Ian
Davidson

Page 105

Placement stability must
be supported from the
outset

Children on Care Orders will only be considered
for placement with their parents once parents
have evidenced that they have made sufficient
changes in their lifestyle to offer good parenting.
This will require them to provide evidence of
change. We cannot make placements with
parents based on a young person’s wish only. The
IRO must carefully review these requests to
ensure appropriate use of regulations and that
this is in the best interest of children.

Ian
Davidson

All placements with
parents (PWP)
requests must follow
procedure.
All requests must be
shared with IRO for
consultation and
view.

Reduction in
unplanned placement
changes for
children/young people

Any new 16+
placements will be
made subject to
completed
assessments and
completed
independence checklist
evidence presented to
the young person’s
CHIC review.
No placement will be
made with parents will
be made before this is
agreed by key adults
involved in a young
person’s care.

Best practice will
be embedded.

Page 68

Agenda Item 8

Placement with parents
for children subject to
care orders must only
happen when positive
parental change is
evidenced.

No semi-independent placement offer can be
agreed unless a clear assessment of readiness is
in place and the IRO has been consulted.

All children/young
people requiring
care must be placed
in a regulated
placement.
Every child/young
person’s initial
review will evidence
via the record what
placement support is
required to ensure
stability from the
outset.
All 16 + placements
in semi-independent
units will be
reviewed by the IRU
to ensure that they
are appropriately
placed

All looked after children
subject to section 20
arrangements are
appropriate and clear
care plans are in place.

Page 106

IROs must ensure that all Section 20
arrangements are legal (All with PR have agreed,
all have mental capacity to agree, where
withdrawal of agreement has been stated a child
must return home or a legal mandate must be
sought).

Ian
Davidson

No placement with
parents will be made
for children subject
to care orders
without IRO views
being sought before
any plan is put in
place.
All children currently
subject to section 20
care arrangements
are legal and
appropriate.

All children subject to
section 20 care
arrangements are
reviewed and agreed
as appropriate via the
IRO.

Best practice is
embedded across
all teams in
respect of section
20 arrangements.

All section 20
arrangements for
children under 10 are
understood as
temporary legal
arrangements while
consideration of the
long term legal plan is
agreed and clearly
recorded.

Best practice is
embedded
regarding the use
of section 20 care
arrangements in
all cases.

Agenda Item 8

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

IRU to review all section 20 care arrangements.
IROs must routinely QA this at each review and at
the mid-point checks.
No child under the age of 10 who requires
permanence planning remains subject to section
20 – legal advice must be sought to prevent delay
and drift in formal planning processes.
(*this does not refer to short breaks agreements
under section 20)

All IROs to review all
children under 10
years of age to
ensure legal advice
has been considered
re planning.

Care Leavers are supported to aspire and achieve

Page 69

Independent Reviewing Unit Annual Report 2016-17

Objective

Action

All young people ready
to leave care will have
effective plans to
support their transition
to adulthood

IRO will ensure that an updated assessment is
completed and a SMART outcome focussed
Pathway Plan is in place for each young person.

Page 107

Support for transition to
adult services

Lead

Sept 2017
All young people
aged 16+ will have
their

Targets/Milestones
December 2017

March 2018

Update/RAG

IROs will ensure that this plan is constructed with
the young person as far as this is possible.
Each young person will have a final review as
th
close to their 18 birthday as possible even if this
means having two reviews within a 6 month
period before they leave care.
When a young person requires adult service
assessment or provision as part of their transition
when leaving care, this must be monitored by the
IRO.

IRU to consider whether there is capacity to
monitor children for 6 months following their
th
18 birthday to ensure plans are in place. This
will depend on capacity for the unit and requires
consideration.

Ian
Davidson

Jean Kelly

Evidence that all
transitional needs
for children must be
part of their care
plan from age 15
years of age.

Every child/young
person aged 15+ will
have a clear
transitional plan and
IROs will monitor
progress.

All children will
have effective
transition plans
from an early
stage.

All young people
aged 17+ will be
reviewed to ensure
transitional plans are
in place.

Reduction in delays in
transitional referrals
and assessments for all
16+ children where
this is relevant.

Review capacity to
undertake this once
additional staffing
and IRU structure
issues are resolved.

Audit impact of this
initiative to consider
impact and need to
continue.

Evidence of
improved
partnership
practice with
adult services
colleagues.
Decide on the
future of this
involvement in
light of ongoing
audit of impact

Page 70

Agenda Item 8

IRO monitoring of care
leavers

Ref

Agenda Item 9

CS1729
Childrens Scrutiny Committee
11 September 2017

Devon Education and Learning

Education and Learning
Performance Report
Quarter 1 - 2017/18
Update and discussion Brief

Page 109

Closing The Gap Early Years

Agenda Item 9

1

Review of Early Years Funding for 2 year olds
Recently published national information indicates that there has been a
significant increase in the percentage of 2 year olds benefitting from early
years funded places in Devon (90% compared to 82% in 2016). Devon is
performing significantly better than nationally (71%) and is in the top
performing quartile (ranked 13th of all Local Authorities).

Page 110

Review of Early Years Funding for 3 and 4 year olds
The percentage of three and four year olds benefitting from early years
funded places continues to be high. Devon is performing significantly
better than both the national (95%) and regional (97%) averages. Devon
is in the top performing quartile and is ranked 14th of all Local Authorities.

Data source: DfE LAIT 13/07/17

2

1

Closing The Gap Key Stage 1 and 2 provisional results (unvalidated)

Key Stage 1 – Provisional Results
Provisional results based on unvalidated data indicate that Devon’s
performance at KS1 has seen significant improvements across all subject
areas. Writing has seen the greatest improvement (6 percentage points
on last year), followed by Mathematics (5 percentage points on last year).
Note: no national data is currently available for 2016/17 (due to be released by
DfE in Sept 2017).

Page 111

data sources: 2015/16 - SFR42/2016 Phonics screening check and key stage 1 assessments: England 2016
2016/17 - KS1 Collection, DfE Secure Access (Data Collection Portal), extract 07/08/17

Key Stage 2 – Provisional Results

Note: some cases are currently in appeal and so the outcome may improve further.

3

data sources: England 2016/17 & 2015/16: DfE SFR30-2017 National curriculum assessments at key stage 2 in England,
2017 (interim), 4 July 2017, Devon 2016/17: Babcock International LDP, 07/08/17, Devon 2015/16: DfE SFR62/2016:
National curriculum assessments at key stage 2, 2016 (revised)

Agenda Item 9

Provisional results based on unvalidated data indicate that Devon’s
performance in each of the KS2 subjects has seen significant
improvements. Devon is now in line with national averages in three of the
subject areas. Attainment at the expected standard in Writing has seen a
massive improvement as predicted (increasing by 6 percentage points on
last year). Mathematics continues to be slightly below the national
average and plans are in place to secure an improvement in this area.

Inclusion SEND

Agenda Item 9

2

Requests for Statutory Assessments
The volume of requests for assessments continues to be high. There
were 248 new requests for statutory assessments within the first quarter,
compared to 174 for the same period in the previous year. This
represents a 43% increase in requests.
If we compare the full year of 2016 assessments and the assessments in
2017 to date the local authority has seen a 99% increase.
The work rate of issuing plans within the 20 week national timeline still
requires improvement due to increases in numbers causing significant
challenges.

Page 112

Note: the number of completions and numbers of plans in progress vary across
quarters according to the timing of the processing of each request.

Data source: DCC 0-25 SEN Team, July 2017

4

2

Inclusion SEND
Transfers from Statements – volume processed (2014/15 to date)
Transfers from statutory statements are progressing. At the end of Qtr1
(17/18) 57.7% of the 3,385 statements to transfer have been issued as
EHCPs or ceased, 15% are in progression with 27% yet to be started.

Transfers from Statements – Quarterly Performance
When reviewed within quarters (not aggregated whole year figures), the
percentage of EHCPs issued on time varies across quarters. The
volume issued in this quarter was 141 (significantly less than the
volume of 620 issued in Q4 of 16/17) and consisted of the more
complex cases. The first quarter of the 17/18 year consisted of the
cases where placement was either in dispute or difficult to source and
therefore lengthened the process.

Page 113
5

Agenda Item 9

Data source: DCC 0-25 SEN Team, July 2017

Inclusion Not in Employment, Education or Training

Agenda Item 9

2

NEETs Overview
Recent information from Careers South West indicates that the percentage
of NEET in Devon is slightly lower when compared to the same period last
year (3.4% in June 2017 compared to 4.2% in June 2016).
The new combined NEET and Not Known measure1 for the overall cohort has
improved in the last quarter (8.2% compared to 9.6% in Mar 17) and is slightly
lower than the same period last year (8.2% compared to 8.5% previously).
The percentage of those Not Known is slightly higher than last year (4.8%
compared to 4.3%).
1

previous focus was on separate measures, primarily NEET

Page 114

The combined NEET/Not Known rate is lower than the same period last year
for Year 12 and Year 13 cohorts. Year 12 continues to be the year group
with the lowest NEET/Not Known rate (3.1%), followed by Year 13 (6.6%).
However the Year 14 rate has risen from 14.1% to 15.4% in this quarter.
Note: In future only data for years 12 and 13 will be regarded as targets by the DfE in
line with the statutory duty on local authorities to track young people destinations.

Note: the peak in the NEET/Not Known rate is due to Year 14 leaving education / training
at the end of the academic year and obtaining confirmation of ongoing study /
employment. This can be seen in the % NEET/Not Known graph on the left.

Data Source: CSW Monthly Scorecard, March 2017 and June 2017

6

2

Inclusion Attendance – Penalty Notices

Penalty Notices Issued - Unauthorised Absences
The number of penalty notices issued by the Devon Education Welfare
Service in the 2016/17 summer term has increased dramatically. 742
notices were issued this term, compared to 24 in the 2015/16 summer term
and 327 in the 2014/15 summer term. This increase is due to the
resumption of issuing penalty notices for unauthorised holidays, which had
previously been suspended whilst awaiting the outcome of the Isle of Wight
case.
Local monitoring information indicates that performance in attendance
measures declined during the time when the issuing of penalty notices was
suspended.

Page 115

Data Source: Legal Proceedings Office, Education Welfare Office, July 2017

Agenda Item 9

7

Inclusion In-Year Admissions

Agenda Item 9

2

In Year Admissions Preferences Met
The number of in year applications received in 2016/17 is in line with previous
years. Over 97% of applicants were offered a place at one of their preferred
school, whilst 9 out of 10 applicants received a place at their first preferred
school. This positive performance is also reflected in the normal admissions
round1 where 99% were offered a place at one of their preferred schools.
1

normal round admissions were reported in the previous quarter, 2016/17 Qtr 4 Education
Performance Report.

This performance should be viewed as outstanding, as in year admissions
is a difficult area due to volume of work generated, uncertainty of when
applications will be received and complexity of individual applications.

Page 116

Despite increasing pressure on places and resistance from schools
regarding hard to place children, the team have continued to deliver a high
percentage of preferences met. Already for September 2017 the team
have processed 1,600 preferences for the next academic year which is
32% of last year’s transfer group.
Data Source: Admissions, DCC Aug 2017

In Year Admissions - Reasons
The reasons for in year applications in 2016/17 continue to be in line with
previous years. The most common reason continues to be a move into
Devon (43.6%), followed by a school transfer where there is no move
(34.7%).

Data Source: Admissions, DCC Aug 2017

8

2

Inclusion 2015/16 Exclusion Rates

Permanent Exclusions 2015/16
Recently published national information indicates that whilst Devon’s
Permanent Exclusions have risen slightly they are in line with the
national picture (0.09% compared to 0.08%).
Permanent exclusions in Devon secondary schools continue to be lower
than nationally but exclusions in primary schools are slightly higher.
Exclusions in special schools have seen a significant increase and are
well above the national picture. This issue will be considered as part of
the Devon Inclusion Project.

Page 117

Fixed Period Exclusions 2015/16
Fixed period exclusions have also risen slightly, both nationally and in
Devon. Whilst Devon’s exclusion rate has risen to 3.55% it continues to
be significantly lower than both nationally and regionally (4.29% and
4.52% respectively).

Data Source: DfE LAIT, DfE SFR35/2017 Permanent and fixed-period exclusions in England: 2015 to 2016

9

Agenda Item 9

Fixed period exclusions in Devon secondary schools continue to be
significantly lower than nationally (6.24% comparted to 8.46%) whilst
exclusions in Devon primary schools are slightly higher. Devon special
schools have seen a significant increase and are higher than nationally.
This will be considered as part of the Devon Inclusion Project.

Quality Ofsted Outcomes - Pupils

Agenda Item 9

3

Devon Schools
The quality of state funded education provision in Devon continues to be
higher than the national picture (91.1% compared to 88.7% nationally).
Whilst the percentage of Devon schools judged to be Good or Outstanding
has fallen slightly in this latest Quarter, reflecting the trend regionally,
Devon has improved its ranking amongst its statistical neighbours and is
now ranked 2nd.
Both Devon Primary and Secondary schools continues to be above the
national average. There has been an improvement in the percentage of
Special schools judged as good or outstanding (90% compared to 80%
in the last quarte and 70% in the previous r).

Page 118

Data source: Monthly Management Information: Ofsted's school inspections outcomes,
Management Information – Schools – 30th June 2017.

Devon Pupils
90.87% (84,059) of Devon pupils are attending schools that have been
judged as Good or Outstanding. This is better than the national and
regional figures (86.8% and 88.9%).
89.2% (17,275) of disadvantaged children1 in Devon are attending Good or
Outstanding schools. These are pupils who are Free School Meal
children, currently in care, adopted from care or service children.
89.8% (2,533) of pupils with statements of special educational needs or
education, health and care plans2 are attending Good or Outstanding
Schools. This is an increase on the previous quarter (88%).
98% (1,715) of two year olds benefitting from funded early education are
attending settings3 judged as Good or Outstanding. This is better than the
national picture (97%). 97% (14,079) of Devon three and four year olds
are attending settings3 judged as Good or Outstanding, which is
significantly better than the national picture (93%).
1

Pupil Numbers from DfE Pupil Premium July 2017
Pupil Numbers as at Spring Census 2017
3 private, voluntary and independent providers, and maintained nursery, primary, secondary and
special schools
2

10

Data Sources: DfE Monthly Management Information: Ofsted School Inspection Outcomes, 30 June 2017
DfE SFR29/2017 Provision for children under 5 years of age in England: January 2017

Agenda Item 10
CS1725
Childrens Scrutiny Committee
11th September 2017
QUARTER ONE PERFORMANCE REPORT: CHILDREN’S SOCIAL CARE
Report of the Head of Children’s Social Care.
Performance information provides an overview of activity levels within the service,
trends and emerging patterns of need that helps identify where performance is
improving and where further investigation or targeted improvement action is required
with an emphasis on sustained improvement in performance to become more
aligned with that of “good” Local Authorities.
The Children’s Services management information team work with managers to
provide data on key areas of activity in order to support their management oversight
of priority areas through the Performance Workbook (Appendix 1).
1. MASH Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH)
In Devon, the Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) facilitates multi-agency
screening to enable decisions to be made about all information shared by
professionals about children where there are safeguarding concerns. This enables
concerns to be responded to by the most appropriate service, including Early Help or
Children’s Social Care where needed.
Performance within the MASH shows a positive trend of sustained reduction in the
number of referrals and enquiries. This reflects strengthening professional
judgement in relation to risk and need and helps ensure that referrals are made at
the appropriate time and ensure that those who need it, are referred and get the right
help at the right time. Operation of the MASH as the Service’s front door continues
to be a priority ensuring a high quality, timely initial assessment and access to
appropriate services when needed. Just over a third of contacts with the MASH
(35% in 2016/17) resulted in a Children’s Social Care assessment and met the
threshold for statutory safeguarding services. Improving services to this group is a
main theme in the proposals to improve the “front door” to Children’s Social Care.
2. Children in Need
Children in Need are those identified by assessment to require advice and support.
This includes those subject to a child protection plan, children in care and disabled
children.
The overall number of Child in Need cases at 31 March 2017 has shown a positive
reduction of 18.2 % from 31 March 2016. The 31 March 2017 rate of Children in
Need is 267.6 per 10,000 for Devon, this is significantly below the reported 2016
figures of 332.8 for our Statistical Neighbours. Some tables are attached in
appendix which compare Devon’s rate of children in need with other Local
Authorities.

Page 119

Agenda Item 10
After a period of gradual reduction in the number of children in need receiving a
service, it has remained stable over the past two quarters at around 5000 children,
this reflects increased scrutiny and focus on children in need as a result of the
Service Review.
In addition there are 1171 children and young people in need receiving finance only
support, usually disabled children, who receive funding for short breaks and are
reviewed annually but do not have an ongoing allocated worker. This group has
shown a gradual increase over the preceding year.
3. Referrals into statutory children’s service
The overall volume referrals into the MASH has reduced over the year with 2016/17
seeing a 27% decrease as a result of improved triaging work, partner agency
working and increasing professional’s awareness through MASH seminars along
with developments within Early Help. Across the year there continues to be month on
month variability. The month increase in activity in May and June remains lower
than 2016 levels and reflects an anticipated seasonal pattern.
Re referral rates, defined as those children being re-referred to social care with 12
months of their original referral, are an indicator of the effectiveness at identifying
need; this area has shown a positive trend over the past quarter, the June rate of
21.9% is better than our statistical neighbours at 22.4%. Our re referral rates are
higher than “good” Local authorities (19.8%). Work within the MASH continues to
focus on improving initial assessment and decision making as identified in the
Service Review.
4. Single Assessments
The vast majority of accepted referrals lead to an assessment to determine needs
and risks, clarify the desired outcomes and, where required, allocate resources to
achieve them. These assessments must be timely. The maximum timeframe for the
single assessment to reach a decision on next steps should be 45 working days from
the point of referral.
On average 91.3% referrals result in a single assessment with numbers of both
referrals and of assessments started continuing to be variable on a month by month
basis. Data shows a significant drop in activity in April 2017; there is no clear reason
for this.
The proportion of assessments leading to a case closed outcome is an indicator of
the service’s effectiveness in identifying those families that need to be brought into
the statutory service. A high rate of assessments not leading to service is inefficient,
costly to the Council, potentially damaging to families while diverting social care
resources from the higher priority areas.
This area has shown significant
improvement over the year; reducing from 57.8% of assessments leading to case
closed in June 2016 to 33.7% in June 2017. This is indicative of improved initial
assessment and decision making in the MASH. It is important to note that
assessment in itself can prompt necessary change in families and social workers are
intervening purposefully and therapeutically when they undertake assessments.

Page 120

Agenda Item 10
Similarly while assessments may not lead to further involvement from the statutory
social work service, families may have been signposted for additional support from
early help.
Timeliness of completion of single assessments was below target and shows a
decrease from 88.8% completed on time in June 2016 to 83.6% in June 2017. This
is attributed to reduced availability of management information during this period and
further work is required to improve performance to previous levels.
5. Child Protection Enquiries
Section 47 of the Children Act 1989, places a duty on a local authority, to undertake
enquiries where they have reasonable cause to suspect that a child in their area is
suffering or is likely to suffer significant harm, in order to decide whether they should
take any action to safeguard or promote the child’s welfare. The decision to
undertake enquiries under S47 is made after multi-agency consideration of the
issues and risks in a strategy discussion
On average there are 122 child protection enquiries initiated per month. However
this area of activity is volatile; April and June were in line with more recent trends but
there was a significant spike in activity, with 166 enquiries, in May 2017.
6. Child Protection Conferences
The Initial Child Protection Conference (ICPC) brings together family members, the
child, where appropriate, and those professionals most involved with the child and
family. The purpose of the ICPC is to decide what future action is required to
safeguard and promote the welfare of the child, how that action will be taken forward,
and with what intended outcomes. Where the conference outcome determines that a
child is at continuing risk of significant harm, a multi-agency child protection plan is
formulated to protect the child.
Following the implementation of a new conference model in March 2017, which
temporarily affected that months performance, the proportion of ICPC leading to
child protection plan has begun to stabilise at 84.8|% to 88.6% reflecting improved
decision making at the conclusion of child protection enquiries.
Overall numbers of children subject to Child Protection Plans has gradually
increased over recent months from 392 in January 2017 to 494 in June 2017.
Comparing rates per 10,000 of children subject to CP plans our June rate of 34.4
compares favourably with 33.7 for good Local Authorities and very favourably with
our statistical neighbours at 52.3.
This data needs to be seen in the context of historic patterns in Devon. There were
714 children subject of a child protection plan at the end of 2015/16. We are yet to
settle our base level for CP plans in Devon. Some caution does has to be applied as
we are still working to embed our new conference model and rates are anticipated to
continue to show some fluctuations.
7. Repeat Child Protection Plans

Page 121

Agenda Item 10
The rate of repeat child protection plans is calculated by looking at whether the
children who start a CP plan in the current reporting year have ever had a previous
CP plan between the ages of 0-18 years. The purpose of this indicator is to consider
the extent to which the previous child protection plan effectively supported longer
term family changes to ensure the safety of the child. While a low rate is indicative of
effective planning and decision making; historic performance issues and very high
rates for child protection plans in 2015/16 in particular will continue to have a
residual impact in this area.
The June performance of 26.9% for repeat registrations is up on the year and
compares unfavourably with both Statistical Neighbours at 21.5% and good Local
Authorities at 17.9%. The April performance appears to be a statistical anomaly due
to the relatively low number of child protection plans started. Members should
continue to monitor this indicator carefully given the context where we have not yet
established what would be the usual baseline for registrations in Devon.
8. Children in Care
Overall numbers of children in care have remained relatively stable and below target
with a June figure of 690 representing a rate of 48.1 per 10,000, this compares
favourably with our statistical neighbours at 53 but significantly worse than good
Local Authorities at 39, confirming that this remains an area for improvement.
Developments in Early Help, services to children in need, developing threshold to
care responses and improving assessment and care planning, along with improved
placement stability and quality of care all work to reduce this rate.
Visiting of children in care remains a strength with 97.4% of visits completed on time
in June and while the majority of children and young people have experienced high
levels of placement stability there remains a group who due to issues of their needs
and placement sufficiency have experienced very many more moves than is
desirable. The detailed reports of performance for children in care are the
responsibility of the Corporate Parenting Board.
Electoral Divisions: All
Cabinet Member for Children Services and Schools: Councillor James McInnes
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972: LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS
Contact for Enquiries:
Mark Lines, Head of Service, Childrens Social Care
E-mail mark.lines@devon.gov.uk
Tel No: 01392 381093
Room: 130

Page 122

Agenda Item 10
DEVON COUNTY COUNCIL

CS1725 – Appendix 1

Devon Children’s Social Work
Performance Workbook
Report of June 2017
Draft 31/07/17

Operational Performance Report for Children’s Social Care

Page 123

Agenda
Item 10
Table of Contents
SECTION 1: CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE POPULATION PROFILE & CASELOADS
1. Population per age band (mid-year 2015 estimates published June 2016 ......................................................... 3
2. Children’s Social Work Total Caseload Profile ..................................................................................................... 3
3. Rates of Children in Need at 31 March 2016 per 10,000, 0-17 years population .............................................. 3
SECTION 2: EARLY HELP, MASH AND REFERRALS
4. Number of MASH Enquiries and Referrals in the month .................................................................................... 4
5. Percentage of social care referrals that are re-referrals within 12 months ........................................................ 4
6. Referral Outcome Breakdown ............................................................................................................................. 4
7. Referrals in a Month ............................................................................................................................................ 4
SECTION 3: CHILDREN IN NEED
8. Children in Need: Numbers at Snapshot Date and Allocation Data .................................................................... 5
9. Children in Need: Breakdown of Numbers by Service Area ............................................................................... 5
10. Percentage of Referrals with a Single Assessment .............................................................................................. 6
11. Number of Single Assessments Starting .............................................................................................................. 6
12. Cases closed at end of Single Assessment ........................................................................................................... 6
13. Single Assessments in 45 Days ........................................................................................................................... 7
14. Timeliness of Assessments, All Teams ................................................................................................................. 7
15. Timeliness of Assessments, Team ...................................................................................................................... 7
SECTION 4: CHILD PROTECTION
16. Number of Strategy Discussions Starting and Ending in Month ......................................................................... 8
17. Strategy Discussions Ending in Month : Outcome Breakdown ........................................................................... 8
18. Number of Section 47 Enquiries Starting and Ending in Month ......................................................................... 8
19. Number of Section 47 Enquiries Ending in Month Outcomes............................................................................. 8
20. ICPC Held within 15 working days of initiation of s47 enquiries ......................................................................... 8
21. Proportion of children subject to ICPC resulting in Child Protection Plans ........................................................ 9
22. Rate/10,000 of Children Subject to a Child Protection Plan ............................................................................... 9
23. Percentage of Repeat CPP’s in the year ............................................................................................................ 10
24. Team breakdown of children ending CPP within 3 months of starting CPP’s ................................................... 10
25. CPP Ending within 3 months of CPP starting Apr to Nov 16/17 (11%) .............................................................. 11

Page 124
Page 1 of 25

Agenda Item 10

SECTION 5: CHILDREN LOOKED AFTER

26. Number of Children looked After ...................................................................................................................... 12
27. Age and Gender of Children looked After ......................................................................................................... 12
28. Length of time in Care ....................................................................................................................................... 12
29. Legal Status ...................................................................................................................................................12-13
30. Percentage of Children looked After with a Visit Completed in the Previous 6 Weeks .................................... 13
31. Number of Placements ...................................................................................................................................... 13
32. 3+ Placement Moves by Team from 1st April 2017 .......................................................................................... 14
33. Children looked After Health Services ............................................................................................................... 15
34. Care Leavers Service .......................................................................................................................................... 16
35. Care Leavers Local Authority Census Tables ..................................................................................................... 17
36. Number of Children and Young People Placed by Provider Type and Ofsted Grade ........................................ 17
37. Number of Providers by Type and Ofsted Grade .............................................................................................. 17
38. Children in Devon Care Homes: Overall Effectiveness ...................................................................................... 18
39. Adoption Scorecard ........................................................................................................................................... 19
SECTION 6: CASE ALLOCATION
40. Social Care Workforce Allocation and FTE Breakdown by Service and Team .............................................20-21
41. Allocations by Case Type and Teams ................................................................................................................. 21
42. Allocations by P&T Teams, Open Cases............................................................................................................. 21
SECTION 7: INDEPENDENT REVIEWING UNIT............................................................................................................ 22
43. Child Protection Meeting Attendance ............................................................................................................... 22
44. Timeliness of Social Worker Reports for Children looked After Reviews.......................................................... 22
45. Changes of Social Worker since last Child in Care Review ................................................................................ 22
SECTION 8: YOUTH OFFENDING SERVICE .................................................................................................................. 23
46. First Time Entrants (FTE) PNC rate per 100,000 of 10-17 population .............................................................. 23
47. Use of custody rate per 1,000 of 10-17 population ......................................................................................... 23
48. Re-offending rates after 12 months ................................................................................................................. 23

Page 125
Page 2 of 25

Agenda Item 10

SECTION 1

C H I L D R E N A N D YO U N G P E O P L E P O P U L A T I O N P R O F I L E & C A S E L OA D S

1) Children and Young People Population profile for Devon – 2016 Mid-Year Estimates
Population per age band ( Mid-Year 2016 estimates published June 2017).
5-9
0
1-4
Age Band
2,759,943
3,428,266
669,103
England
7,148

Devon

Source: Office of National Statistics

10-15
3,671,788

16-17
1,256,177

18-25
5,655,209

Total 0-17 Total 0-25
11,785,277 17,440,486

31,119

41,723

47,052

16,513

72,860

143,555

216,415

Age Band as a Percentage of Total Population
England

1.2%

5.0%

6.2%

6.6%

2.3%

10.2%

21.3%

31.6%

Devon

0.9%

4.0%

5.4%

6.0%

2.1%

9.3%

18.4%

27.8%

Workload Profile
2) Children’s Social Work Profile of all cases

3) Rates of Children in Need at 31 March 2016 per 10,000, 017 years population

6,000

700.0

5,000

600.0

4,000

500.0
400.0 337.7

3,000

300.0

2,000

200.0

1,000

100.0

0

332.8 327.4
235.7

0.0
Jun

Jul

Aug

Sep

Oct

Nov

Number of Children in Need (excl LAC and CP)
Number of Children looked after
14/15 CIN (5,725)
15/16 CIN (4,668)

Dec

Jan

Feb

Mar

Apr

May

Jun

Number of Children subject of a CP Plan
Stat Neighbour CIN (incl CLA and CP), (4,845)
England CIN (incl CLA and CP), (4,816)

The total number of children in need in Devon for June-17
is 5,118 which includes 690 CLA, 494 CPP, 286 disabled
children receiving a financial package to fund a short
break and 1,171 other disabled children and young people
supported by the Disabled Children’s Social Work service.

Devon’s rate of CIN of 327.4 per 10,000 is now under SN
(1) rate of 332.8 (2), (with Norfolk an outlier).
‘Good’ LA’s(3) have an rate of 235.7 per 10,000
suggesting we have more to do to prevent families from
needing statutory interventions.

The number of children identified as in need has stayed relatively stable however a there has been an increase in May
and June. The rate of CIN in relation to good authorities than statistical neighbours per 10,000. The increased focus on
Early Help and the current review of all CIN cases across the County will give more qualatative data to fuly understand
the thresholds and service to children.
(1)

(2)

(3)

SN denotes Statistical Neighbours which are Cornwall, Dorset, East Sussex, Gloucestershire, Herefordshire,
Norfolk, Shropshire, Somerset, Suffolk and Wiltshire.
Rate calculated from the total number of Children in Need at 31st March 2016 per 10,000 of the 0-17 Year
population for our Statistical Neighbours.
‘Good’ LA’s are Cornwall, Essex, Hertfordshire, Lincolnshire, North Yorkshire, Wiltshire

Page 126
Page 3 of 25

Agenda Item 10

SECTION 2
E A R LY H E L P, M A S H A N D R E F E R R A L S

5) Percentage of social care referrals that are re-referrals
within 12 months

4) Number of MASH Enquiries and Referrals in the month
1,600

35%

1,306

1,400

30%

1,200

25%

1,000

20%

800
477

600

15%

400

10%

200
0

5%

Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17 Apr-17 May-17 Jun-17
Mash Enquiries

0%

Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17 Apr-17 May-17 Jun-17
Previous 12 months

Referrals

Target (25%)

Good LA's (19.8%)

Stat Neighbour (22.4%)

England (22.3%)

Jun-16

Jul-16 Aug-16

Sep-16

Oct-16

Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17 Apr-17 May-17 Jun-17 YTD Totals YTD Av.

Mash Enquiries

1,315

1,436

1,234

1,142

1,185

1,147

1,153 1,306

3,341

1,114

Target Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17 Apr-17 May-17 Jun-17

Referrals
% CYPS Referrals

522
39.7%

651
503
45.3% 40.8%

387
33.9%

356
30.1%

361 336 403 391 446 313 452 477
31.5% 37.1% 39.8% 43.3% 43.9% 35.6% 39.2% 36.5%

1,242
37.2%

414
37.2%

25% 23.9% 19.7% 23.4% 22.1% 29.3% 24.9% 25.3% 26.1% 25.6% 25.9% 21.8% 20.2% 21.9%

906

1,013

903

1,017

882

MASH enquiries 1,306, referrals 477, trend upwards 21.9% of referrals are re-referrals within the previous 12
compared an April-June 2017 average (MASH 1,114, months.
Referrals 414).
Comparable figures for 15/16 Devon’s rate of 20.6% was
There has been a significant increase in enquiries across less than Statistical Neighbours 22.4%, SW 23.7% and the
partners in May and June. The numbers fell significantly National rate 22.3% and 19.8% for ‘Good LAs’.
in April and the reasons for this are not fully understood.
The number of enquiries converting to referrals has March and April showed a decrease in re-referrals and
stayed proportionately the same with an average of 36- within May this was in line with good authorities,
39%. This is below the % at the end of the last quarter. however, there is no consistency within the monthly
There is greater statistical breakdown within the Mash figures and this needs to be addressed. The current
and the no of inappropriate enquiries has been identified review will give further qualitative data.
and work is being targeted to these areas. This includes
district councils and health.
6) Referral Outcome Breakdown
Outcome
Single Assessment
Private Fostering
16 Plus Housing
Refer to ICS
OLA Child with a CP Plan
Section 7 /Section 37 /Special Guardianship Report
Advice & Information Provided
Total

No.
404
10
4
17
0
1
0
436

%
92.7%
2.3%
0.9%
3.9%
0.0%
0.2%
0.0%
100.0%

Of the 436 referrals made 404 (92.7%) are for single
assessment, with the remainder including Private
Fostering, 16+ Housing, Section 7 /37 and referrals
to DCS.

The number of outcomes to Single assessment is high,
with the number being passed to the teams as
showing a significant increase from the last two
quarters. The issue of thresholds within the MASH is
being addressed with working groups.

7) Referrals in a Month

Page 127
Page 4 of 25

Agenda Item 10
Number of referrals in month

Jun-16

Jul-16

Aug-16

Sep-16

Oct-16

Nov-16

Dec-16

Jan-17

Feb-17

Mar-17

Apr-17

May-17 Jun-17

YTD
Rate /
10,000

Mth Ave

2017-18
Year End

Projected
Rate /
10,000

Number of referrals in month (all children, all occurrences)
Nr referrals with single assessment outcome
% referrals with single assessment outcome
Number of children with referral in month
Of whom, number with referral in previous 12 months
% with repeat referral in previous 12 months

486
427
87.9%
481
115
23.9%

542
463
85.4%
538
106
19.7%

590
538
91.2%
585
137
23.4%

442
391
88.5%
438
97
22.1%

345
309
89.6%
341
100
29.3%

357
321
89.9%
357
89
24.9%

395
360
91.1%
388
98
25.3%

356
295
82.9%
353
92
26.1%

377
338
89.7%
371
95
25.6%

506
454
90.1%
494
128
25.9%

284
252
89.4%
284
62
21.8%

528
483
92.9%
526
106
20.2%

86.9
79.3
91.3%
1,239
262
21.1%

416
380
91.3%
413
87
21.1%

4,992
4,556
91.3%
4,956
1,048
21.1%

347.7
317.4
91.3%
345.2
73.0
21.1%

436
404
92.7%
429
94
21.9%

Year to Date; 91.3% of referrals with single assessment outcome, 21.1% of children with repeat referral in previous
12 months. Marginal upward trend for April and June-2017 reflective of greater proportion of repeat referrals for less
children.

SECTION 3
CHILDREN IN NEED

8) Children in Need: Numbers at Snapshot Date and Allocation Data
Jun-16

Jul-16

Aug-16

Sep-16

Oct-16

Nov-16

Dec-16

Jan-17

Feb-17

Mar-17

Apr-17

May-17

Jun-17

2017-18 Ytd
Average

Rate/10,000

Total Children in Need (Inc Finance Only Cases)

4,046

4,068

4,030

3,960

3,915

3,830

3,860

3,845

3,782

3,907

3,880

3,937

3,934

3,917

272.9

Children in Need (Ex Finance Only Cases)

2,813

2,827

2,734

2,662

2,512

2,456

2,486

2,446

2,372

2,440

2,426

2,457

2,477

2,453

170.9

Number Allocated to Qualified Social Worker (Ex FOC)

2,564

2,552

2,453

2,468

2,321

2,293

2,317

2,285

2,203

2,284

2,267

2,277

2,321

2,288

159.4

Number Allocated to Other Professional (Ex FOC)

194

207

218

138

148

131

133

133

129

127

132

136

147

138

9.6

Number Not Allocated to Worker (Ex Finance Only Cases)

55

68

63

56

43

32

36

28

40

29

27

44

9

27

1.9

Finance Only Cases (Allocated & Unallocated)

248

256

257

252

311

275

275

274

275

305

288

295

286

290

20.2

ICS Finance Only Cases (Allocated & Unallocated)

985

985

1,039

1,046

1,092

1,099

1,099

1,125

1,135

1,162

1,166

1,185

1,171

1,174

81.8

Overall numbers of open cases has remained relatively stable over the past year

Page 128
Page 5 of 25

Agenda Item 10

9) Children in Need: Breakdown of Numbers by Service Area

Area / Service

Initial Response

Total

Exeter
Mid & East
North
South

IRCX1
IRCM1
IRCN1
IRCS1

Exeter

CFCX1
CFCX2
CFCX3
CFCX4

Mid & East

CFCM1
CFCM2
CFCM3
CFCM4

North

CFCN2
CFCN3
CFCN4

South

CFCS1
CFCS2
CFCS3
CFCS4

Exeter
Mid & East
North
South

PTCX1
PTCM1
PTCN1
PTCS1

Initial Response Total
Children and Families

Children and Families - Exeter Total
Children and Families

Children and Families - Mid/East Total
Children and Families

Children and Families - North Total
Children and Families

Children and Families - South Total
Permanency and Transition

Permanency and Transition Total
Private Fostering

Disabled Children's Services

DCS East Mid
DCS Exeter
DCS North 1
DCS North 2
DCS South 1
DCS South 2

Total (Including FOC Cases)

86
204
157
237

78.2%
100.0%
82.6%
98.3%

24
0
33
4

745
59
45
74
62

240
37
66
42
64

209
103
72
63

238
73
70
73
82

298
151
50
120
107

21.8%
0.0%
17.4%
1.7%

684

91.8%

61

8.2%

0

0.0%

52
45
69
53

88.1%
100.0%
93.2%
85.5%

7
0
5
9

11.9%
0.0%
6.8%
14.5%

0
0
0
0

0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%

219

91.3%

21

8.8%

0

0.0%

37
66
42
63

100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
98.4%

0
0
0
0

0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%

0
0
0
1

0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
1.6%

208

99.5%

0

0.0%

1

0.5%

103
62
43

100.0%
86.1%
68.3%

0
10
18

0.0%
13.9%
28.6%

0
0
2

0.0%
0.0%
3.2%

208

87.4%

28

11.8%

2

0.8%

73
61
68
82

100.0%
87.1%
93.2%
100.0%

0
9
5
0

0.0%
12.9%
6.8%
0.0%

0
0
0
0

0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%

284

95.3%

14

4.7%

0

0.0%

151
48
114
107

100.0%
96.0%
95.0%
100.0%

0
2
0
0

0.0%
4.0%
0.0%
0.0%

0
0
6
0

0.0%
0.0%
5.0%
0.0%

428

420

98.1%

2

0.5%

6

1.4%

39

39

100.0%

0

0.0%

0

0.0%

ICCEMID
ICCEXETR
ICCNORTH
ICCNRTH2
ICCSWEST
ICCSWST2

67
87
29
5
20
72

67
85
26
5
20
71

100.0%
97.7%
89.7%
100.0%
100.0%
98.6%

280

274

97.9%

0

0.0%

6

2.1%

2,477

2,336

94.3%

126

5.1%

15

0.6%

Total (Excluding FOC Cases)

ICS Finance Only Cases (Allocated & Unallocated)

110
204
190
241

% Not
Number Not Allocated
Allocated to to Named
Named
Person
Person (Non(NonProfessional) Profession
al)
0
0.0%
0
0.0%
0
0.0%
0
0.0%

PFC1

Disabled Children's Services Total
Finance Only Cases (Allocated & Unallocated)

Number
Allocated % Allocated Number
% Allocated
to
to Qualified Allocated to
to Other
Qualified
Social
Other
Professional
Social
Worker Professional
Worker

FOC01

286

ICSFREME,
ICSFRN &
ICSFRS

1,171

0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%

2
3

1

0.0%
2.3%
10.3%
0.0%
0.0%
1.4%

3,934

Overall open cases across Children and Families’ teams have remained relatively stable while Initial Response
Teams has increased significantly as a consequence of the increased referral activity leading to increased
demand for single assessments and child protection enquiries over the same period. Locality Directors
continue to closely monitor and manage demand pressures.

Page 129
Page 6 of 25

Agenda Item 10
10) % of Referrals with a Single Assessment

11) Number of Single Assessments Starting
600

100%

91.3%

90%

500

80%

400

70%
60%

300

50%
40%

200

30%
20%

100

10%
0%

0
Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17 Apr-17 May-17 Jun-17
% referrals with single assessment outcome

Jun-16

Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17 Apr-17 May-17 Jun-17

SA. Started

Month Average (ytd)

Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17 Apr-17 May-17 Jun-17 ytd
87.9% 85.4% 91.2% 88.5% 89.6% 89.9% 91.1% 82.9% 89.7% 89.7% 88.7% 91.5% 92.7% 91.3%

The rate of referrals that progress to a Single
Assessment in Jun-17 is 92.7%. The 17/18 monthly
average to date is 91.3%.
While there is no comparator authority data for
performance in this area, a high rate of conversion of
referrals to assessments indicated growing confidence
with the Triage system operated within the MASH.

Month Average (ytd)

Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17 Apr-17 May-17 Jun-17 Mth Av.
492

506

515

405

394

392

426

431

453

510

288

496

491

425

For June 2017, 491 Single Assessments starting, with
an April-June 2017 average of 425.
The past 3 months has shown significant volatility in
number of assessments linked to volatility in MASH
referrals. Work is ongoing on MASH conversion rates
and we need to reach a healthy conversion rate of
around 65-70%. Ongoing work with Early Help
should help stabilise figures

12) Cases closed at end of Single Assessment

For June 2017, 395 Single Assessments authorised
with a year to date average of 371 compared with
368.8 / 10,000 for Good LA’s in 2015-16.

Single Assessments Authorised with "Case Closed" Outcome

700
600
500

133, (33.7%) of Single Assessments have an outcome
of “Case Closed” outcome for June 2017 with an
April-June 2017 average of 152 (41%).

400
300
200
100
0

Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17 Apr-17 May-17 Jun-17

Authorised
Single Assessments

"Case Closed" Outcome

Month Average (ytd)

Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17 Apr-17 May-17 Jun-17 YTD 2017-18 Mth Av.

Authorised

569

505

580

502

361

406

336

429

360

429

294

423

395

1,112

371

"Case Closed" Outcome

329

245

277

263

186

161

154

174

152

153

150

173

133

456

152

41.0%

41.0%

% "Case Closed" Outcome
Month Average (ytd)

57.8% 48.5% 47.8% 52.4% 51.5% 39.7% 45.8% 40.6% 42.2% 35.7% 51.0% 40.9% 33.7%
152

152

152

152

152

152

152

152

152

152

152

152

152

Performance in this area continues on a positive
trajectory with a gradual improvement in reducing
the proportion of single assessments leading to no
further action, this indicates improved initial
assessment within MASH and joined up triaging
between MASH and Early Help, meaning that we are
improving our identification of those referrals most
likely to require a statutory service. Continuing to
reduce the proportion of assessments not leading a
case closed outcome remains an area of action
following the Service Review, with further
improvements anticipated over coming months.

Page 130
Page 7 of 25

Agenda Item 10
13) Single Assessments in 45 Days

14) Timeliness of Assessments, All teams

100%

60.0%

90%

49.3%

50.0%

80%
70%

40.0%

60%

30.0%

50%
40%

24.3%
45.8%

20.0%

30%

10.0%

20%
10%

0.0%

0%

Jun

Jul

Aug

Sep

Oct

Nov

Dec

Jan

Feb

Mar

Apr

May

Jun

9.3%

25.1%

17.1%
16.5%

12.7%

Auth in 10 work days Auth 11-25 work days Auth 26-45 work days Auth >45 work days

2016/17 88.8% 91.7% 92.4% 88.2% 95.6% 90.9% 89.9% 88.3% 90.6% 89.3% 89.2% 94.0% 88.8%
2017/18
Target

86.1% 80.1% 83.7%

Jun-17

85.0% 85.0% 85.0% 85.0% 85.0% 85.0% 85.0% 85.0% 85.0% 85.0% 85.0% 85.0% 85.0%

April-June 17

ytd trend

For June 2017, 83.7% of Single Assessments are For June 2017, 16.5% of Assessments authorised > 45
authorised within 45 days, comparable with 83.0% for Days, compared to 17.1% for April-June 2017.
April-June 2017.
While this is a slight improvement on last month
Single assessments on time dropped below target, full performance is below that of good local authorities.
year performance is anticipated to improve as Locality action is being taken at locality level to
demand settles, increased locality management action increase the proportion of less complex assessments
is taken and as work is undertaken within the MASH that can be concluded within 25 days and to improve
to improve the proportion of assessment leading to the proportion concluded within target time scales.
service (as opposed to being closed). This will be
assisted by improved availability of management
information.
15) Timeliness of Assessments, Team breakdown

For All Teams, April to June 2017, 17.1% of Assessments
authorised > 45 Days

60.0%

April-June 2017
Initial Response
Children and Families
Permanency & Transition
Disability Services
Ad-Hoc Teams

50.0%
40.0%

IR
CFC
P&T
DCS
Others

10 work days 11-25 work days
7.3%
25.3%
17.1%
21.4%
25.0%
33.3%
12.8%
12.8%
0.0%
100.0%

26-45 work days
55.7%
25.1%
16.7%
38.3%
0.0%

>45 work days
11.8%
36.4%
25.0%
36.2%
0.0%

30.0%
20.0%
10.0%
0.0%

10 work days
IR

11-25 work days 26-45 work days
CFC

P&T

>45 work days
DCS

Page 131
Page 8 of 25

Agenda Item 10

SECTION 4
C H I L D P ROT E C T I O N

16) Number of Strategy Discussions Starting and Ending in Month
Jun-16

Jul-16

Aug-16

Sep-16

Oct-16

Nov-16

Dec-16

Jan-17

Feb-17

Mar-17

Apr-17

May-17

Jun-17

2016-17
Total

2017-18
Month /
Av

12 Mth
Rate
/10,000

Number Started in Month

196

187

131

139

115

174

123

161

191

219

159

267

237

1,997

221

146

Number Ended in Month

231

163

147

118

111

161

151

152

193

204

151

239

193

1,964

194

138

17) Strategy Discussions Ending in Month: Outcome Breakdown
Outcome

Jun-16

Jul-16

Aug-16

186

108

116

Section 47 Enquiries
Further Strategy
Section 17 Assessment
No Further Action
Total

Sep-16

Oct-16

Nov-16

Dec-16

Jan-17

Feb-17

Mar-17

Apr-17

May-17

Jun-17

2016-17
Total

2016-17
%

2017-18
Month /
Av

12 Mth
Rate /
10,000

128

108

161

115

200

158

1,531

78.0%

158

109

96

86

124

160

7

10

4

3

13

10

17

4

13

1

5

8

3

93

4.7%

5

6

13

16

15

14

5

20

14

4

5

27

20

13

15

154

7.8%

16

12

25

29

12

5

7

3

12

20

15

15

11

18

17

186

9.5%

15

11

231

163

147

118

111

161

151

152

193

204

151

239

193

1,964

100.0%

194

138

18) Number of s47 Enquiries Starting and Ending in Month
2015-16 Comparator stats - Ave

Jun-16

Jul-16

Aug-16

Sep-16

Oct-16

Nov-16

Dec-16

Jan-17

Feb-17

Mar-17

Apr-17

May-17

Jun-17

2016-17
Total

144

126

97

80

67

131

95

108

136

132

95

166

105

1,413

Number of s47 Enquiries
Ending in Month from
Single Assessments &/or
G2 S47 Forms

2017-18
Month /
Av

12 Mth
Rate /
10,000

Devon
Rate /
10,000

Good LA
Rate /
10,000

Stat.
Neighbs
Rate /
10,000

South
West
Rate /
10,000

England
Rate /
10,000

122

93

145

75

124

137

148

19) Number of Section 47 Enquiries Ending in Month Outcomes
For
200

June 2017, 105 Section 47 Enquiries Starting and
Ending in Month from Single Assessments. 64 S47
enquiries substantiated and continued risk of harm.

150

Year average, April-June 2017 is 122.

100
50
0

Jun-16

Jul-16

Aug-16

Sep-16

June 15 - June 16

Oct-16

Nov-16

Dec-16

June 16 - June 17

Jan-17

Feb-17

Mar-17

Stat Neighbour

Apr-17

May-17

England

Jun-17

Good LA's

Numbers of s47 investigations closing continues to
stabilise in this quarter. Devon figures are higher than
2016 following the introduction of the Child Protection
pathway and new conference model in February 2016.
This has led to improving recording of S47 investigations
and evidence expectations to support decisions regarding
the need for ICPC or not.
Latest 12 months stats

Outcome

Jun-16

Jul-16

Aug-16

Sep-16

Oct-16

Nov-16

Dec-16

Concerns not substantiated

38

28

29

21

14

28

29

18

Substantiated and continuing
risk of harm

66

53

41

41

35

78

43

67

Substantiated but no continuing
risk of harm

40

45

27

18

18

25

23

23

144

126

97

80

67

131

95

108

Total

Jan-17

Feb-17

Mar-17

Apr-17

May-17

Jun-17

22

43

26

39

21

90

57

52

105

64

24

32

17

22

20

136

132

95

166

105

12 month
Total

12 month
%

Month Ave

12 month
Rate / 10,000

318

23.8%

26.5

22.2

726

54.3%

60.5

50.6

294

22.0%

24.5

20.5

1,338

100.0%

111.5

93.3

20) ICPC Held within 15 working days of initiation of s47 enquiries
100

100%

90

90%

80

80%

70

70%

60

60%

50

50%

40

40%

30

30%

20

20%

10

10%

0

Jun-16

Jul-16

Aug-16

Sep-16

Oct-16

Nov-16

Dec-16

Jan-17

Feb-17

Mar-17

Apr-17

May-17

Number of ICPC held

Number held within 15 working days of s47

Number held with no s47 recorded (authorised)

% held within 15 working days of s47
(excludes "Number held with no s47 recorded")

Jun-17

0%

45 of 79 (62.5%, accounts for 7 held with no S47
recorded) ICPC’s held within 15 Working Days.
Year to date, April-June 2017, 140 of 196 (76%, accounts
for 12 held with no S47 recorded) ICPC’s held within 15
Working Days.
The volume of ICPC requests increased significantly in
May and June. There are three key reasons for this:
1. Increase in requests above monthly averages.
2. Late requests from social work teams leaving
very little time to scheduled the conference in
timescale.
3. Child Protection chairs are carrying caseloads of
over 100 and they have limited space to chair

Page 132

Page 9 of 25

Agenda Item 10

conferences when number increase significantly
in any month preiod or when there is a delay in
requests coming through.
The employment of 3 additional IROs will resolve this
issue in the coming months.
The IRU aims for 100% of all conferences eing held in
time. However, this is in otn average of over 85% should
represent a minimum % for ICPCs wihtin 15 working days
represents a target.
Number of children subject to ICPCs
Number held within 15 working days of s47

Jun-16
31

Jul-16
36

Aug-16
44

Sep-16
48

Oct-16
11

Nov-16
41

Dec-16
41

Jan-17
42

Feb-17
51

Mar-17
54

Apr-17
31

May-17
64

Jun-17
45

% held within 15 working days of s47
(excludes "Number held with no s47 recorded")

93.9%

78.3%

75.9%

98.0%

84.6%

82.0%

87.2%

91.3%

86.4%

77.1%

88.6%

83.1%

62.5%

Number held outside 15 working days of s47
Number held with no s47 recorded (authorised)
Total

2
2
35

10
2
48

14
5
63

1
2
51

2
4
17

9
8
58

6
4
51

4
3
49

8
11
70

16
2
72

4
3
38

13
2
79

27
7
79

21) Proportion of children subject to ICPC resulting in
Child Protection Plans

22) Rate/10,000 of Children Subject to a Child Protection Plan
60

100%
90%

50

80%

40

70%
60%

30

50%
40%

20

30%

10

20%
10%

0

0%
Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17 Apr-17 May-17 Jun-17
Percentage of ICPCs in month

Number of ICPCs in month
Number with "CP Plan to commence" outcome
No Outcome Recorded
Percentage outcome "CP Plan to commence"
Percentage of ICPCs in month

Jun-16

Percentage outcome "CP Plan to commence"

Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17 Apr-17
38
17
58
51
49
70
72
35
48
63
51
55
71
33
32
42
57
41
15
47
43
38
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
91.4% 87.5% 90.5% 80.4% 88.2% 81.0% 84.3% 77.6% 78.6% 98.6% 86.8%
100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

May-17
79
67
0
84.8%
100.0%

Jun-17
79
70
0
88.6%
100.0%

Number
Rate / 10,000
England
Good LA's
Stat Neighbour

Jul-16

Aug-16 Sep-16

Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16

16/17 & 17/18 Rate/10000

15/16 Rate/10000

Jun-16
603
42.3
610
54.2
543
33.7
499
52.3

Jul-16
513
36.0
610
54.2
543
33.7
499
52.3

Aug-16
533
37.4
610
54.2
543
33.7
499
52.3

Sep-16
477
33.5
610
54.2
543
33.7
499
52.3

Oct-16
418
29.3
610
54.2
543
33.7
499
52.3

Nov-16
406
28.5
610
54.2
543
33.7
499
52.3

Jan-17

Feb-17 Mar-17 Apr-17 May-17 Jun-17

S.N. Rate/10,000
Dec-16
396
27.8
610
54.2
543
33.7
499
52.3

Jan-17
392
27.5
611
54.2
543
33.7
499
52.3

Feb-17
419
29.4
612
54.2
543
33.7
499
52.3

Target Rate/10,000
Mar-17
442
31.0
613
54.2
543
33.7
499
52.3

Apr-17
427
29.9
614
54.2
543
33.7
499
52.3

May-17
461
32.3
615
54.2
543
33.7
499
52.3

Jun-17
494
34.4
616
54.2
543
33.7
499
52.3

For June 2017, 70 out of 79 ICPC’s (88.6%) have an For June 2017, 494 Children subject to a Child Protection
outcome of “CP Plan to Commence”.
Plan.
Year to date, April – June 2017, 170 out of 196 (87%) 12 month average is 448, rate 31.4.
have an outcome of “CP Plan to Commence”.
Devon rate for 2015/16
Evidence that the number of ICPCs being held is
increasing in 4 of the past 5 months across the Given the rise in ICPC requests, the number of children
made subject to CP plans is once more increasing. The
County. This impacts on timescales and capacity.
number of children being removed from plans remains
steady. This increase is likely to be linked to:
1. Increased use of ICPCs in light of clear
expectations set for CP investigations since
February 2017 in particular.
2. The new conference model is being used
effectively.
Improving approach to Child In Need plans and the need
to step some children up to Child Protection plans in a
more timely way.

Page 133
Page 10 of 25

Agenda
Item 10
23) % of Repeat CPP’s in the year
60%
50%
40%
30%
22.4%
20%

17.9%
11.80%

10%
0%

Jun-16

Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17 Apr-17 May-17 Jun-17

CPP Repeats EVER YTD 16/17

CPP Repeats Within 2 Yrs YTD 16/17

Devon 15/16 (22.4%)

Devon 14/15 (17.5%)

Stat Neighbour 15/16 (21.5%)

England 14/15 (16.6%)

Chart 23 looks at how many children have been made the subject of a
CPP in the month and whether they have ever been subject to a CPP
before.
For June 2017 26.9% of children were subject to a CPP more than once
in their childhood. Year to Date average 28%.
Outliers evident for April 2017 due to low re-registrations, high
proportion of repeats;
CPP Re-Reg

April

May

June

2017-18
YTD Av.

Re-Reg in yr
New Reg All
CPP Rpts Ever
Re-Reg 2Yrs
New Reg in yr
CPP Rpts 2yrs

16
33
48.5%
7
23
30.4%

23
100
23.0%
11
68
16.2%

46
171
26.9%
17
144
11.8%

85
304
28.0%
35
235
14.9%

For 15/16 this was 22.4% for Devon, 21.5% for Stat Neighbours and
17.9% for ‘Good LA’s’. The rate of repeat CPP’s within 2 years is 14.3%.

Good LA's

This number of repeat plans in a two year period is at a rate (14.3%) is in line with SN and national data.
Levels of children returning on plans at any point in their childhood reflect a wider theme of ‘revolving door’ cases
and focus is required throughout the system to work effectively from an early stage as well as at CP threshold to
work effectively to reduce risk in a meaningful long term way. We have to consider the reasons for this, such as:
1. Are we making effective step down decisions to CIN from CP plan?
2. Is the CINwork required post step down effective?
This is an issue that the IRU will be monitoring via internal audit with the aim of reducing this to get back in line
with good authority and SN tolerance levels.
No. of Children Re-Reg in rolling Yr
No. of CPP starts
Cumulative 16/17 CPP starts
CPP % Re-Reg YTD 16/17
CPP Re-Reg within 2 Yrs YTD 16/17

Jun-16

Jul-16

Aug-16

Sep-16

Oct-16

Nov-16

Dec-16

Jan-17

Feb-17

Mar-17

Apr-17

May-17

Jun-17

23
32
110
20.9%
11.5%

29
42
152
19.1%
10.5%

42
56
208
20.2%
10.6%

57
41
249
22.9%
13.4%

63
16
265
23.8%
13.7%

72
47
312
23.2%
13.8%

79
43
355
22.3%
13.2%

95
39
394
24.5%
13.9%

62
55
449
24.7%
14.0%

74
70
519
24.5%
14.3%

16
33
552
48.5%
30.4%

23
67
619
23.0%
16.2%

46
71
690
26.9%
11.8%

2017-18
YTD Av.
28
57
747
28.0%
14.9%

Page 134
Page 11 of 25

Agenda Item 10

24) Team breakdown of children ending CPP within 3 months of starting CPP’s (April 2017 to June 2017 is 19%).
Apr 2017
Team

CHILDREN & FAMILIES EXETER 1
CHILDREN & FAMILIES EXETER 2
CHILDREN & FAMILIES EXETER 3
CHILDREN & FAMILIES EXETER 4
TOTAL CHILDREN & FAMILIES EXETER
CHILDREN & FAMILIES MID & EAST 1
CHILDREN & FAMILIES MID & EAST 2
CHILDREN & FAMILIES MID & EAST 3
CHILDREN & FAMILIES MID & EAST 4
TOTAL CHILDREN & FAMILIES MID & EAST
CHILDREN & FAMILIES NORTH 1
CHILDREN & FAMILIES NORTH 2
CHILDREN & FAMILIES NORTH 3
CHILDREN & FAMILIES NORTH 4
TOTAL CHILDREN & FAMILIES NORTH
CHILDREN & FAMILIES SOUTH 1
CHILDREN & FAMILIES SOUTH 2
CHILDREN & FAMILIES SOUTH 3
CHILDREN & FAMILIES SOUTH 4
TOTAL CHILDREN & FAMILIES SOUTH

Ended

Ended

0-2

3+

months

months

May 2017

1
6

months

months

1

0%
0%
25%
0%
8%

1

3
10

1
0%
6
0%
1 100%
3
0%
11 9%

5
4
4
2
15

5
4
4
2
15

0%
0%
0%
0%
0%

1
1

1
1

2
2

50%
50%

3

3

2

2

4

50%

3

4
9
3
2
18

4
11
3
3
21

0%
18%
0%
33%
14%

1
3

0%
33%
0%
17%

3+

2
1
4
5
12

2

3
6
3
12

0-2

2
1
3
5
11

1

3
4
3
10

months

1

1
1

GRAND TOTALS

Ended

Ended

0-2

3+

months

months

17%

2

3+

months

months

2
4

2
4
1

0%
0%
100%

4

6

7

14%

4

2
2
4

2
2
2
6

100%
0%
0%
33%

2
1

0%

1
5

1
5

3

0%

6

6

2

2
1

0%
100%

4
3
1

2

3

33%

8

4
3
2
9

1
1
2

2

2
48

Ended

0-2

% 0-2

2

40

Ended

Total
Ends

months

ICS EXETER
INITIAL RESPONSE EXETER
INITIAL RESPONSE SOUTH
PERMANENCY & TRANSITION EXETER 1
TOTAL AD-HOC TEAMS
8

Grand Total

Jun 2017
% 0-2

2

% 0-2

Ended

Total
Ends

2

Total
Ends

Ended

31

33

6%

13

25

Total
Ends

% 0-2

4
8
7
8
27

4
8
11
8
31

0%
0%
36%
0%
13%

3

6
10
6
7
29

6
12
7
7
32

0%
17%
14%
0%
9%

0%
0%

1
1

5
6

6
7

17%
14%

0%

2

11

13

15%

4 100%
7 43%
4 25%
2
0%
17 47%

4
5
2
1
12

4
15
6
4
29

8
20
8
5
41

50%
25%
25%
20%
29%

2

100%

2

2

100%

2

100%

2

2

100%

38

34%

23

months

96

months

119 19%

25) CPP Ending within 3 months of CPP starting April 2017 to June 2017 (19%)
35%
YTD Feb-17 all teams 19%
30%

25%

20%

15%

29%

10%

38 children’s plans ended within 3 months and these
cases require review. The IRU has been asked to
review these cases to consider themes and issues for
the child protection chair and social work teams
requesting conferences.

15%

13%

5%

The number of plans ending within 3 months is
increasing once more following a period of sustained
focus which supported an improvement in
performance for this.

9%

0%

C&F Exeter

C&F Mid & East

C&F North

Apr-17

May-17

Jun-17

YTD Ave

17%

6%

34%

19%

C&F South

Page 135
Page 12 of 25

Agenda Item 10

SECTION 5
CHILDREN LOOKED AFTER

26) Number of Children looked After

27) Age and Gender of Children looked After

900

180

800

160

700

140

600

120
100

500

80

400

60

300

40

200

20

100

0

0

Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17 Apr-17 May-17 Jun-17
16/17

16/17
Rate /10,000

Jun-16
708
49.7

15/16

Jul-16
718
50.4

Aug-16 Sep-16
711
710
49.9
49.8

Target

Stat Neighbour

Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16
703
704
700
49.3
49.4
49.1

Jan-17
696
48.8

England

Good LA's

Feb-17 Mar-17 Apr-17 May-17 Jun-17
690
684
696
684
690
48.4
48.0
48.8
48.0
48.1

Under 1

21
8
0

Boys
Girls
Non Binary

1 to 5

6 to 10

11 to 15

44
38
0

87
51
0

156
105
0

16+

101
79
0

690 Children Looked After, 59% Boys, 41% Girls.
12 Month average is 699.

The numbers of Looked after children continues at a steady rate this year (48.1), which is just below our Statistical
Neighbour (53) and just above our group of Good LA’s comparators.
Comparative Local Authorities (LA) inspected as “Good”; Average Number is 829, Rate / 10,000 Population 0-17yrs is 56.
LA
Cornwall
Essex
Hertfordshire

Numbers
430
1,005
1,010

Rate
41
33
38

LA
Numbers
Lincolnshire
625
North Yorkshire
410
Wiltshire
415

28) Length of time in care

Rate
44
35
40

Rate

534

53

SW

357

53

Good LA's

649

39

400
350

100

300

80

250

60

200
150

40

100

20

Boys
Girls

Numbers

SN

29) Legal Status

120

0

SN/SW/Good

50
<6 W

2.0%
5.3%
0.0%

<6 M

<1 Yr

< 2 Yrs

< 4 Yrs

4+ Yrs

10.5%
13.5%
0.0%

16.1%
12.1%
0.0%

22.7%
21.4%
0.0%

23.5%
26.3%
0.0%

25.2%
21.4%
0.0%

0

Number
Rate

ICO

FCO

82
11.9%

377
54.6%

s20

PO

166
24.1%

65
9.4%

EPO/PPO

0.0%

Length of Time in Care for 48% is >2 years, 37% for 6 55% Full Care Order (FCO), 24% Single Period of
Accommodation, 12% Interim Care Order, 9% Placement
months to 2 years, 15% for less than 6 months.
Order.
We are about to review our pilot project in North
Devon, that is targeting young people on the edge of S20 should not generally be used over the long term for
care to prevent accommodation for those young people looked after children as its voluntary nature presents a risk
who can be supported to remain within their families. for drift and challenge on a human rights basis; particularly
If this is successful we would hope to see a reduction in in respect of children where permanence planning
the number of young people entering care in the 11 to decisions must be made. There has been a significant
15 year age range and those that return home within a change since February in that the swing has been to a
short space of time.
much higher percentage more FCO and S20 much less.

Page 136

Page 13 of 25

Agenda Item 10

There has been increased scrutiny in regard to children
placed under S20. Analysis needs to be made of the
current data to be confident that it is due to improved
practice and also a comparison in relation to how we
perform against Good authorities.

30) Percentage of Children looked After with a Visit Completed
in the Previous 6 Weeks

31) Number of Placements

100%

250

237

90%
Count of Children

70%
60%
50%
40%
30%

150
95

100

59
50

20%
10%
0%

204

200

80%

0

Jun-16

Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17 Apr-17 May-17 Jun-17
Previous 12 months

1

2

3

4

5

30

6

13

6

3

7

8

9

13
10+

Count of Placements

Latest 12 months

Target Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17 Apr-17 May-17 Jun-17
100.0% 84.3% 84.1% 89.0% 89.0% 92.3% 89.1% 86.9% 90.4% 89.6% 89.3% 94.7% 94.0% 97.4%

30

Count of placements since period of care start for all CLA
as at 30th June 2017.

Performance has continued to improve in this area. The
six weekly visiting frequency is a minimum and focused
work is in place to ensure this is achieved in all cases.
Recent discussion at SMT indicates a need to report that
the child is seen in accordance with the frequency
identified in their plans, as for many looked after children
this is much more frequently than six weekly. However,
current discussion in the service is about the quality of
social worker interaction with the child, their relationship
with the child, and the nature of the work being
undertaken with the child and family by the social worker
in line with the plan. Visits should not be seen as an
activity in their own right.
We have reiterated standards and expectations and senior
managers now have oversight and give approval for
visiting that goes outside the statutory minimum. This will
be only agreed in exceptional circumstances if confident
young peoples needs will still be met and overseen by
statutory reviews.

Page 137
Page 14 of 25

Agenda Item 10

st

32) 3+ Placement Moves by Team from 1 April 2017

Children and Families
Permanency & Transition
Initial Response
DCS
Others
Total

Mid-East
North
South
Exeter

Number
0
2
9
0
5
0
1
2
19

Out-turn
0.0%
0.3%
1.3%
0.0%
0.7%
0.1%
0.3%
0.3%
2.8%

Additional scrutiny is continued to be undertaken by
senior managers, to identify the children who have
already had two placement moves and may be at risk of
a further move, to ensure appropriate placement
planning and supports are in place, particularly
including specialist interventions, such as CAMHS, as a
response to this. The data in relation to this has been re
launched this last month to ensure that we continue
with that close scrutiny.
We had identified that practice was improving, however
it is an area that needs close oversight to ensure that
imptrovement continues.

Page 138
Page 15 of 25

CS1725 – Appendix 1
33) Children looked After Health Services
DEVON COUNTY COUNCIL
CHILDREN

LOOKED

A F T E R (CLA) H E A L T H

SERVICES

P E R F O R M A N C E O N A P A G E as at 30 June 2017

DCC Currrent Children Looked After (CLA) Population

No.

CLA: Number of Children

690

CLA: Aged 5 and Over

597

86.5%

80%

93

13.5%

70%

Potential OC2 Cohort (CLA at least 1 Year as at Mar. 31st 2017)

No.

Share

60%

2017/18 Potential OC2: Number of Children

618

2017/18 Potential OC2: Aged 5 and Over

549

88.8%

69

11.2%

No.

Rate

CLA: Aged Under 5

2017/18 Potential OC2: Aged Under 5

Current CLA Performance Measures

Share

Number of Children Starting to be Looked After Since April 1st

72

Of above; Initial Health Assessments (IHA's) Completed

52

72.2%

Of IHA's Completed Since April 1st, those Completed within 20 Working Days

49

68.1%

Of RHA's Completed in June, those Completed within 20 Working Days

Location of All CLA
Population

Comparison of Health Measures Between Two YTD Populations

100%

Location of OC2 Population

90%

50%
40%
30%

71.2%

74.1%

20%
10%
0%

Devon

Data Quality

OoC

Devon

Data Quality

OoC

Dental

RHA u 5

RHA 5 +

OC2

75.7%

76.8%

74.5%

All CLA

70.1%

59.1%

69.0%

75.5%

Of Current CLA; Annual Dental Check Completed within the Year(since 01 July 20

484

Frequency of SDQ Scores

70.1%
40

Page 139

Performance Measures (for Potential OC2 Cohort)

No.

Rate

35

For OC2: Cohort Annual Review Health Assess. Completed withinYear (since 01 J

465

75.2%

30

For OC2: Cohort: Annual Dental Check Completed within Year (since 01 July 20

468

75.7%

Intervention Required --------------------------------------------------------------->

25
20

SDQ Cohort (Potential OC2 Aged 4-16)

No.

Number of Children Eligible for an SDQ (OC2 Aged 4-16)

473

Number of Children with a Recorded SDQ Score

388

82.0%

Of those, Recorded SDQ Scores above the Intervention Score of 17

198

51.0%

Highest SDQ Score Recorded (of a Maximum of 40)

40

Average for all SDQ Scores

160

15

Rate

10
5
0
Instances

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

2

4

8

6

14

6

22

19

8

14

13

21

16

23

14

25

23

34

25

19

19

17

18

12

17

10

17

11

9

6

10

4

5

0

3

4

1

0

0

0

1

16.6

Age and Gender Split of the OC2 Population also Showing the Proportion of the Cohort
Living Out of the County

90%

70%

100

60%

80

50%
40%

60

OC2

SDQ

All CLA

OC2

IHA's

All CLA

OC2

162

148

110

21.6%

21.6%

25.0%

21.7%

21.6%

16.1

East & Mid Devon

155

137

104

22.7%

22.7%

21.2%

20.2%

20.5%

17.1

North Devon

154

133

109

23.1%

22.9%

26.9%

23.1%

22.9%

16.6

South & West Devon

208

189

144

30.6%

30.7%

26.9%

32.6%

32.7%

16.2

Others

11

11

6

1.9%

1.9%

0.0%

2.3%

2.4%

15.3

Totals

690

618

473

467

462

52

484

468

16.6

Health Assess.

Over 5 RHAs: in last 12m
Under 5 RHAs: in last 6m
IHAs: For CLA starting since
01/04/2017

Service Area

20%

20

10%
1 to 5

6 to 10

11 to 15

16+

Male

50

83

152

92

Female

34

40

95

72

0%

SDQ
Average
Score

All CLA

30%

40

Dental Check
in last 12m

Exeter

80%

120

Out of
County

Health Assess.

Over 5 RHAs: in last 12m
Under 5 RHAs: in last 6m
IHAs: For CLA starting since
01/04/2017

Geographical Area

Dental Check
in last 12m

SDQ

SDQ's

All CLA

OC2

SDQ

All CLA

OC2

IHA's

All CLA

OC2

SDQ

8

7

5

0.6%

0.6%

1.9%

0.8%

0.9%

11.2

Children & Families

252

185

128

23.8%

23.8%

92.3%

28.7%

26.7%

15.7

Permanency & Transition

364

362

289

63.8%

64.3%

1.9%

58.7%

60.5%

16.3

Initial Response

Disabled Children's Service

55

53

45

9.4%

9.3%

3.8%

9.5%

9.6%

20.1

Other

11

11

6

2.4%

1.9%

0.0%

2.3%

2.4%

15.3

Totals

690

618

473

467

462

52

484

468

16.6

Agenda Item 10

140

0

Geographical & Service Area Breakdowns of the 2017/18 CLA, OC2 & SDQ Populations
100%

Agenda Item 10

34) Care Leavers

DEVON COUNTY COUNCIL
CARE LEAVER SERVICE
P E R F O R M A N C E O N A P A G E 28 February 2017

OFSTED - Care Leavers Cohort Eligibility Status

No.

Share

22

4.2%

399

76.9%

6

1.2%

Relevant
Former Relevant
Qualifying Special Guardianship
Qualifying Private Fostering

11

2.1%

Qualifying Pre-planned Short

62

11.9%

4
15

Qualifying LAC less than 13 weeks

Other open to PERMANENCY & TRANSITION Team

OFSTED by Gender and Age

16

17

18

19

20

21

22+

Male

3

13

57

80

82

45

0

0.8%

Female

4

10

55

56

75

39

0

2.9%

Non Binary
80

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

519

-

DfE - Care Leavers Cohort Eligibility Status

No.

Rate

Former Relevant

376

94.0%

24

6.0%

400

-

LAC - Eligible for Care Leaving Services

166

-

Total Number of Unique Care Leavers*

752

-

Relevant

100
80
60
40
20
0

Page 140

* Currently 375 Care Leavers appear in both the DfE and OFSTED Cohorts

60

DfE by Gender and Age

40
20
0

16

17

18

19

20

21

Male

2

7

48

74

69

18

Female

2

8

44

50

59

19

Non Binary

0

0

0

0

0

0

P O T E N T I A L O F S T E D C O H O R T (N O T C U R R E N T L Y O P E N)
Potential Care Leavers Cohort Eligibility Status
Relevant
Former Relevant

No.

STATUTORY RETURN MEASURES

Measure

0

0.0%

47

16.5%

DCC In Touch? - YES

Num

Qualifying Special Guardianship

21

7.4%

DCC In Touch? - NO

7

89

31.3%

DCC In Touch? - REFUSED

5

DCC In Touch? - BLANKS

Qualifying Pre-planned Short

74

26.1%

18

6.3%

Other open to PERMANENCY Team & Finance

35

12.3%

284

-

Total Number of Potential Care Leavers

The Potential Care Leavers Cohort above are those Cases that are Currently
Unallocated or Finance Only cases, that could fall into the OFSTED Cohort

Den

463

Qualifying Private Fostering
Qualifying LAC less than 13 weeks

D f E C O H O R T (SSDA903)

O F S T E D C O H OR T (ANNEX A)

Rate

559

(Cohort based on young people who's information is
required at this point of the year)
Rate

Measure

82.8%

DCC In Touch? - YES

Num

1.3%

DCC In Touch? - NO

0

0.9%

DCC In Touch? - REF.

0

84

15.0%

DCC In Touch? - BLNK

59

Care Leaver is EET

226

48.8%

Care Leaver is EET

29

Care Leaver is NEET

237

51.2%

Care Leaver is NEET

Accomm is SUITABLE

404

87.3%

Accomm is SUITABLE

61

12.7%

Accomm is NOT SUIT.

71

Accomm is NOT SUITABLE

59

Multiple Occupancy

11

100%

The OFSTED Cohort requires the latest information ever recorded on a
Care Leaver.

80%

The DfE Cohort requires information on Care Leavers to be Recorded
within the Window of 3 Months Prior to and 1 Month After their relevant
birthday for the 19 to 21 year old, and after care or up to 1 month after
care for 17 to 18 year old.

40%

463

82.8%

60%

55.3%

DfE

40%

2.4%
EET

SUIT

HMO

0.0%
44.7%

132
132

22.0%
78.0%
46.2%
53.8%

22.0%

30%

20%

0.0%

132

46.2%

50%

48.8%

IN TOUCH

103

Rate
55.3%

Not Measured for DfE Cohort

2.4%

87.3%

OFSTED

60%

0%

463

Den

73

20%
10%
0%

IN TOUCH

EET

SUIT

Page 17 of 25

Agenda Item 10
35) Local Authority Level Tables: Source, Published Census 2015-16, SFR41/2016.

compared to
Change from
2015/16
2014/15 Devon Devon
Average of
Census 2015/16 2014/15
Stat.
period
Neighbours

Local Authority Level Tables

Care Leavers
LAF1a Care leavers now aged 19, 20 and 21 by contact with Local Authority
LAF1b Care leavers now aged 17 and 18 by contact with Local Authority - Experimental Statistics
LAF2a Care leavers aged 19, 20 and 21 by activity
LAF2b Care leavers aged 17 and 18 by activity - Experimental Statistics
LAF3a Care leavers now aged 19, 20 and 21 by accommodation




350
135
415
140
415

455
455







Good LA's
Average
(Cornwall, Essex,
South
across Stat.
Hertfordshire, National
West
Neighbours
Lincolnshire, North 2015/16
2015/16
2015/16
Yorkshire,
Wiltshire)
185
63
206
66
206

156
64
170
61
170

273
113
298
118
298

151
57
173
61
173

37) Number of Providers by Type and Ofsted Grade

36) Number of Looked After Children and Young
People Placed by Provider Type and Ofsted Grade

The above chart includes all of Devon’s looked after 74% (59 of total 80) children’s homes were judged as
children, including those placed out of county.
Good (51) or Outstanding (8) in Q1 17/18.
In Q1 17/18 41% (257 of 623) children are in providers One child is placed in a foster placement with an agency
inspected as good (214), or outstanding (43), 5 more that is inadequate. This relates to a young person who
Outstanding compared to Q4 16/17.
is placed with a foster carer with Torbay unitary
authority. The young person was placed with the foster
The data indicates 58.6% (365) of children are in a carer on 01/08/12 when they were registered with IFA.
provider that has a category that ‘requires improvement’ On 08/07/14 the carer transferred to Torbay and
or ‘Inadequate’ of which the majority (55% or 343) are continued to care for the young person.
Local Authority foster carers.
Note: in-house adoption and fostering services are now
judged separately through the LA’s Single Inspection
Framework.

Page 141
Page 18 of 25

Agenda Item 10
38) Children in Devon Care Homes: Overall Effectiveness
Ward

URN

Setting Name

Provider Subtype

Sector

Registration
Date

Max
Users

Full
Inspection
Start Date

Overall
Effectiveness

Axminster Rural

SC407753 Woodview

Children's home

Private

04/03/2010

4

06/07/2016 Good

Axminster Rural

SC468747 Highview

Children's home

Private

12/08/2013

2

26/04/2017 Good
Requires
Improvement

Bere Ferrers

SC036528 Chelfham Senior School

Residential special
school

Private

20/02/2004

14

27/06/2016

Bickleigh and
Shaugh

SC457266 Blaxton Farm

Children's home

Private

21/03/2013

3

29/09/2016 Good

Bickleigh and
Shaugh

SC457553 Horsham Farm

Children's home

Private

14/03/2013

2

24/11/2016 Good

Children's home

Private

25/10/2016

2

16/05/2017

Bideford East

1244137

Newport Terrace

Requires
Improvement
Requires
Improvement

Bideford East

SC463431 Clifton Street

Children's home

Private

31/05/2013

2

07/09/2016

Bideford North

SC368137 Meddon Street

Children's home

Private

10/12/2007

2

20/04/2016 Good

Bideford North

SC381652 Bridge View

Children's home

Private

15/10/2008

2

09/08/2016 Good

5

Requires
12/01/2017
Improvement

Bishop's
Nympton

SC066179 Little Oak

Children's home

Private

09/02/2006

DCC
Placed
children
(Y/N)

Comment

Yes
No
A recent Interim Inspection
(28/11/16) found improved
effectiveness.
A recent Interim Inspection
(31/01/17) found improved
A recent Interim Inspection
(07/02/17) found declined in

No
No
Yes
No

A recent Interim Inspection
(11/01/17) found improved
effectiveness.
A recent Interim Inspection
(03/01/17) found improved
effectiveness.

No

Yes
Yes
Yes

A recent Interim Inspection
(15/02/17) found improved
effectiveness.

Bovey

SC456726 Shaptor Farm

Children's home

Private

14/03/2013

3

Requires
12/12/2016
Improvement

Canonsleigh

SC455991 Higher Whipcott Farm

Children's home

Private

19/12/2012

4

13/12/2016 Good

Castle

SC458431 Barnes Children's Home

Children's home

Private

28/03/2013

5

09/05/2016

Requires
Improvement

Clovelly Bay

SC038167 Four Winds

Children's home

Private

23/12/2002

4

29/11/2016

Requires
Improvement

Clyst Valley

SC467704 Russets Court

Children's home

Private

09/08/2013

2

06/10/2016

Requires
Improvement

College

SC463647 Penn House

Children's home

Private

06/08/2013

5

07/06/2016 Good

Cullompton
Outer

SC484790 Knowles House

Children's home

Private

05/01/2015

4

11/05/2016 Good

No

Dartington

SC003792

Children's home

Voluntary

19/08/1999

10

10/05/2017 Good

Yes

Dunkeswell

SC465120 Brookside Farm

Children's home

Private

27/03/2014

3

Chipley Mill

Children's home

Private

25/05/2017

4

Dame Hannah Rogers
School

Residential special
school

Voluntary

22/12/2005

15

19/05/2016 Good

Private

28/03/2013

5

25/04/2016 Good

Haytor

1253583

Robins (Respite & Life
Skills Centre)

Ivybridge
Woodlands

SC065443

Kenn Valley

SC458422 Meadowpark

Kerswell-withCombe

SC458352 Valley View

Children's home

02/11/2016

Children's home

Private

14/03/2013

3

09/06/2016 Good

13/04/2016

Requires
Improvement

Paddon's Coombe

Children's home

Private

17/02/2016

1

Kingsteignton
East

1249787

Little Hayes

Children's home

Private

16/12/2016

1

Kingsteignton
East

SC003884

One to One Crisis
Intervention

Children's home

Private

19/10/2001

1

16/06/2016 Good

Kingsteignton
East

One to One Crisis
SC003897
Intervention

Children's home

Private

13/02/2002

1

27/04/2016 Good

SC457132 Orchid Vale

Children's home

Private

25/02/2013

1

03/05/2016 Good

Kingsteignton
East

SC457137 Woodmere

Children's home

Private

14/03/2013

1

29/11/2016 Good

SC068205

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes
No
Yes
Yes
A recent Interim Inspection
(08/03/17) found declined in
effectiveness.
A recent Interim Inspection
(04/11/16) found improved
effectiveness.

Yes

No

Not Inspected Yet

Kingsteignton
East

Kingsteignton
West

A recent Interim Inspection
(15/02/17) found declined in
effectiveness.
A recent Interim Inspection
(02/02/17) found improved
effectiveness.
A recent Interim Inspection
(09/03/17) found improved
effectiveness.

Not Inspected Yet

1231066

1231067

No
Yes

Requires
Improvement

Kingsteignton
East

Kingsteignton
West

No

Chudleigh Road

Children's home

Private

08/03/2016

1

Requires
28/09/2016
Improvement

One to One Crisis
Intervention

Children's home

Private

21/08/2006

1

07/09/2016 Good

No
A recent Interim Inspection
(10/11/16) found improved
effectiveness.

No
No

A recent Interim Inspection
(26/01/17) found declined in
effectiveness.

No
No

A recent Interim Inspection
(31/01/17) found improved
effectiveness.

No
No

A recent Interim Inspection
(20/02/17) found declined in
effectiveness.

Longbridge

SC403234 Osbourne Terrace

Children's home

Private

22/12/2009

3

23/08/2016 Good

Lowman

SC408149 Bournville Place

Children's home

Private

25/02/2010

2

31/08/2016

Local
Authority

19/03/2004

12

27/09/2016 Good

No
Yes

Requires
Improvement

Mincinglake

SC046276 Atkinson Unit

Secure Unit

Pilton

Welland House Children's
SC458429
Home

Children's home

Private

28/03/2013

7

26/08/2016 Good

St Leonard's

SC489640 Progress House

Children's home

Voluntary

27/07/2015

3

05/01/2017 Good

Yes
No

No
A recent Interim Inspection
(20/03/17) found improved
effectiveness.

Tale Vale

SC064472 Loyalty Hall

Children's home

Private

28/09/2005

4

19/12/2016 Good

Tale Vale

SC458430 Hillcrest Children's Home

Children's home

Private

09/01/2013

3

13/10/2016 Good

Yes

Walkham

SC433286 Gem Cottage

Children's home

Private

10/08/2011

2

08/03/2017 Inadequate

Yes

No

Subsequent interim inspection has been carried out. Comments added to indicate where there has been an improvement on decline in
effectiveness found during that interim inspection.

Page 142
Page 19 of 25

39) Adoption Scorecard

Page 143

Agenda Item 10

Page 20 of 25

Agenda Item 10
SECTION 6
CASE ALLOCATION

40) Worker Case Allocation and FTE Breakdown by Service and Team
Service Area

Team Name

Practice Manager

Current FTEs Caseload
Adjustment*

Total Open Cases

Of Which, Allocated
to Named Worker

% Allocated to
Named Worker

Ave. No. of Cases
per Current FTE
Total

Exeter

IRCX1

Juanita Scallan

5.2

112

112

100.0%

21.5

Mid & East

IRCM1

Kevin Kenna

6.0

199

199

100.0%

33.2

North

IRCN1

Naomi Pollard

7.0

188

188

100.0%

26.9

South

IRCS1

Jean Beynon

7.2

236

236

100.0%

32.8

25.4

735

735

100.0%

28.9

CFCX1

Leanne Coleman

4.6

80

80

100.0%

17.4

CFCX2

Phil Stagg

5.2

97

97

100.0%

18.7

CFCX3

Claire Smailes

6.9

126

125

99.2%

18.2

CFCX4

Helen Neighbour

7.8

108

107

99.1%

13.8

24.5

411

409

99.5%

16.7

Initial Response

Initial Response Total

Children &
Families

Exeter

Children and Families - Exeter Total

Children &
Families

CFCM1

Anna Partridge (Agency)

4.6

67

67

100.0%

14.6

CFCM2

Melanie Richards

7.6

120

120

100.0%

15.8

CFCM3

Emily Hextall

5.6

81

81

100.0%

14.5

CFCM4

Andrew Collins (Agency)

6.6

109

109

100.0%

16.5

Mid & East

Children and Families - Mid/East Total

Children &
Families

North

24.4

377

377

100.0%

15.5

CFCN2

Yvonne Cherrington

5.8

134

134

100.0%

23.1

CFCN3

Fran Hughes

5.2

114

114

100.0%

21.9

CFCN4

Neil Dunn (Agency)

5.6

116

116

100.0%

20.7

Children and Families - North Total

Children &
Families

16.6

364

364

100.0%

21.9

CFCS1

Annette Titterington

7.6

139

139

100.0%

18.3

CFCS2

Diane Yates (Agency)

5.8

129

129

100.0%

22.2

CFCS3

Helen Patten (Agency)

6.8

127

127

100.0%

18.7

CFCS4

Lucy Lawson

7.4

143

143

100.0%

19.3

27.6

538

538

100.0%

19.5

South

Children and Families - South Total

Permanency &
Transition

Exeter

PTCX1

Juliet Jones

12.5

234

233

99.6%

18.7

Mid & East

PTCM1

Vacancy

9.0

142

142

100.0%

15.8

North

PTCN1

Giles Bashford

10.2

205

197

96.1%

20.1

South

PTCS1

Karen Thompson

10.8

221

221

100.0%

20.6

42.5

802

793

98.9%

18.9
17.3

Permanency and Transition Total

Disabled
Children's
Services

DCS East-Mid

ICCEMID

Brian Copp

4.3

75

75

100.0%

DCS Exeter

ICCEXETR

Martin Quaintance

5.0

102

101

99.0%

20.4

DCS North 1

ICCNORTH

Marianne Jackson

1.7

34

32

94.1%

20.0

DCS North 2

ICCNRTH2

-

2.1

18

16

88.9%

8.6

DCS South 1

ICCSWEST

Tasha Allington

2.4

29

29

100.0%

12.1

DCS South 2

ICCSWST2

Tasha Allington

3.3

83

83

100.0%

25.2

18.8

341

336

98.5%

18.1

1.7

37

36

97.3%

22.0

181.5

3,605

3,588

99.5%

19.9

Integrated Children's Services Total
Private Fostering

PFC1

Total (Excluding FOC Cases)
Finance Only Cases

ICS Finance Only Cases

Elaine Newton

FOC01

286

ICSFREME,
ICSFRN &
ICSFRS

1,171

No Assigned Team

0

Total (Including FOC Cases)

5,062

The average caseload for June 2017 is 19.9.
Staff names in red text denotes 'Agency Staff'
Minus staff shown as on long term sick leave or maternity
In 'Current FTEs - Caseload Adjustment*' figures ASYE's and NQSW's can only carry a 60% caseload and therefore a full time (1 FTE)
ASYE or NQSW is adjusted to be 0.6 FTE
* FTE Caseload Adjustment = Family Practitioners only counted in P&T teams, ASYEs throughout adjusted to be 0.6 of their FTE for
caseload purposes.
All Team Managers and Assistant Team Managers are excluded from caseload calculations, i.e. they are not case-holding.
In the Private Fostering team the Manager is included and is said to be case-holding.

Page 144

Page 21 of 25

Agenda Item 10
41) Allocations; Children in Need, 3,934 (includes 1,171
DCS finance, 286 Finance only) plus, CP (494) and
Children looked After (690), Total 5,118 and Care
Leavers (494) shown for information.

42) Allocations; P&T teams, Open Cases (794)

Allocations of 5,118 Clients by Case Type and Teams

Allocations of 794 Clients by Case Type for P&T Areas

1,200

250

1,000

200

800

150
600

100

400

50

200
0

IR
Care Leavers (494)

Exeter

Mid & East
CiC (690)

North
CP (494)

South

P&T

Cin Unallocated (633)

CwD
CiN SW (2,345)

PF

CwD Finance Finance Only
Only Cases Cases
(FOC01)
CiN Other Professional (956)

0

P&T Mid/East
Care Leavers (425)

P&T North
CiC (364)

CP (2)

P&T South
Cin Unallocated (0)

CiN SW (3)

P&T Exeter
CiN Other Professional (0)

Page 145
Page 22 of 25

SECTION 7

Agenda Item 10

INDEPENDENT REVIEWING UNIT

43) Child Protection Meeting Attendance

Number of IRU Monitoring Forms completed in the
month for CP Review meetings

Jul-16

Aug-16

Sep-16

Oct-16

Nov-16

Dec-16

Jan-17

Feb-17

Mar-17

Apr-17

May-17

Jun-17

55

16

37

12

23

17

8

40

70

43

78

39

62.5%

81.3%

69.6%

71.4%

76.1%

80.8%

Percentage where CP visits were completed in line
78.2%
93.8%
72.2%
83.3%
73.9%
64.7%
with the plan
Note: Percentage Excludes forms where CP visit question was not answered
Note: From Aug 15 onwards, number of review meetings counted rather than number of children subject to review meetings

44) Timeliness of Social Worker Reports for Children looked After Reviews
154 IRU monitoring reports for Children in Care received for June 2017.
45) Changes of Social Worker since last Child in Care Review
Of the 154 monitoring forms returned in June 2017, 76% of responses indicated a continuity of Social Worker since last review.
Of these, 17% show the child/young person having 1 or more changes of social worker since the last Child in Care review an
decrease of 5% from May 2017 taking account of the 151 new forms that have responses to this question.
26 children/young people had a change of one SW since their last review, compared with 23 for May 2017.
Trend – % of cases reviewed with 1 or more changes of Social Worker since last review:% of QA Forms completed in the month that indicate
1 or more changes in Social Worker since the last CiC
review

Apr-16

May-16

Jun-16

Jul-16

Aug-16

Sep-16

Oct-16

Nov-16

Dec-16

Jan-17

Feb-17

Mar-17

Apr-17

May-17

Jun-17

38.7%

36.5%

27.7%

27.5%

18.1%

30.0%

32.1%

25.0%

24.4%

23.5%

32.6%

22.0%

32.0%

12.0%

17.0%

Revised figure counting new IRU forms

Page 146
Page 23 of 25

SECTION 8

Agenda Item 10

YO U T H O F F E N D I N G S E RV I C E

46) First Time Entrants (FTE) PNC rate per 100,000 of 10-17 population

First Time Entrants figures are once again below 300
per 100,000 young people. The number of First Time
Entrants is the lowest ever recorded by Devon Youth
Offending Service.
These figures suggest that the work of the YOT Teams
within Early Help is making a positive contribution to
reducing the numbers of FTEs.

YOS
Devon
South West
Comparison Family Group
National

Mar 15
312
415
390
402

Jun 15
295
390
380
388

Sep 15
308
375
360
376

Dec 15
296
364
349
369

Mar 16
326
365
349
357

Jun 16
327
353
346
348

Sep 16
288
341
326
344

Dec 16
277
327
325
327

Devon is placed in a comparison group of similar YOTs by the YJB for comparison purposes. The other YOTs in Devon’s group are
Cambridgeshire, Cornwall, Gloucestershire, Lincolnshire, Norfolk, North Yorkshire, Oxfordshire, Somerset & Warwickshire

47) Use of custody rate per 1,000 of 10-17 population

Custody figures in Devon remain very low. To date,
there has just been one custodial sentence made
during the current year. These figures are the lowest
level of custodies ever recorded by Devon YOS. This
does not include remand figures; there have been
three periods of remand during the current financial
year, with just one of these being followed by a
custodial sentence.

YOS
Devon
South West
Comparison Family Group
National

Jun 15
0.11
0.21
0.16
0.43

Sep 15
0.09
0.19
0.19
0.41

Dec 15
0.08
0.20
0.20
0.40

Mar 16
0.09
0.18
0.16
0.37

Jun 16
0.09
0.10
0.15
0.26

Sep 16
0.08
0.14
0.14
0.36

Dec 16
0.06
0.13
0.15
0.37

Mar 17
0.02
0.12
0.16
0.37

Page 147
Page 24 of 25

Agenda Item 10

48) Re-offending rates after 12 months

These figures show the average number of further
offences committed over a 12 month period by young
people in Devon. These figures have been rising for
some time, reflecting the fact that many of the young
people with whom the Youth Offending Team works
are increasingly complex and challenging. This trend is
mirrored across England.
By comparison the proportion of young people who
reoffend is reducing; Devon’s current rate of 30.5% is
the lowest it has been for some time. This rate is lower
than the rate for the South West (32.8%), for the
comparison family group (33.1%) and the national rate
(33.7%).

YOS
Devon
South West
Comparison Family Group
National

Jun 15
0.82
0.93
0.89
1.05

Sep 15
0.78
0.92
0.89
1.08

Dec 15
0.84
0.92
0.90
1.10

Mar 16
0.93
0.94
0.93
1.14

Jun 16
0.91
0.94
0.90
1.18

Sep 16
0.87
0.93
0.90
1.19

Dec 16
0.89
0.91
0.95
1.18

Mar 17
0.96
1.00
1.07
1.26

Source: Head of Service Report, Youth Offending Service Management Board report July 2017.

Page 148
Page 25 of 25

Children In Need (CIN) Report
Report for: Children's Care- 27th July 2017

Childrens' Services
Reporting Period - 1st April 2016 - 31st March 2017

This is a summary report of key outcomes and issues within the 2016/17 Children In Need Census Return. This is to support Senior Managers in the final approval of information provided to the
Department for Education and to review outcomes of the Census.

Headlines
1
2
3

Page 149

4
5
6
7

The overall number of Child in Need cases throughout the 2016/17 year has decreased by 14.7 % in comparsion to the previous year, the rate per 10,000 is 495.6 which is below the 2015/16 figures for Statistical
Neighbours (651.9), SW (662.5) and the National average (667.1). The number of children that have ceased to be CIN during 2016/17 is 3272, a decrease of 10.9% from 3672 in 2015/16.

The Number of Referrals in 2016/17 has decreased by 27% from 6919 in 2015/16 to 5061. This corresponds to 22% fewer MASH enquiries being accepted and/or submitted for Service investigaton as a result of work to
clarrify thresholds, improved triage, improving partner awareness through MASH seminars and development of Early Help.
In 2016/17 the Number of Referrals resulting in 'No Further Action' decreased by 26% from 436 to 323, reflective of the work to improve the MASH decision making.

The Number of Single Assessments authorised during 2016/17 fell from 7552 to 5625, a 26% reducton, corresponding to the significant fall in the number of Referrals.

The number of Section 47s initiated during 2016/17 was 1452 as compared with 2061 in 2015/16, a reduction of 30% - a contributory factor being improved triaging and clarity of thresholds and this in line with the
overall reduction in referrals and fewer assessments being undertaken.
Number of Initial Child Protection Conferences (excluding 'Transfer In' Conferences) reduced by 48%, down to 624 in 2016/17 from 1202 in 2015/16.

The Number of Children who were the subject of a Child Protection Plan at the end of March 2017 was 442 as compared to 714 at the end of March 2016.

What the Service, Management Information Team (MIT) and other Departments have done well

√

√
√
√

The number of Single Assessments being authorised within 45 working day deadline stands at 89.5% for 2016/17 - continuing the high standard in 2015/16 - focus has been maintained through enhancing Single
Assessment reporting to give a more detailed team breakdowns and year-to-date position on a fortnightly basis.
The conversion rate from Section 47 enquiry to ICPC has increased timeliness - the target of 15 working days was achieved in 85.4% of cases, up from 80.4% last year.

For 2016/17 CP Reviews (in relation to cases open as at 31 March 2017, where the child had been on a CP Plan for at least 3 months) - During 2016/17 CP Reviews were carried out within the required timescale in
95.4 % of cases. This compares to 93.7% for 2015/16 and is higher than the 2015/16 average figures for Statistical Neighbours (90.3%), South West (91.1%) and England (93.7%).
CP Plans ended in 3 months or less has decreased significantly from 25.2% (197) in 2015/16 to 11.6 % (92) in 2016/17. Also for 2016/17 the number of children on a CP Plan for more than 2 years had decreased
from 2.9% (23) to 0.3% (2).

Children In Need Headlines

1 of 2

Management Information Team

Agenda Item 10

√

Recording of core data for Children in Need has continued to improve assisted by updated data entry guidance, monthly core data checks by Service, data validation checks by the Children's MI Team and data
cleansing in preperation for the transition to Eclipse.

Report for: Children's Care- 27th July 2017

Childrens' Services
Reporting Period - 1st April 2016 - 31st March 2017

This is a summary report of key outcomes and issues within the 2016/17 Children In Need Census Return. This is to support Senior Managers in the final approval of information provided to the
Department for Education and to review outcomes of the Census.
Areas Needing Improvements

Agenda Item 10

Children In Need (CIN) Report

Reduce the percentage of Referrals that result in an Assessment where the child was assessed as not to be in need.

Page 150

Continue to monitor rates of children subject to CP plans.
Continueing to improve partners' awareness of MASH thresholds and of Early Help.

Future Developments

Services to CIN are a priority area for improvement for Children's Social Care in 2017/18. A new CIN framework will be implemented from October 2017, MASH staffing resilience has been increased, proposals for
the redesign of MASH front door are in development and work continues to further improve the Early Help offer - all of which are anticipated to impact on CIN data in the year ahead.
Version 1: CIN: 27th July 2017

Information in this report is confidential to the Children's Services' professionals in Devon & is not to be published more widely

Produced by : Management Information Team (MIT), Devon County Council

Children In Need Headlines

2 of 2

Management Information Team

Current Reporting Period
to 31st March 2017

Scorecard Version 1.1

Devon County Council
Children In Need
Performance Scorecard 2016-17

As part of performance developments currently in progress, we are reviewing measures, reporting frequency, improving data quality, and will include commentary within more detailed underlying reports to understand:
How much have we done?
Local & National Measures

How well have we done it?

2016-17 Year End Performance

Please refer to the Key at the bottom of the scorecard to help interpret
the information provided.

Page 151

NUMBERS OF CHILDREN IN NEED
CIN 1 No of Children In Need throughout the Year
CIN 1.1 No of Children In Need per 10,000 Population aged u18
CIN 2 No of Children in need as at 31 March
CIN 2.1 Rate of children in need at 31 March per 10,000 children
CIN 3 No of children In Need (excluding CPP & CIC) as at 31 March
CIN 3.1 Rate of children in need at 31 March per 10,000 children (excl CPP & CIC)

CIN 4.1 Rate of children starting an episode of need in the Year per 10,000 children
CIN 5 No of Children ending an episode of need in the Year
CIN 5.1 Rate of children ending an episode of need in the Year per 10,000 children
CIN 6 Number of episodes closed in the year

No of Children in need at 31 March with one or more disabilities
CIN 7
recorded

CIN 7.1 % of children who have a disability recorded

What does
YTD
YTD
'Good'
Numerat Denomin
Look Like
or
ator

N/A
N/A

7114
7114

N/A
N/A

3842

2699

143555

267.6

143555

188.0

2667
2667

N/A
N/A

495.6

2699

N/A
N/A

143,555
3842

N/A
N/A

YTD Actual
Performance

143555

185.8

3272
3272

143555

227.9

Historical Data

%
Year
Year Increase
End on Year
or
Target Change Decrease

2015-16
Actual

Benchmarking Data

Year
on
2015Year
16 Stat
Chan 2014-15 2015-16 SW Neighbo
ge
Actual
Regional
urs Ave

2015-16
England

-14.7%

8,340

10168

71,680

6,665

778,980

-15.3%

584.9

715.3

662.5

651.9

667.1

-17.7%

4,668

5725

34,790

3,538

394,400

-18.3%

327.4

402.7

321.5

332.8

337.7

-16.8%

3,244

4594.0

-17.4%

227.5

323.1

-30.9%

3,861

3782

36,010

3,311

401,600

-31.4%

270.8

266.1

332.7

328.6

343.9

-10.9%

3,672

4443

36,900

3,128

384,580

-11.5%

257.5

312.6

341.0

319.1

329.3

N/A

5426

-13.8%

6,294

7058.0

N/A

914

-11.7%

1,035

1618

5,520

480

49,990

7.2%

22.2%

28.3%

15.9%

13.6%

12.7%

N/A

914

3842

23.8%

1 of 3

Stat
Stat
Neighbo Rank Neighbo Rank 1 is
ur 15/16 Chan ur 14/15 Low or
Ranking
ge
Ranking
High?

5 of 11

8 of 11

Low

8 of 11

10 of 11

Low

3 of 11

3 of 11

4 of 11

6 of 11

11 of 11

11 of 11

Agenda Item 10

CIN 4 No of Children starting an episode of need in the Year

Have we made a difference?.

Low

Low

Low

Data in Report Last Updated 28 July 2016

to 31st March 2017

Scorecard Version 1.1

Agenda Item 10

Current Reporting Period

Devon County Council
Children In Need
Performance Scorecard 2016-17

As part of performance developments currently in progress, we are reviewing measures, reporting frequency, improving data quality, and will include commentary within more detailed underlying reports to understand:
How much have we done?
Local & National Measures

How well have we done it?

2016-17 Year End Performance

Please refer to the Key at the bottom of the scorecard to help interpret
the information provided.

Page 152

REFERRALS AND ASSESSMENTS
RA 1

No of Referral in the year

RA 1.1 Rate of Referrals per 10,000 of children aged under 18 years
RA 2
RA 3
RA 4
RA 5
RA 6
RA 7
RA 8
RA 9

% of Referrals within 12 months of a previous referral
% of Referrals that resulted in no further action

% of Referrals that resulted in an assessment and the child was
assessed not to be in need
Number of Continuous Assessments Started in the Year
Number of Continuous Assessments Authorised
Percentage Authorised in 45 working days

Number of unique children who were subject to section 47
enquiries which started in the year
No of section 47 enquiries which started in the year

RA 9.1 Rate of section 47 enquiries per 10,000 of children aged under 18 years

Number of Initial Child Protection Conferences (excl 'Transfer In'
RA 10
conferences)

RA 11 Initial Conferences within 15 working days of Section 47 Start Date
RA 12 Transfer In Conferences within 15 working days of Referral date

Have we made a difference?.

What does
YTD
YTD
'Good'
Numerat Denomin
Look Like
or
ator

N/A
L

YTD Actual
Performance

Historical Data

%
Year
Year Increase
End on Year
or
Target Change Decrease

5061

2015-16
Actual

Benchmarking Data

Year
on
2015Year
16 Stat
Chan 2014-15 2015-16 SW Neighbo
ge
Actual
Regional
urs Ave

2015-16
England

-26.9%

6,919

6918

53,160

4,705

621,470

Stat
Stat
Neighbo Rank Neighbo Rank 1 is
ur 15/16 Chan ur 14/15 Low or
Ranking
ge
Ranking
High?

5061

143555

352.5

-27.3%

485.2

486.7

491.3

467.7

532.2

6 of 11

8 of 11

Low

L

1048

5061

20.7%

0.5%

20.6%

23.4%

23.7%

22.4%

22.3%

5 of 11

4 of 11

Low

323

5061

6.4%

1.3%

6.3%

7.5%

7.9%

5.0%

9.9%

7 of 11

7 of 11

Low

L

2071

5061

40.9%

8.0%

37.9%

37.8%

24.4%

25.2%

25.4%

11 of 11

10 of 11

Low

5496

-27.2%

7,553

7706

5625

-25.5%

7,552

8187

53,140

4,776

571,640

-1.2%

90.6%

68.0%

81.5%

79.8%

83.4%

3 of 11

10 of 11

High

1336

-32.5%

1,979

1900

1452

-29.5%

2,061

2083

14,860

1,269

172,290

-30.0%

144.5

146.5

137.4

124.3

147.5

9 of 11

9 of 11

Low

-49.1%

1,226

1052

7,220

566

73,050

78.5%

72.6%

76.7%

6 of 11

7 of 11

High

L
N/A
N/A
H

N/A

5034

5625

N/A

89.5%

85%

N/A

1452

H

533

624

85.4%

70%

6.2%

80.4%

68.9%

9

11

81.8%

70%

22.7%

66.7%

12.5%

N/A
H

143555

101.1

624

2 of 3

Data in Report Last Updated 28 July 2016

Current Reporting Period
to 31st March 2017

Scorecard Version 1.1

Devon County Council
Children In Need
Performance Scorecard 2016-17

As part of performance developments currently in progress, we are reviewing measures, reporting frequency, improving data quality, and will include commentary within more detailed underlying reports to understand:
How much have we done?
Local & National Measures

How well have we done it?

2016-17 Year End Performance

Please refer to the Key at the bottom of the scorecard to help interpret
the information provided.

CHILD PROTECTION PLANS
CPP 1

No of Children who were the subject of a CPP during the Year

Rate of children who were the subject of a CPP during the Year per 10,000
CPP 1.1
children
No of Children who were the subject of a CPP as at 31 March

Page 153

CPP 2

Rate of children who were the subject of a CPP at 31 March per 10,000
CPP 2.1
children
CPP 3

No of Children who became the subject of a plan during the Year

Rate of children who became the subject of a CPP during the Year per
CPP 3.1
10,000 children
% who became the subject of a plan for a second or subsequent
CPP 4
time (Ever)
% who became the subject of a plan for a second or subsequent
CPP 5
time (Last 2yrs)
CPP 6

Children who ceased to be the subject of a CPP during the Year

Abbreviations

I
H
L

Num
Den

-

Inappropriate to set a target
Higher is better

What does
YTD
YTD
'Good'
Numerat Denomin
Look Like
or
ator

N/A

YTD Actual
Performance

%
Year
Year Increase
End on Year
or
Target Change Decrease

1232

N/A

1232

143555

N/A

85.8

442

N/A

442

143555

N/A

30.8

518

N/A

36.1

2015-16
England

-17.6%

1,495

1396

10,720

907

113,060

-18.2%

104.9

98

99.2

93.5

96.8

0.0%

442

486

4,690

388

50,310

-38.5%

50.1

34.2

43.4

40.6

43.1

-48.9%

1014

771

6,210

499

63,310

-49.2%

71.1

54.2

57.4

52.3

20.9%

Stat
Stat
Neighbo Rank Neighbo Rank 1 is
ur 15/16 Chan ur 14/15 Low or
Ranking
ge
Ranking
High?

10 of 11

9 of 11

Low

9 of 11

2 of 11

Low

54.2

10 of 11

8 of 11

Low

21.5%

17.9%

6 of 11

2 of 11

Low

High

L

128

518

24.7%

16%

10.3%

22.4%

17.5%

L

74

518

14.3%

8%

40.6%

10.2%

7.9%

1.2%

781

910

6,030

519

62,750

0.4%

54.8

64.0

55.8

52.9

53.7

4 of 11

3 of 11

3.7%

3.8%

3 of 11

5 of 11

93.7%

7 of 11

5 of 11

N/A

790

N/A
L

H

RAG Ratings

55.0

790

143555

2

790

0.3%

3%

-91.3%

2.9%

2.5%

3.2%

269

282

95.4%

100%

1.8%

93.7%

97.1%

91.1%

On target, or within 5%

More than 5% from target

Denominator

Performance has remained in line with last reporting period

Commentary provided to DfE

Year
on
2015Year
16 Stat
Chan 2014-15 2015-16 SW Neighbo
ge
Actual
Regional
urs Ave

143555

More than 10% from target

Data Not Currently Available to Report

2015-16
Actual

Benchmarking Data

518

Lower is better

Numerator

Historical Data

Performance has improved since last reporting period

Performance has decreased since last reporting period

90.3%

Agenda Item 10

Rate of children who ceased to be the subject of a CPP during the Year per
CPP 6.1
10,000 children
% who ceased to be the subject of a CPP during the Year (after 2
CPP 7
or more years) (NI 64)
Child protection cases which were reviewed within required
CPP 8
timescales

Have we made a difference?.

Low

High

Decrease of referrals, decrease of referrals resulting in no further action, decrease of assessments, decrease of Section 47’s, ICPC’s – Over the year work has taken place to review thresholds and improve the triage and referral to Early Help process in the MASH. This has meant that there is a lower number of child records
loaded, referrals, referrals resulting in no further action, Assessments, Section 47’s and ICPC’s. Therefore, re-referrals have been carefully monitored and have remained consistent.

Child Protection – CP numbers have fluctuated following external scrutiny. The numbers climbed progressively following the Ofsted Inspection in 2015 as a result of increased scrutiny of thresholds and risks. In February 2016 a range of data analysis (using statistical neighbours and national data), auditing and review activity took
place to review the application of thresholds and this resulted in a reduction of the number of children on plans over a relatively short period of time. Work continues to ensure appropriate thresholds are applied.

3 of 3

Data in Report Last Updated 28 July 2016

Agenda Item 10
Local Authority Comparison Rates per 10,000(1) vs. IDACI Scores
CIN Rate per 10,000 (Snapshot 31st March) vs. IDACI

700

Norfolk

600

500
Herefordshire

Rate per 10,000

400
Dorset

Devon 2016

Wiltshire (Good)

300

Gloucestershire
Shropshire

200

Hertfordshire (Good)

North Yorkshire (Good)

East Sussex

Somerset

Devon 2017

Cornwall (Good)
Lincolnshire (Good)

Suffolk
Essex (Good)

100

0

10

11

12

13

14

15
IDACI

16

17

18

19

20

19

20

Trendline

S47 Rate per 10,000 (During year) vs. IDACI

200

Herefordshire

180

Suffolk

160
140
Wiltshire (Good)

Rate per 10,000

120

Dorset

Devon 2016
Gloucestershire

Shropshire

Somerset

Norfolk

Devon 2017

100

East Sussex

80

Hertfordshire (Good)

Cornwall (Good)
Lincolnshire (Good)

60
Essex (Good)

40

North Yorkshire (Good)

20
0

10

11

12

13

14

15
IDACI

16

Please note - Data too scattered to establish meaningful Trendline

Page 154

17

18

Agenda Item 10
CP Rate per 10,000 (Snapshot 31st March) vs. IDACI

70

Herefordshire

60
Dorset

Devon 2016

50

Gloucestershire

Shropshire

East Sussex

Rate per 10,000

40

Cornwall (Good)
Wiltshire (Good)

Devon 2017

30

Suffolk

Hertfordshire (Good)
North Yorkshire (Good)

20

Norfolk

Somerset

Lincolnshire (Good)

Essex (Good)

10

0

10

11

12

13

14

15
IDACI

16

17

18

19

20

19

20

Please note - Data too scattered to establish meaningful Trendline

CLA Rate per 10,000 (Snapshot 31st March) vs. IDACI

90
80

Herefordshire

70
Dorset

60

Norfolk

Devon 2016

Rate per 10,000

50

Wiltshire (Good)

East Sussex

Somerset

Devon 2017

Shropshire

40

Suffolk

Lincolnshire (Good)

Gloucestershire

Cornwall (Good)

Hertfordshire (Good)

North Yorkshire (Good)

30

Essex (Good)

20
10
0

10

11

12

13

14

15
IDACI

Trendline

Note 1: Local authority rates per 10,000 are for 2015-16 reporting year / snapshot as at 31st March 2016.

Page 155

16

17

18

